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delicious meal for beloved family requires not only

the ingredients and culinary skills, paired with the
appropriate cooking method, but also control over the
timing, temperature and portions, undertaken with infinite
love and patience. “Prepare The Best Taste For You” - China
Resources Enterprise, Limited has taken on the role of a
loving relative, in combining the careful selection of the
finest ingredients with seasoned techniques and meticulous
preparation, to dish out four delicacies (retail, beer, food and
beverage businesses) and share the fruit with eur customers,

shareholders and investors. ’-
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AN COMPANY PROFILE

]

s listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and is one of the
constituent stocks of Hang Seng Index. Building on the strategy
of “market leadership with outstanding brands, operational
excellence and synergies among its businesses”, China Resources
Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) focuses on its four consumer goods businesses
in China - retail, beer, food and beverage — with the vision of
becoming a world renowned retail and consumer goods company.
Our multi-format chain stores include “ZH&% CR Vanguard”,
“ZR 3 Suguo”, “Ole"”, “blt”, “V>nGO”, “EX%418 Fun Square”, “ZE)H
% CRCare”, “Voi_lal”, “AFFMEE Pacific Coffee”, “3/& VIVO”
and “f# Chinese Arts & Crafts”, etc., which form an extensive
retail network of 4,800 stores across China. Our beer division has
maintained its market leadership, with our flagship “Z7E Snow”
brand remaining the best-selling single beer brand in China in
terms of volume for nine consecutive years starting from year
2005. Committed to providing “Safe, Healthy and Convenient”
food products, our food division is expanding its presence in the
China market leveraging the “fi 2 Ng Fung” brand’s reputation in
food quality. The division is primarily engaged in the businesses
of rice, meat, assorted food and international distribution, as well
as the operation of the China Resources Hope Town development
project. As for the Group’s beverage division, our flagship purified
water brand “/4E C’estbon” has a leading market position in
southern China, building a strong position in
China’s non-alcoholic drinks market. As a
member of China Resources Group, we
are dedicated to the corporate mission of
“Better Life Together”, with our pursuit of
excellence and to bring quality life to our

customers.
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China Resources Vanguard was ranked No. 3

on the “2013 Top 100 Chain Stores in China”

list and No. 1 on the “Top 100 Fast Moving
Consumer Goods Chain Stores in China” list for
the fourth consecutive year by China Chain Store
& Franchise Association.

E AEEET [Ole'| SmBHKILHAE - &
2014 FFK - BB 30 RIS -

The Group’s high-end supermarket chain, “Ole'”,
celebrated its 10th anniversary. As at the end of

2014, there were more than 30 stores across the
country.

TEVERBEWED M - [EIE Snow| B
HRE (2013 FEHBE+ARBEME | REB - WU
& [2013 FEHBEMBITE T AGHRE] & -

The China Alcoholic Drinks Association named
the “ £ Snow” brand as “China’s Top 10 Beer
Brands 2013” and No. 1 on the list of “China’s
Top 10 Best-Selling Beer Brands 2013”.

—Z-MFERE MILESTONES IN 2014

e

.
-

According to China Industrial Information Issuing
Centre, China Resources Snow Breweries was named
“China’s Best-Selling Beer by Sales Volume” for the
ninth consecutive year in 2013, while the sales volume
of the “ 1E Snow” single beer brand exceeded
10,000,000 tonnes for the first time. The Group’s

beer division became the first brewery in China’s beer
industry to achieve the “Double Ten Million” milestone,
the twin feats of exceeding 10,000,000 tonnes in both
overall sales and single-brand sales.

= AEERNB2HRE= ATEN Tesco BHAE

X - IN8ABHEREETESH  BERALE
SREHERNES  BAKRKRKTERERRZZE

The Group has successfully completed the
formation of its joint venture with Tesco, the
third biggest retailer in the world. Its first

board meeting was held in August. With the
combination of global expertise and local
intelligence, the joint venture aims to become
the leading multi-format retailer in Greater China.

EHRERBEEDEY (BEN 4) £172H
WE - ARREAERERAENEREE -

Leveraging the Group’s sponsorship of “Transformers
4” movie, China Resources C’estbon Beverage
stepped up its national promotional activities and
successfully boosted its brand reputation and
awareness.
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China Resources Vanguard was ranked No. 1 on China Resources Ng
the “2013 Top 50 Chain Stores in Guangdong” Fung was honoured
list by Guangdong Chain Operation Association as a “Competitive
for the fourth consecutive year. Enterprise in the
PRC Meat Products
R R EERE M 2014 € (RE 500 HABE UG i 200,
mhe) BI85 - [EFIE Snow] WEESIE 28 fif - by China Meat
mEEEREEREARKE 875.82 87T - Association.

“ FEIE Snow” ranked 28th on the World Brand
Laboratory’s list of “China’s 500 Most Valuable
Brands” in 2014. Its brand value surged to
RMB87.582 billion.

BIZEACEBRHRARMNERET * [1AE C'estbon]
WFKEFRBR KT SHERZRENEAZESE
=% ERRBITEFHEEATF -

According to the figures from AC Nielsen,
“152 C’estbon” purified water has become the
country’s third biggest seller in the packaged
water market in terms of sales volume in 2014,
up from the fourth a year earlier. Its growth rate
far exceeded that of the industry average.

%%;‘Fﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁé}ﬁjjbﬁm;ﬁa’g% China Resources Ng Fung’s hen breeding
BHEBEWIINES  BE base in Xibaipo, Hebei has commenced
REEERMENBENES S operation. It helped to solve employment
HERKA - WHE—FRAE issues in the neighboring areas, increased the .
HRMFEBRFHEFE incomes of local farmers and further enhanced the

competitiveness of the division’s
fresh produce business.
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With its strong brand
recognition and influence,
China Resources Snow
Breweries became the only
brewery sponsor of Beijing’s
bid for the 2022 Winter
Olympics.

AEE [ZE-E-ME] KD
BRETHEAGEERE — =
TR BRART o FHH
BLNELBBIERELEE
BHEMTRE  NERARHE
WEEBRERM TR LHTAE
ERAERETE [ETE

WA | B ACHY B o

The Group held its “Snow —
The First Brew” launch
ceremony at the Shenyang
Snow Breweries Plant, the
largest brewery in Asia. By
arranging visits to China
Resources Snow Breweries
plants with distinctive features,

the Group has enhanced public

understanding of the beer
production process, thereby
showcasing the Group’s
journey to reaching the first-
ever “Double Ten Million”
milestone in China’s beer
industry.

J\H AUGUST == B

REEHEZBRE - KEAE QA
SABMiller K & ERHEM =+
R E A RAP SR TT -

The Group’s joint venture
with SABMiller, the world’s
second largest brewer, held
its 20th anniversary ceremony
in Chengdu.

—Z-MFERE MILESTONES IN 2014
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The Group held the “SNOW - Great Expedition with You”
campaign for the tenth consecutive year. With the theme
of “Challenge the Unclimbed”, participants conquered an
unclimbed peak in the Baima Snow Mountain in Shangri-
La, Yunnan Province. The peak was subsequently named “The

Great Expedition Peak”.

[£4#B[E Life Space| BB
YR LR RSB AR o

“ L HRFE Life Space”
shopping centre in
Wuxi held its grand
opening ceremony.

EHERECSHF - MEREBFEERRAREN HERRER

E - HgaFER]  WARPERATENRSRE

T—

China Resources Vanguard won the “Seven Star
Award for Outstanding Contributions to Food Safety &
Public Health — Social Responsibility” co-organized by China
Business News and Ecolab Inc. This award is one of the
highest recognitions in the Chinese food industry.




3R 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 9
—Z-MFEE#E MILESTONES IN 2014

+—H NOVEMBER <

w EETERFRARKEBRETRAARAERFITAK
XBAEEE  BBAEIMEMKANEZER
BRERLOBFN BB ARRERPRERERE
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China Resources Ng Fung and China Grain
Reserves Corporation signed a joint venture
agreement for rice business leveraging their

synergies in the areas of branding and cost _ —N
advantage to build core competitiveness and +—_4 DECEMBER QG -

drive the rapid development of the rice business.
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China’s Ministry g
of Industry and = i
Information %g
Technology %i’?
announced the e
China Brand Power @
Index at the “2014
§ EHRERNEEMELEHENEREDER Gl Bl Lesticr
& ORYNERECEBEEE [REESE] - Summit”, where
[EER%8E] B [MELHBEEER] - " BFE Snow” was
: selected as the “Top
China Resources C’estbon Beverage was Beer Brand”.
presented the “Quality Progress Award”, o
“Excellent Tax-payment and Turnover Award” i EHEEREPBRAH TERSHEE (2014 F é
and “Harmonious Labor Relationship Promotion BE#RATEEBEMSEEREFEE] - ETEER 2P
Award” by China Association of Enterprises with FREBEIK AT FERSEE o o ?éf
Foreign Investment and Shenzhen Association e
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment for the China Resources C’estbon Beverage received §
second consecutive year. the “2014 China Beverage Industry — Excellent 3
: Practice of Social Responsibility” from China
Beverage Industry
Association. Its
subsidiaries were .
h - 5 also awarded
honours for energy
conservation and
water conservation. é-'
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—E—MFRIE K% E AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2014

_AH JANUARY lj_[lﬁ APRIL <o

DELOITTE AND
STORES MEDIA . CAPITAL AND
20125 REEI50% CAPITAL WEEKLY
51| .93z | 2014F ¥ E WS
2012 Top 250 Global Retailers Corporate Social
Ranked 93rd . Responsibility Awards 2014
s e Y, e e e
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE ASIA
MERCOMM, INC.
2014 EDNEHRERE S Asian Excellence Recognition
Mercury Awards | TMBEEENTE (REEME)  Awards 2014
FR-ERRE OIRRMENER | ojseapyne @EEHE Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations)
Mercury Awards N EENETEEF Asia's Best CFO (Investor Relations)
Annual Reports — Overall Presentation: | f{+IBiE& (T Asia's Best CSR
Gold (Consumer Goods) HEREEBERLE Best Environmental Responsibility
! BERAEBEAS Best Investor Relations Company

E‘:H MARCH Best Investor Relations Professional

YAZHOU ZHOUKAN

2 IREF 10001745
2013FEHRAFEBEKNE
Global Chinese Business
1000 Ranking

The Largest Conglomerates
Company Award 2013
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s’ Bt s’ Dot Best
U F 0 Lnvestor Relations

Company
BTy

E-EMHOENETR : E
The 3rd Outstanding Corporate [ttt M)

Social Responsibility Award
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FORBES

282000582
H 55106741
Global 2000
Ranked 1067th

7 A JUNE

CAPITAL

ShEERPEEL D ERME JuH SEPTEMBER <

BEARPBEFLEERBE

The 9th CAPITAL Outstanding
China Enterprise Awards
Outstanding Consumer

Goods Enterprise Award

. CHINAHR.COM

- BUETEABEBREREINERE
| TEOEERERITOP 5 HiTH
=i

Research Report on the 12th
ChinaHR Best Employers

: Ranked 3rd in the TOP 5 Best

{ Employers (Retail - Department
Stores Industry)

FORTUNE CHINA

AR 500 a3
H5I5E 40 iz
Fortune China 500
Ranked 40th O
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. MERCOMM, INC.

| BIBSARCHE#H AR

| 3% % - 1IR3 SRRIERE
International Annual Report

{ Competition (ARC) Awards

3 Golds, 1 Silver, 3 Bronzes and
1 Honors

LEAGUE OF AMERICAN
COMMUNICATIONS
PROFESSIONALS LLC
(LACP)

2013 Vision F3RLL B A S

2 BN R

2013 Vision Awards Annual
Report Competition

2 Golds and 1 Silver
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014FEEBHEDHE
Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprises 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ASIA

2014 EEMNEEERRBAR

DM EE QM

Corporate Governance Asia Recognition Awards 2014
Asia’s Icon on Corporate Governance

014FETMNEHEESRIBASE
Asian Corporate Director of the Year Award 2014

IR MAGAZINE RETAIL ASIA
2B 50 MRS TABELEAZSELELAE
Global Top 50 Silver Best of the Best T KB HETERFE AL

FRETAZESELESHE
..................................................................... Retail Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards
Best of the Best Retailers Award, Asia Pacific

—E—MFRIE K% E AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2014

...........................................................................................................................................................
75 R R 8 2014

MERCOMM, INC.

ElF% Galaxy €78
18R4% - 1SR IERLE

International Galaxy Awards

1 Silver, 1 Bronze N

L RWARDS

+_A)E‘| NOVEMBER GO0l e s oo 8 R0y X, Sl S 0 T i e DU NI ol iMoo =,

Top 10 Retailers in China — Gold Award

THE HONG KONG
INSTITUTE OF
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
AND PROFESSIONAL
COMMENTATORS LIMITED

EHARFERE
Outstanding Listed Company Award

q:HF AT A4S
IFAPC Outstanding Listed Company Award

2014
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TA KUNG PAO
BN S & R AR

RIEARDRE LETWAR]
BEEERELETAT

Golden Bauhinia Award

Best Corporate Governance for
Listed Companies

Best Information Disclosure for
Listed Companies

o P

AL Bk

IR MAGAZINE
REREEHRFZ - HERER

Best in Sector — Consumer Staples

AWARDS
s

WINNIR

THE HONG KONG
INSTITUTE OF
DIRECTORS

2014 FEHREES R
ETRABI[BEER ST — B AR
e gVl

Directors of The Year Awards 2014
The Awardee in the Board Category
for “Listed Companies (SEHK —
Hang Seng Index Constituents)”

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE ASIA

x ¥
.an ‘
Asian Company Secretary
of the year 2 X
X

2014

2014FERNRERARAMERE KR
Asian Company Secretary of the
Year Recognition Awards 2014

THE ASSET

2014 EE L ERE

MBRE ©EER  HE2EE -
REBEREEEBFRD

The Asset Corporate Awards 2014
Gold Award for Financial
Performance, Corporate
Governance, Social Responsibility,
Environmental Responsibility and
Investor Relations

CHINA BUSINESS
JOURNAL

BEZEREBL¥ETop 10
Z5I%E 5 7

Top 10 Happiest Companies
Ranked 5th

ZHAOPIN.COM

TEFEREREE
=EERENEE

China Best Employer Award
The Most Promising Employer
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FiINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HEZZ—NF+=A=1+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2014

oM (e YN
TURNOVER BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
BEEEIT HKS million BEETT HKS
g
s 2014 168,864 2014 0.07)
2
3 2013 146,413 2013 0.79
2
2012

126,236 2012 l_— 1.64

|

—E—mE —B—=f —E-—fF

2014 2013 2012
BEEET BETET BERET
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million

o
[0}
o
& ©
B
£ g
E_C
& ?
>
15
°

BEH Turnover 168,864 146,413 126,236
RN TR B R % 7 Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company (161) 1,908 3,945
ERREARBEN (GE%IT)  Basic earnings per share’ (HK$) $(0.07) $0.79 $1.64
FREECEET) Dividend per share (HK$)
—hH — interim $0.11 $0.13 $0.15
— KRR — final $0.16 $0.14 $0.15
$0.27 $0.27 $0.30
3
C
g
B %
{n 0]
K
g
2
5
(@]

BB RS

Financial Statement



#£$§ 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 15
B #5482 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A ) B B A R 2 B e - BRTAE
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NET ASSETS PER SHARE: BOOK VALUE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BT HKS
I E BT HKS million
g
cCE
_| B}t
2014 48,747 2014 20.14 s H
om
e
2013 44,073 2013 18.34 -
2012 40,742 2012 16.97
|
RZB—MNFE RZB-=F RZZT—=F
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H +=HA=+—H
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2012

BEBET BEEET BEEET
HKS$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million

)
g
o
> 3
e
=
3
(o}
[0]
@

AR E R EL R Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 48,747 44,073 40,742
FEFEHI A R Non-controlling interests 20,876 15,538 13,042
B Total equity 69,623 59,611 53,784
RABTORE Consolidated net borrowings 8,063 1,167 1,330
B &% Gearing ratio? 11.6% 2.0% 2.5%
MENLL Current ratio 0.76 0.86 0.89 &
BREEFHE: Net assets per share: 8
V)
—HREECERIT) — book value (HK$) $20.14 $18.34 $16.97 8
® m
2 i
BiEE - Notes: S
g
1. BE-_Z-—NF - —_T—=FGR_T—_F 1. Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2014, 2013 3
F+ZA=+—RILEFEZEREERFH B A and 2012 are HK$(0.07), HK$0.79 and HK$1.64, respectively.
FE#5(0.07)7T ~ B150.79TT KB RE1.647T ©
2. BELREGAEBIFEAGERSNLLA 2. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total
equity. e

1UsWale]S [elouRUl
SHELL
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BB MARTIRE ~ BLIE - e S ey ar 2 A 4 b R
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA'

HEZZ—NF+=A=1+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2014

BIHEB 2B W
TURNOVER BY SEGMENT
BEEEIT HKS million
Q
=]
Q
S
(0]
£ _—. 109,500 H 95,174
5
S
= 34,482 32,994
— 16,486 — 12,069
F 9,891 r 7,308
, 2014 2013
. S
o
E=i]
] .
£5 [ ZEX Retall 1B RS Beer
& CS) [ RREH Food B % Beverage
)
—E—NEF —E-=F #Bm/(BD)
2014 2013 Increased/
S BEEHERT BEEER (Decreased)
g BIBXK o EEEE Turnover by segment HK$ million  HK$ million %
g Q@
o 3 B Core Businesses
S % =& Retail 109,500 95,174 15.1%
g 3 Beer 34,482 32,994 4.5%
O B Food 16,486 12,069 36.6%
T Beverage 9,891 7,305 35.4%
170,359 147,542 15.5%
B HIHEBE 25 Elimination of inter-segment
transactions (1,495) (1,129) 32.4%
ek Total 168,864 146,413 15.3%

BB RS

Financial Statement
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FIHEBZARFRE ~ BiIE ~ P78 S8y [r 25
EBITDA BY SEGMENT
BB IT HKS million

>
o
o]
cs
_' 3;
b 1,279 3,726 =1 ;;
Om
2
4,353 4,415 -
f 404 — 409
F 673 r 324
2014 2013 :
O
o®
B SEE Retal 1 %75 Beer e gj
>0
[ RREH Food B &R Beverage % 7
3
—E-mE  —T-=F #mN08D)
2014 2013 Increased/
ZHEERZARTFHE - BEBET BEEERT (Decreased) S
BIE - ITEREEAEAEF EBITDA! by segment HK$ million  HK$ million % 3
S by
BinEHRE Core Businesses g) 1;
T Retail 1,279 3,726 (65.7%) 5 ¥
b Beer 4,353 4,415 (1.4%) 8
) Food 404 409 (1.2%) 3
N Beverage 673 324 107.7%
6,709 8,874 (24.4%)
NEHEEE Corporate overheads (209) (169) 23.7%
wE Total 6,500 8,705 (25.3%)
fI5E - Note:
1. EBITDARKRETFIE - Bi18 « T8 REHATAR 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and o
A o amortization. §
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ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

HEZZ—NF+=A=1+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2014

BT SEH 2 B o A A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS BY SEGMENT
BEEEIT HKS million

- (873) _—-. 1,000

761 943

F 237 F 106

2014 2013
B TE%% Retall 1R)F %7 Beer
[ B®RER Food B R Beverage

—E—nmE —E-=F #mORD)

2014 2013 Increased/
Profit attributable to BEEET B HETT (Decreased)
BREEK ZRREWLZEF  shareholders by segment HK$ million  HK$ million %
BN Core Businesses

=& Retail (873) 1,000 (187.3%)
L2 Beer 761 943 (19.3%)
R Food 13 53 (75.5%)
£ Beverage 237 106 123.6%
138 2,102 (98.4%)

NREIR S FENER  Net corporate interest and
expenses (299) (194) 54.1%
FEb G Total (161) 1,908 (108.4%)
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BIEB IR G EE A R 8 BEIR OB R R Z BOR A A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS EXCLUDING THE EFFECT
OF ASSET REVALUATION AND MAJOR DISPOSAL OF NON-CORE ASSETS/
INVESTMENTS BY SEGMENT

B BT HKS million >
Za
- —
(1,359) 734 50
Q@
2
i)
761 943
- (134) — 53
F 237 e 106
2014 2013 5
o
c
o
5z
S
B T Retal 18 E 5 Beer g
[0]
W RMEH Food B R Beverage Z

Profit attributable to shareholders R

excluding the effect of asset —E—MmE —E—-=F #imnCRd)
REEBEHNMREEEZEMNE revaluation and major disposal 2014 2013 Increased/
HEXTEFRRLEE, of non-core assets/investments BEHET B EHET (Decreased) 5
BREFEZRFAEWNER by segment HK$ million  HK$ million % g
o
BEHE Core Businesses 2 ;@
Te Retail' (1,359) 734 (285.1%) & =
i Beer 761 943 (19.3%) <
age Food? (134) 53 (352.8%) 2
(0]
R Beverage 237 106 123.6%
(495) 1,836 (127.0%)
NEEEAN EFENER  Net corporate interest and
expenses (299) (194) 54.1% R
k) Total (794) 1,642 (148.4%)

B 5E Notes:

1. TEEBNEETBRESEATHNEB486E 1. Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus ?T!
TL(= B =B %2 6618 L) HE IERL R on investment properties with an aggregate amount of approximately 2
BRSFA RIRE M EFHERLR - HK$486 million (2013: HK$266 million) have been excluded from the o o

results of Retail division. o5
(V)

2. BMmEBNEETDESBEATOEE147E 2. Net gain on disposal of non-core investment approximately HK$147 g o

TR E IR IR E TS FF] o million has been excluded from the results of the Food division. o
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"Market leadership with outstanding brands, operational
excellence and synergies among its businesses”



FEH|E CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

—E-mF - PEKEIRENE B

NEERERETRET.4% /=t
FRIGERE - BHTEHECORE - B
FEBRAR YEEFLELRREIRE
FERMREAF  EREBHRERR  ER

L FHEFRES] ©

HE-Z—NE+-_A=+—RHILEE -
REBMGAEEEBIRFEIMISINEL
7 ¥ 168,864,000,000 7 ° — F — PO & &K
RNAIR R L 4R A B 1R LB % 161,000,000
T ZE = FREEREEESRFLEE
1,908,000,0007C ° IR EEEH 2B & UK
w o AEEEHZE_Z—WNF+_A=+—8
IEFENARARREEGHEREZEBIBOE
#794,000,0007T °

hina’s economic growth cooled in 2014, with Gross

Domestic Product (“GDP”) growing at 7.4%, the slowest
rate of growth in 20 years. In response to this dynamic change,
we continued to develop our core competence for long-term
business development by expanding our scale and partnering with
experienced leading global industry players.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$168,864 million,
representing an increase of 15.3% year-on-year. Consolidated
loss attributable to the Company’s shareholders recorded
approximately HK$161 million for 2014 compared to attributable
profit of approximately HK$1,908 million for 2013. Excluding
the after-tax effect of asset revaluation, the Group’s underlying
consolidated loss attributable to the Company’s shareholders for
the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$794
million.
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FE#E CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION

7 b Percentage (%)

0.1%

5.6%

94.3%

2014

[ FERXH Chinese Mainland

RZE—WMFRA - AEETEKSE
Tesco PLC([Tesco)) EHA B E([ A
Br%E]) EFTescoB T AATEE
4,325,000,0007T - ZE & RMNEEE EE
BERLE WAREBRESHRNELENR
BRFEEEREEER cECEBRE
AEFTEZMASTER  MERMEEERES
EECHREENES  BIEBEREEZNEBKBRA
Mam - BEBRRALEEERENEER
&= b 2 BlIHE ML - MTescoEE 2
FNREFERINBEFES  TEFIR
PR SR -
PhE -

NEHETEHTERMT R

0.1% | 0.9%
5.5% 6.9%
94.4% 92.2%
2013 2012
Z 7 Hong Kong [ HAh Other

In May 2014, the Group completed the formation of a joint venture
(the “Joint Venture”) with Tesco PLC (“Tesco”). Tesco is required
to make an injection of HK$4,325 million in aggregate. The cash
injection, which is reflected on the consolidated balance sheet,
is a buffer for the immediate dilution of earnings contribution
during the running-in period. The partnership unleashed significant
operational synergies by integrating the parties’ respective
strengths and talent resources, along with global best practices
and local expertise. This will in turn reinforce the operating
efficiency of the physical stores in the Group’s retail business,
and will thereby strengthen its national retail network. Tesco’s
established competence in its omni-channels can contribute to
store transformation to compete against e-commerce retailers.




FEH|E CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

B 7Lt Percentage (%)

0.2%

24.6%

75.2%

7R Bl i Chinese Mainland

HTescoTTN EHAE N ¥ AEBYHET
EEBNEEAGRGEETT T REPTE - &
AEKRBRENEFREE  BBEHBE
800,000,0007T, + FAERAEAE T 3z M AT =
RENESH  TBEEEERBEBIRRERN
RIETRETAAMEETIE - ERNPRTEE
MIRBRER AEEBSRIBMEBEEE I
BESRMAIES S E RS RN EMEH
B - HTINRANEE T E XA ZE R R
HIgR -

EEgREN T AT AAANBRIAR
ARRAMORRREHE T —NF+=
A=+—BIFEXRMARKRE - FRE®0.16
T(ZE—=F : BREB14T) - BRER
HEBEZIFE AEEE_Z—NOFENLg
HRBAEETROIT(ZE—=F: &
fRAE0.277L)  LEHRREAERN

# o

. J’ £ o
0% 0.3%
16.7% 51.0%
83.3% 48.7%
7% Hong Kong Hh Other

After the establishment of its alliance with Tesco, the Group
performed an internal assessment on the returns of the asset
portfolio of the Group’s retail business in 2014. The Group
identified stores and assets showing unsatisfactory performance.
Provisions of approximately HK$800 million was made for the
closure of certain less efficient stores and stores with poor
prospects, primarily comprising of assets impairment and
compensations for early termination of the shop leases. In view
of the rapid changes in China’s retail industry, these assets will
be rationalized, and the capital will be reinvested to enhance
operational efficiency and IT development to accelerate growth in
the asset returns from the Group’s retail business.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.16 per share for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$0.14 per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 4 June 2015. Despite the setback in short
term performance, the Group maintained a total dividend per
share of HK$0.27 in 2014 (2013: HK$0.27 per share) to show its
appreciation to shareholders for their support to the Group.
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AEBEER [ MHEL  EBHR - EL=
o mRELE KR - ARAER —RE
EHERARHERES -

ETEERAE  AEEH AT ETescom
Bk BRE— S EERTEEHER2EWN
HE - BEFEANEERBEMSA% K%
JEF 4,800/ - A - ARFRIFERE
TEHARERRRER  ERENEBERD
BHBMLE TR TREREAEEEBE
T AR CHBEENENCEERERLEE
MBENZEME - ATENRESENLE
RN AEEGETESEHRENRBEEE
EIFR#EI TS - FBALHAHPRBXESN - &
PAHEAOER T —HFETRE - B
HERERERRABRALCLEUNE D
WEE  NEEERAREEEMNRE - U
ERKIRRAS ~ I EE IR MR T EEBH
EREHE - BOMEE  BEANEOHEE
AIAEEEREFINERER - HTesco
HREBELE  BAEAKRESREANNGR
Wi MREIREE  BEREER €8
HEEBLEFBEREESDERBENEBEH
B URBRBEEFPHEE  ZHFAKEKRE
AREBEENZEETEFNER -

BRI - AEBHERRRNEES - 0
BEmE EXEREHNE  UWEEG-F
—AFLEFFEAEROEREER © I
AEBHN _ZE-DFRERESHNFER
[E - MEBn HAKES KRS SRS
RN BB SERE [V+ B EREPE - 2T
BAENRR YRHEZEREEEZR
A 2 M85 b 0 B FR S B & o

FEHE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

With the vision of becoming a world renowned retail and consumer
goods company, the Group is undertaking the strategy of “market
leadership with outstanding brands, operational excellence and
synergies among its businesses”.

On the retail front, during the year under review, the division’s
turnover grew by 15.1% with over 4,800 stores as its national
footprint was further consolidated after the incorporation of
Tesco stores in China. Due to extended frugality measures
and the rapid rise of e-commerce, the share of both business
and government consumption of retail sales at physical stores
decreased, while both family and personal consumption became
increasingly important. Consumers are more focused on quality
as well as variety of choice. To cope with such fast changes in the
operating environment, the Group reviewed the performance of
its retail stores and the returns of the assets on hand, identifying
some unsatisfactory ones. Most of these stores and assets will
be rationalized in 2015. We will concentrate the resources on
those assets which show potential for improvement in operational
efficiency. Resources will also be spent on IT development, which
will save costs, strengthen internal management and lead to
progress in the division’s omni-channels. IT development will also
offer a better customer experience to consumers. The formation of
the Joint Venture with Tesco is set to create ample synergies and
ensure the sound development of the division’s global sourcing,
private label products, advanced technology in the loyalty card
management and Customer Relationship Management for
stimulation of existing customers consumption. These will help us
to achieve the goal of becoming the leading multi-format retailer in
Greater China.

At the same time, the division will stress on the expansion of
smaller stores, such as supermarkets, specialist stores and
convenience stores, to match the development of the division’s
e-commerce business, which will officially be launched in the
first half of 2015. Furthermore, the net opening of hypermarkets
in 2015 will slow down. Certain existing hypermarkets will be
reduced to a smaller size and transformed into a new trade up
format called “V+” focusing on fresh produce and more spaces
available for leasing so as to better cater to the changing
consumer demand in certain regions.
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RERK  AEER _ZT-—AFHNEEEH
ERITESMEMBEEE - BiBREAI
BEAMEBARRA - ARKERERE R
— L E 5 ) B o BRI AR AN R et i S A
HE o R_FT-AFFE  bERERFEN
MHERBETES  MRAEERE - 5
Sh - BERERBRIEBEAREAB T THEXR
KM - EEPRGEEAHMER - A%
BE(CERELERN  EEEFN A
MREEXHEEMHNER

HE-Z—0OF - AEEEHEEKH
SABMiller PLCHY A EE E =+ F - W18
EMIHE—FEES  AEEMEESER
& [ 7L Snow | iEENF K AR ETH#H
ELEME—BHERE  BEMSMHELNN
24% - T & BBBEMKEEER - 28X
AFRFEEATEREEESNKBEE
Z— e WWEHBMKINES  BEaEa s
BRERD R AZBEMSMHAL - R E
LEERENMESHBEIEMARREA - K
KRB EGBEERFRTEOBERAR
EREEEERE 2 BIE TS YHEE
b REBUREAREERB @ @ BRUE/D

BES -

RMEREENERE  SRHESHAKER
BRIV R AR - B EEIRTIE
£36.6% c EmEBHEB AL Ng Fung
MBS EHEERSRETERBLENEE
e HEBTRABERE  THRGETE
EBalER RS o

R EBZENRTIAE Cestbon |F1F K ER
PR R - R RRREEE NG5G
AigE& - HEEHRAKRENR TR
Re RREBEER  HEEROIEE D
WS hHEEAME - FEBE - BEFERN
REBRRTEZABREKEERZ— - &
R A B IR TS HE B A IRR - SR TTAE
FRMABEROFZEENLRE - HB
Rl R as LA S b T 35 R L

Looking ahead, the Group’s top priority in 2015 is to improve
operational efficiency and reduce losses. Costs saved from
backoffice integration, merchandise cost efficiency from economy
of scale, unified supply chain and others will all contribute to the
turnaround. By the end of 2015, the financial system in Enterprise
Resource Planning will also be incorporated for efficiency
improvement on management, and a consultant is also working
on improving workforce efficiency. With the Chinese economy
entering into a new phase, the Group will modify its operational
model for its physical stores to strengthen its competitive edge
and accelerate the growth in asset returns for the division.

The Group’s beer division marked two decades of partnership
with SABMiller PLC in 2014. The Group’s flagship “S7E Snow”
brand was the best-selling single beer brand by volume in China
for the ninth consecutive year with a market share of approximately
24% thanks to intensifying market consolidation. The division’s
acquisition and seamless integration of Kingway Brewery, one of
the largest acquisitions in terms of production capacity in China’s
beer industry in the past five years, and the strengthening of the
Group’s foothold in southern China, have reinforced its position
in the market and led to an increase in market share, especially
in Guangdong Province. In the future, the division will continue to
strike a balance between making gains in market share and the
delivery of operating leverage. In addition, the division will optimize
its product mix to improve the division’s brand value and enhance
the competitiveness of its premium beers.

The food division, which is undergoing a transition to focus on the
nationwide expansion of its rice business, saw initial results by its
increase in overall turnover of 36.6% year-on-year. The division
will continue to achieve sustainable development through the
promotion of the “F ¥ Ng Fung” brand and will seek opportunities
to partner with industry heavyweights. The division will also explore
more benefits through synergies with the Group’s retail division.

The beverage division’s turnover and profit attributable to
shareholders surged with rapid development of the “1&
& C’estbon” purified water business. Thanks to a growing
focus on water quality among consumers, the division further
consolidated its market share in Guangdong, Hunan, Sichuan
and other provinces. During the year under review, it became one
of top three packaged water producers in China. The division
will continue to ramp up investment in marketing campaigns to
enhance the brand’s reputation and customer loyalty for both
purified water and beverage products, optimizing its synergies to
reinforce its leadership in the market.

dnoJg ay] noqy

80UBUIBAOY) 81810dI0D)

1UsWale]S [elouRUl

35 7 V4

E S

Ju

%

=]
=

Sg:



N
a

s

i

%

Corporate Governance

B %5 3R 5
Financial Statement

FARAEE
About The Group

AEBBERERAERATRDNAENE
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BMME aRiCEmg AEENTE
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TEERAZEFE - Rt A ETescord /&
MM E - FREHAEBMH BT
BENERARE  BREZREHEPHEH
BB EFBE  HTescoz A EDENB
EOEPAEENRRER  E—PMRT
EEBORFED - AEENRBEKN A
ETFEETREER - RARERERS
BEROTHNZERRWHF  ERARE
FAERBEAKEME TMELH o LTS
BEPNESERPMESHNERERT 2
FIBESRITRIT T - BRMEFE T AKE
BIMARNEBR 2 EETREE - KAKREBKD
BERVERREE BRI T2 ERER - 3948
EBARNEEMNRREEEE - BHPEM
% LHTEENZEHREREEE &5
ERARABLEDRIEREEREPTAIHER
W—IR - REETEHBERSRFESN  IF
BEODMEERERESZEEB  AXNEEN
FTA 10 & SRR R

AANERRESE  ®UROLBHEMEE
MR  EFPREBAEBHNEENX
Fo ARGEERENRMAEENEEER
BTMENERREHE - RAIBEES N
T REPRHEEENER MR - AKX
RER—RNTEEERAF -

ES1

B B
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FEHE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group has a successful track record with joint venture
partners. We believe that the Group can leverage the advanced
technology and superb experience of its partners to capture
business opportunities. In the short-to-medium term, the
profitability of the Group will be affected by (i) China’s anti-
extravagance policy, (ii) the competition from e-commence
businesses, and (iii) the integration process with Tesco’s China
operation. Although the profitability of the Group is expected to
be volatile, gradual recovery should begin to be felt in the short-
to-medium term and the Joint Venture with Tesco will assist in
the Group’s long term prospects and will further strengthen our
competitive advantage in our retail operation. The Group’s beer
business established a solid foundation over the last two decades.
The present scale was established under occasional unfavourable
macro factors such as competition, extended cool weather and
high raw material costs. The track record proves that the business
is able to maintain good balance between growth and profitability
over the medium and long term. The rice business within the food
division has also affected the Group’s results. The rice business
is still at the initial investment stage for national expansion, and
we believe that it will create value in future. Confronted with a
fast changing business environment, particularly in China’s retail
sector, the Group believes that improving asset return is vital
for its long term development. The Group will not only focus on
enhancing profitability, but will also try to release more value from
the operation and generate the best return to all stakeholders.

| would like to express my sincere appreciation, on behalf of the
Board, to all our valued shareholders, customers and business
partners for their trust and support. | would also like to take this
chance to extend my gratitude for the commitment shown by
our professional management and staff. We will continue our
endeavors in offering high-quality products and services to our
customers to become a world renowned retail and consumer
goods company.

Chen Lang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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SEREHFERKTNEEER

ERURERAFERREBENER
O Rlt AEE-BETMERS  KER
FEEEES  BORRERAREERRRK
BEREBERITEMEMRER  RENAE -
ERBAELMRARNELEZ - AEEAR
TEE_FOMRARAHEEMBERR
BERIEE

RZZT—MF - REBEFBBEITEIB250/K
i HBAB0ERDMERESKBENTT
PEER UEHRTHREEERI DS
¥ERAFRBAFRERE - F7 - AKETS
HRETETEMBER  EEAEEEIRE
HEH WA BEAERSETNERE
BIER -

he Group believes that attaining the highest corporate

governance standards is the cornerstone on which long term
and sustainable shareholder values are built. To achieve the goal,
the Group has been committed to maintaining a well-structured
communications framework that guarantees transparent and
timely disclosure with the investment community on the Group’s
major developments. Since 2002, the Group, being one of the
forerunners among Hong Kong listed companies, has been
voluntarily disclosing its quarterly financial information and
operational review.

In 2014, the Group continued to carry out thorough communications
with more than 800 analysts and fund managers in over 250
meetings, complementing regular investor presentations for results
announcements and the annual general meeting. The Group also met
with institutional investors in certain Asia countries to notify them of
the latest updates on business developments.
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AEE-HRNREBABER L8 NHiEE
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MIENEEEERTE(REEBRER)]
[ENEEERMBEE(REEBR)] - [F
EoNsEARME]  [DNEECELS
5 [REBRSEETIR [ REREEBE
1% | BCR Magazine )BT # B[ 1FERE
HEAR BB RIER R [ 2IK5058R %]
DA&EEﬁﬂ’E?—EEWZF’E%FﬁE? B [ RERQA]
REEFMARIR [ REEEHEELTAA]
ﬁlﬁ AEBEZSNRELAETAEETES

ME(FRERAHERR]  AEEREENS
EERNTHABEREE - UEEEKE

RERMESNER

ARATH R -FE R4
Fb 4 2 T B B i

& &% INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group’s efforts in fostering open communications have
continued to gain recognition. In 2014, the Group received more
than 40 awards and rankings from several renowned local and
international organizations. These included “Asia’s Best CEO
(Investor Relations)”, “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)”, “Asian
Company Secretary of the Year”, “Asia’s Best Corporate Social
Responsibility”, “Best Environmental Responsibility” and “Best
Investor Relations Company” from Corporate Governance Asia;
“Best in Sector — Consumer Staples” and “Global Top 50 2014 —
Silver” from IR Magazine; along with “Best Corporate Governance
for Listed Companies” and “Best Information Disclosure for Listed
Companies” from local newspapers and magazines. The Board of
Directors of the Group has also obtained the “Directors of The Year
Awards” from The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. The Group
will continue to implement best practices in its communications
programs to facilitate effective and mutual communications with
the investment community.

AN H R -REEIER
A S B BB

YEAR-END CLOSING PRICE AND
MARKET CAPITALIZATION OF
THE COMPANY FOR 2010-2014

EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND PER
SHARE OF THE COMPANY FOR
2010-2014
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Earnings per share (including

the effect of asset revaluation

and major disposal of non-core

assets/investment)
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RZZ—NF MEEETBEERESNER
REMEERRRGE  BERMEEXRER
MEEFE - EEEMREXNELT - &
E-E—NF+-_A=+—H  KAHK
BB 16.247T - B 36.9% @ TH{E
A8 H393.2318 7T °

FEBRERANMEAREE L RBRRENE
SEMEER - REEAEERREAEEN
X AARZE-HFEFENRSETE
BRAEK27T BT =FFEHRRK
BHEE « REBARKKER EFERHIRE
K WRKRFREIESKFUEAE
BERFE -

2014 -82.3%

2013 39.5%

2012 47.2%
2011 59.7%
2010 65.0%

-100 -80 60 -40 -20 O

In 2014, the overall performance of Hong Kong stock market
was impacted by concerns over slowing business and economic
growth in Hong Kong and China. In the overall dampened
environment, the Company’s share price dropped by 36.9% to
HK$16.24, while its market capitalization amounted to HK$39,323
million as at 31 December 2014.

The Group is dedicated to maximizing its company value and
creating sustainable returns to its shareholders. The total dividend
of the Company for 2014 amounted to HK$0.27 per share, same
as that of 2013, to remunerate the shareholders of the Group for
their support to the Group. We strive to adhere to a respectable
dividend payout level while maintaining healthy cash levels to
match with business development needs.

MsE

Note:

(1) FAEERKRESEEBNRREMESHREE
FEFROEE TREFEZREEEH -
Calculation is based on profit attributable to
shareholders excluding the effect of asset
revaluation and major disposal of non-core

assets/investments by segment.

20 40 60 80 100
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TURNOVER OF RETAIL DIVISION
OVER THE LAST THREE YEARS
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SENZEEBN T —NFHNLEE he Group’s retail division reported turnover of HK$109,500 “
% 578 #109,500,000,0007T * ==& million in 2014, representing an increase of 15.1% year-on-
—=EEI151% c REBKN -_Z—EHR  year, and recorded attributable loss of HK$873 million compared
JE k548 58 #5873,000,0007T + —E—=  to attributable profit of HK$1,000 million for 2013. Excluding I
B FE (5 F A7 #1,000,000,000 7T © G after-tax revaluation surplus and the disposal of non-core assets,
BREGHERSEEEIEZOEENZZE  the division’s attributable loss for 2014 was HK$1,359 million
% REBA-_ZT-FERNEGLEIRAAEE  compared to attributable profit of HK$734 million for 2013.
1,359,000,0007T © =% — = F FE 15 7 8 -
BB 734,000,0007T ° §
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TEEBBEE_T—OF+A=+—H
EFEMRE - ABELENE—FTEREH
RARARZE—=F+AZHAEK=ZZ—@
FRAAZTNANAEURZZT—NF=
A-+HBRBEK - TescoR HEHKH T
—NFRAZTN \BEBNEEBERREE
15 ETE 5 Bl &7 #10,981,000,0007T K 7
906,000,0007T °

EREBRBLERENE LAMBELINES
T EAEBEEBREMN—ID - AEEH
TEEBR T —NFENFERELHEE
800,000,0007T * AEEEE TEEBERER
mHATRRENES  T2REELIEHD
BEREBRKRIBANEEEHAOMNEER
He ALESHBEITEESNEHEA
EAEBELEES BREMMKR -

REEMNTEEBTEHIEHERCR
Vanguard Jil8#& 1% « [ Chinese Arts &
Crafts| ~ [# 8% CRCare] * Z&jik )5 [ K/E
VIVO | & [ K ¥ MBE Pacific Coffee ] 55 575
WK - RZZTE—UFFRK - AEBEEPRHE
KRB 4,800 fEH - P AI85% R E B
e HAR R RS -

EEERED T MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The negative impact of China’s anti-extravagance policy on
China’s retail market, the competition from e-commerce
businesses, and the financial impact arising from the initial stage of
the formation of the Group’s joint venture (the “Joint Venture”) with
Tesco PLC (“Tesco”) on 28 May 2014 continued to significantly
affect the performance of the Group’s retail segment for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Further details of the Joint Venture are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 2 October 2013
and 29 May 2014 respectively and the Company’s circular dated
25 February 2014. Turnover and attributable loss contributed by
the Tesco’s China operations since 28 May 2014 was HK$10,981
million and HK$906 million, respectively.

Against the backdrop of the current macro-economic environment
and the above circumstances, as part of the integration process,
the Group’s retail segment had made provision amounting to
approximately HK$800 million in the fourth quarter of 2014
for the closure of certain less efficient stores and stores with
poor prospects of the Joint Venture, primarily comprising of
assets impairment for those shops and compensations for early
termination of the shop leases. The Group will continue to review
the store portfolio of the retail segment during the running-in
period of the Joint Venture.

The Group’s retail division mainly consists of “ZH&X CR
Vanguard” supermarkets, “fi 2% Chinese Arts & Crafts” stores,
“#EHE CRCare” stores, “>X/& VIVO” health and beauty stores
and “KFFMYE Pacific Coffee” shops. As at the end of 2014,
the Group operated over 4,800 stores in China, of which
approximately 85% were self-operated while the rest were
franchised.

—E-mF —Eg-= B/ OR L)

2014 2013 Increased/

BEEET BYEHEBET (Decreased)

HK$ million  HK$ million %

et Turnover 109,500 95,174 15.1%

e R, (E518) Attributable profit/(loss) (873) 1,000 (187.3%)

RetFE - B\ e EBITDA

SR BN 1,279 3,726 (65.7%)
BEARZ R EEEE Capital expenditure and

new acquisitions 23,372 6,051 286.3%
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REBEFERN  BREELCEERBERN
BB PRETHY  sEAREBERE
ELRIIFE - MLEEEEENERES T
THHERSEENER  BEAZEMBEE
RIS RS - REETEEBHORIEH
EIRF T F2.6% °

AEBTEEBBRINEEZEABRRERSS
BrEMLERE  BRBEERLEZH
TescoBIfR T & XA B ) o [ g - 3894
BRI WABEER R ERETR
BIEERE - NEREFEN @ Tescon Bl R E
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BIT{Emil TERIHE  BR2EiE
BRI EEEERAE  MANEEREBEHFR
EMPIE -
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During the year under review, the market continued to experience
pressure from the sluggish domestic macro economy and the
central government’s strict enforcement of frugality. Sales of high-
end products and stored-value cards were affected. The growth
of e-commerce sales has drawn customers from physical stores,
which also helped to explain the slowdown in the overall retail
market. The Group’s retail division recorded a 2.6% year-on-year
decrease in same store sales.

Enhancing operational efficiency and improving profitability of
the Joint Venture is the top priority of the Group’s retail division.
By creating synergies through the utilization of the Group’s local
advantages and Tesco’s global retail expertise, the division aims
to strengthen profitability, foster the growth of its e-commerce
business and develop its global procurement. During the year
under review, the Group’s retail business in northern and
southern China successfully completed the integration of Tesco’s
management system respectively. At the same time, the Group
implemented various initiatives to optimize its labour structure and
hiring system, control operating costs in a
comprehensive manner and reinforce the
downsizing of its less efficient stores.
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EEERED T MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the meantime, the Group’s retail division continued to optimize
its store network and actively reviewed its product mix and
operational strategy to further enhance the division’s market
share and national influence. During the year under review, the
division established new units responsible for direct sourcing of
fresh produce and e-commerce, respectively, with the aim of
establishing a unique and diversified business leveraging synergies
through the division’s multi-format business.

It is expected that the short-to-medium term profitability of the
division would be negatively affected during the running-in period
of the Joint Venture in which the performance of the division will
be affected by the integration process. Although the profitability of
the Group is expected to be volatile, gradual recovery should begin
to be felt in the short-to-medium term. The management takes the
view that the Joint Venture will assist in the long term development
of the Group’s retail segment. Pursuant to the terms of the Joint
Venture, Tesco is required to make an injection of HK$4,325
million in aggregate for funding the Group’s restructuring cost, of
which HK$2,325 million (which has been paid by Tesco) will be
applied for general business purposes within the Joint Venture and
HK$2,000 million (HK$1,000 million of which has also been paid
by Tesco with the remaining HK$1,000 million payable in 2015)
will be used upon discretion of the management of the Group. The
management also takes the view that the business and operational
environment in the Chinese retail industry may vary in the long run.

Looking ahead, the division will focus on deepening its business
reforms to become more customer-oriented. It will also continue
to improve its operational capability in order to support its all-
channel expansion strategy. The combination of its online platform
and physical stores will establish a competitive edge, which
will in turn support growth in the division’s retail business and
will improve profitability. Meanwhile, the division will expand its
network in regions where the Group’s retail business has already
established a presence
while optimizing and
applying innovation in its
multi-format store network.
By enhancing operational
balance, efficiency and
resource allocation, the
division strives to become
the market leader in the
retail industry and to provide
better quality retail service
to Chinese customers.
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BEER

EEMBHEEER T —NFH
EXEHERLEMLREN D B BB
34,482,000,000 7T & 7% # 761,000,000 7T
DR T —=FIEIN4.5% K52 19.8% ©
REBFEERN  BEMSESEELEREY
EMHESEE  MEF=FTERHIHEHT

EIRTHRHEHRRE  FEZMEE
HH —T—=FRPNABRT  EBAE
EE RS EEHEEERBERAFKET
PR o MBFRNESHREERINES - NEK
R NFENEEEER T —=F 7
1% E4911,842,000 F 7+ - EF{T#H2HA
[ZE7E Snow | B S 25 42552 £190% ©

REBFER  BHEMEHFE—TMNE
AREBEMERENTEEEERNERA
BRBHBETRBLAEES  BiEHkE
BHAE UBAORCEREBIR T
FHHEBR LT ASFERA LRES -

he Group’s beer division reported turnover and attributable
Tprofit of HK$34,482 million and HK$761 million in 2014,
respectively, representing an increase of 4.5% and a decline of
19.3% year-on-year, respectively. During the year under review,
the overall market was sluggish as a result of the slower growth
of the macro economy. Furthermore, sales volume growth in the
third quarter was negatively affected by the cooler-than-usual
summer conditions in the middle and lower reaches of the Yangtze
River, where the hot summer in the corresponding period in 2013
drove up sales volume. This has led to a slowdown in overall sales
volumes growth for the Group’s beer division and a decline in
profitability. With the successful integration of Kingway beer, the
division’s beer sales volume increased 1% to 11,842,000 kiloliters,
of which the Group’s national “Ef£ Snow” brand accounted for
approximately 90% of the Group’s total beer sales volume.

During the year under review, faced with further intensification
of market competition, the division ramped up investment in its
promotions and marketing activities. By leveraging its centralized
procurement and economies of scale, the division further
enhanced its production efficiency and stepped up efforts in the
optimization of its product mix in order to raise the average selling
prices of its products so as to relieve pressure of rising costs.
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—EB-IF —E2-=F #E/0ED)

2014 2013 Increased/
N 2 7 BEEET BEHET (Decreased)
Beer division HK$ million  HK$ million %
[ Turnover 34,482 32,994 4.5%
JEAE 5 A Attributable profit 761 943 (19.3%)
AREHRIE BE - T E EBITDA
RE SR &R 4,353 4,415 (1.4%)
BEART RFKREEE Capital expenditure
and new acquisitions 3,079 9,343 (67.0%)

R-E—NFFE AEBEFRABLEE
BiBO5MHE B - F EE §E B #820,000,000F
I+ o

RERK - REEREEEEIHSEMRISE
Snow ] EEHEED - RITMENHEE
ERMBHE  MAHBREREE  BEM
R BRI ARBHEEZERSKR
FHAEREEE  YHEARRIER  BATS
DER - RIS BELILA -

As at the end of 2014, the Group operated more than 95 breweries
in China with an aggregate annual production capacity of over
20,000,000 kiloliters.

Looking ahead, in order to strengthen the “E7E Snow” brand’s
reputation and customer loyalty, the Group’s beer division will
continue to carry out marketing campaigns while reinforcing the
promotion of its premium beers and optimizing its product mix.
At the same time, the division will also continue to pursue and
evaluate investment opportunities in a prudent manner while
achieving organic growth as it aims to expand its market share and
to consolidate its leading market position.
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GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S BREWERIES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
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DRI ZZF — = F 1 HN136.6% &
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134,000,0007C ° —E— = FE(HEF A A
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BRAEEEER  THREREREBEES
g RE AT R

he Group’s food division reported turnover and attributable
Tprofit of HK$16,486 million and HK$13 million respectively,
representing an increase of 36.6% and a decrease of 75.5% year-
on-year, respectively. Excluding the disposal of non-core assets,
the division’s attributable loss for 2014 was HK$134 million
compared to attributable profit of HK$53 million for 2013. The
slide in the division’s profitability was mainly due to the high initial
investment and marketing expenses incurred from the expansion
of the rice business.

As for the division’s operations in Hong Kong, the selling prices
of live pigs at the end of the year were still lower than expected
despite a slight rebound in the second half of 2014 as compared to
the first half of the year. Moreover, the costs of raw materials such
as feeds remained high, putting pressure on the profitability of the
division’s livestock rearing operation. The Group will improve its
profitability by continuing to enhance feeds procurement through
stricter cost control, adjustments in inventory, and optimizing the
structure and quality of live pig procurement.
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—E-mEF -—2-= B/ ORL)
2014 2013 Increased/
BmE® BEEET BEEHET (Decreased)
Food division HK$ million  HK$ million %
Q
b e Turnover 16,486 12,069 36.6%
K E e 553 ) Attributable profit 13 53 (75.5%)
®3 KitFlE  BUE - IfE EBITDA
< o8 Fhip=Edl 404 409 (1.2%)
EARR S M EEIEE Capital expenditure
and new acquisitions 458 1,283 (64.3%)
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Meanwhile, for the Group’s meat operation in China, through
the vigorous expansion of the division’s first-tier meat wholesale
business and carved meat business, as well as an increase in
the number of specialized meat retail stores in various cities, the
division achieved substantial growth in turnover year-on-year,
which also improved the division’s profitability.

With respect to the rice business, through both acquisitions
and organic expansion into new markets, the division began to
establish a nationwide presence and achieved rapid year-on-year
sales growth. By means of adjusting its management structure
to accommodate its business growth, the division continued to
improve the reputation of “F1*¥ Ng Fung” branded rice products,
thereby expanding its market share and leading to a steady
improvement in profitability.
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RERK  AEBRQPEBEHEZIRA  Looking ahead, the Group’s food division will continue to

Wi TEIRARBEBEESR - FBik#E  concentrate on the domestic market, improve its operational

EEREM  ZBIAZ Ng Fungl@miE=E  efficiency and engage a progressive development strategy.

WE - RAFMENHEEE - #—2P]RHA  Through the promotion and marketing of “H% Ng Fung”

Bl A EEHREMBFIEE S - brand and expansion into new markets, as well as mergers
and acquisitions, the division will further enhance the scale and
profitability of its business in China.

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 V4 )

A F AR = H AR R B R [ 2 A
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BEVERAGE

CSEMNBRAREFR_ZT—EOFEM

EEXEELRELSN DR BB
9,891,000,0007T & & #237,000,0007T * ¥
—E— = F R N35.4% % 123.6% °

REBR-_ZT-—NFHNRREHER_-Z
— =% EF33% = 46,556,000 FF + £2
Z [ 188 C’estbon 4l /KiH &1 KA RFT
W RNEBEFERN  NEKE—SEERLD
FOKEBEERM MBI - WAER
% HmakmEAZLmS - EMRA
FEtRIEEES - MaFEFED - RAR -
MBERTREH BEEESESEERA
RETHREES) - BB [HFKAES -
(EMERE)MEZEMEITHE - R(EF
SR4)FEFETESEAST  REA TS
E C'estbon | EMEEEFRMNE - B
PSR -

he Group’s beverage division reported turnover and
Tattributable profit of HK$9,891 million and HK$237 million in
2014, respectively, representing increases of 35.4% and 123.6%,
respectively, as compared to 2013.

The division’s total sales volume increased by 33% year-on-year
to approximately 6,556,000 kiloliters in 2014, which was mainly
attributable to the remarkable growth in the sales volume of “1&
Z C’estbon” purified water. During the year under review, the
division further strengthened its leadership in southern China. By
focusing on its core markets in Guangdong, Hunan, and Sichuan
provinces and expanding its sales network in adjacent regions, the
division was able to reinforce its competitive edge. Meanwhile, by
means of advertisements in movies, on television and the internet,
as well as offline promotional campaigns such as sponsorship
of “World Water Day”, the “Let’s go home” microfilm as well as
product placement in the “Transformers 4” movie and others, the
division propelled the brand reputation and awareness of the “1&
Z C’estbon” brand. Such initiatives helped to boost sales for the
division.
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2014 2013 Increased/
NTES BEEET BEEHBET (Decreased)
Beverage division HK$ million  HK$ million %
] Turnover 9,891 7,305 35.4%
JEAE 5 T Attributable profit 237 106 123.6%
REPFIE - BiE - 8 EBITDA

KB HAT & 673 324 107.7%

BEARZ R EEEE Capital expenditure
and new acquisitions 787 724 8.7%
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Faced with intensified market competition in the industry, in order
to elevate reputation and product awareness during the year under
review, the division continued to invest in marketing and promotion
activities such as stepping up product promotion opportunities
leveraging Yang Kun, the spokesperson for the “ Al Fire” coffee
drink, being re-engaged to the “Voice of China” music reality show.
With the aim of sharpening the division’s market competitiveness,
the division focused on certain key cities to boost synergistic
investments in sales channels for beverage products with those of
packaged water products.

Looking ahead, the division will ramp up product research and
development and promotional campaigns to stay abreast of the
trend in the industry to meet customer demand. The division will
also optimize its marketing strategy to enhance its brand image so
as to boom its market share.
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GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S BEVERAGE PLANTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

BEVERAGE PLANTS:
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EEEHRED T MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

s at 31 December 2014, the Group’s consolidated cash and

bank balance amounted to HK$20,834 million. The Group’s
borrowings as at 31 December 2014 were HK$28,897 million with
HK$9,025 million repayable within one year, HK$19,870 million
repayable after one year but within five years and HK$2 million
repayable after five years.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the
shareholders’ funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing
was approximately at 11.6% as at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: 2.0%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars.
As at 31 December 2014, 26.1% of the Group’s cash deposit
balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, 67.4% in Renminbi and
6.5% in US dollars; whereas 70.3% of the Group’s borrowings
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and 8.2% in Renminbi and
21.5% in US dollars. The Group’s borrowings are principally on a
floating rate basis.

As the majority of the Group’s assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in functional currencies of the respective
group entity, the expected foreign currency exposure is minimal.

As at 31 December 2014, assets with a carrying value of HK$271
million (31 December 2013: HK$514 million) were pledged for bank
borrowings and notes payable.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group, excluding its associated
companies, had a staff size of around 252,000, amongst which
about 98% were employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest
were mainly in Hong Kong and overseas. Remuneration packages
are assessed in accordance with the nature of job duties, individual
performance and market trends with built-in merit components,
paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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B BA 454 MR. CHEN LANG

aged 49

was appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Company in August
2012. Mr. Chen was Chief Executive Officer (previously named as
Managing Director) of the Company from January 2009 to August
2012. He is Executive Director of the Company, Director and
Executive Vice President of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, and Director of China Resources National Corporation as
well as the Chairman of China Resources Snow Breweries (China)
Investment Co., Ltd., China Resources Ng Fung Limited and China
Resources C’estbon Kirin Beverage (Holdings) Company Limited.
He was previously the Chief Executive Officer of China Resources
Vanguard Co., Ltd., and Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of China Resources Logic Limited (now renamed as China
Resources Gas Group Limited). Prior to that, he was Chairman and
General Manager of China Resources Development and Investment
Co., Limited and was in charge of a number of substantial
investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Anhui University, China and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of San Francisco, USA.
He is currently the visiting professor of Anhui University, China
and also the part-time teacher of Master of International Business
of Fudan University, China. He joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1986 and 1989 respectively.
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Byt R Se 4 MR, LIU HONG]JI

aged 47

was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Company in August 2012. He was Vice President of the
Company from September 2009 to August 2012. Mr. Hong has
been Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Co.,
Ltd. since June 2009. Mr. Hong was Chief Operating Officer of
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd. between June 2006 and May
2009 and prior to that, he had been its Chief Financial Officer since
April 2003. In addition, Mr. Hong is the Vice Chairman of China
Chain Store & Franchise Association since November 2012. Mr.
Hong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the Hangzhou
University of Commerce (now known as Zhejiang Gongshang
University). Mr. Hong has extensive experience in financial and
corporate management. Mr. Hong joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1992 and was Assistant General
Manager of its Finance Department.

aged 54

was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company in August 2012. He was Vice President
of the Company from May 2011 to August 2012. Mr. Liu has been
Managing Director of China Resources C’estbon Beverage (China)
Co., Ltd. (previously named as China Resources C’estbon Food
& Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd./C’estbon Food & Beverage
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd./Shenzhen C’estbon Food and Drink Company
Limited) since January 1997. Mr. Liu was Marketing Director of
China Resources Snow Breweries Limited between September
2000 and January 2003. Mr. Liu had also held key positions in
two Shenzhen based enterprises. Mr. Liu majored in Industrial
Economics at the People’s University of China. He has extensive
experience in marketing and corporate management of fast moving
consumer goods especially on beverages. Mr. Liu joined China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in March 1996.
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3 RSE4: MR. DU WENMIN

aged 53

has been a Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director of the
Company since June 2009 and Company Secretary since August
2009. Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director, Non-Executive
Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited. Prior to that, he served as
the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings Ltd., which is
a company listed in Singapore and before then, he served as the
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Logic International
Holdings Ltd. (now known as China Resources Gas Group Limited).
Mr. Lai has a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University
of Western Australia and a graduate diploma in Business and
Administration from the Curtin University of Technology of Western
Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant and a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Lai
joined the Company in 2009.

aged 51

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in
September 2007, a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Land Limited in August 2007, a Non-Executive Director of China
Resources Gas Group Limited in March 2008, a Non-Executive
Director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited in August
2008, and a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited in July 2010. These companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Du is the Deputy General Manager and
Chief Human Resources Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. Mr. Du is the Director of China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Du is a Director of China Resources
Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and China Resources Double-crane
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PR S5 42 MR. WEI BIN
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Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. Du was previously the Managing Director of China
Resources Construction (Holdings) Limited and the Internal Audit
Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Du
obtained a Master’s Degree in Business and Administration from
the University of San Francisco, USA. He joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

aged 45

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in
November 2010, a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited in August 2008, a Non-Executive Director
of China Resources Gas Group Limited in November 2008, a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited in July 2010, and a Non-Executive Director of China
Resources Land Limited in October 2010. These companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Wei was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He has been appointed the Chief Financial Officer
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and is the
General Manager of its Finance Department. He is also a Director
of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
and Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd., which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and China Resources Double-
crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor’s degree in Auditing
from Zhongnan University of Economics in China and a Master’s
degree in Finance from Jinan University in China, and is a Senior
Accountant and a Senior Auditor in China. He is also a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wei joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 2001.
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B 44 MR. CHEN YING

aged 53

was appointed Executive Director of the Company in December
1994 and was re-designated as Non-Executive Director in March
2006. Mr. Yan was also appointed Executive Director of China
Resources Land Ltd. in February 1996 and was re-designated as
Non-Executive Director in February 2006. These companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Yan is the Chief Legal Officer of the China Resources
Group. He is also a supervisor of China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yan has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking
University, China and an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco, USA. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1985.

aged 44

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited in May 2012, and a
Non-Executive Director of China Resources Gas Group Limited,
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited and China
Resources Land Limited in June 2012. These companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Chen was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He is Chief Strategy Officer of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited since July 2013 and the General
Manager of Strategy Management Department since October
2011. He is also a Director of China Resources Double-crane
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. and China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He has worked as Project Engineer,
Project Manager and Manager of Procurement Department and
Executive Director of China Resources Construction (Holdings)
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FBE4E MR.WANG YAN
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Company Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, from
September 1993 to March 2002. He was also the Managing
Director of China Resources Land (Beijing) Limited from March
2002 to October 2011 and a Director of China Resources Land
Limited from March 2003 to February 2006. Mr. Chen obtained a
Bachelor’s degree of Architectural Management from the Tsinghua
University, China in 1993 and a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from University of Oxford, the United Kingdom, in
2007. Mr. Chen joined China Resources Group in 1993.

aged 43

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
in August 2014. Mr. Wang joined China Resources National
Corporation in July 1994. He worked for China Resources
Petrochems (Group) Company Limited from 2000 to 2006. Mr.
Wang was appointed as a Director of China Resources Gas Limited
in November 2005. He was a Deputy General Manager of China
Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited from September 2007 to April
2012. He was appointed as a Deputy General Manager of Internal
Audit Department of China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. in April
2012, and the Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Co. Ltd., China Resources Land Ltd., China Resources
Cement Holdings Ltd. and China Resources Gas Group Ltd. in
August 2014. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
from the Finance and Accounting Department, Capital University
of Economics and Business, a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of South Australia and is a qualified PRC
Certified Accountant.
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222 ¥+ DR. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC

aged 61

has been a Director of the Company since 1988. He is also a
Director and Chairman of Sino Resources and Energy Holdings
Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited, Sino Mining
Investments Limited and a Director of China & Overseas Resources
Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies
degree from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United
Kingdom.

FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP,
aged 61

has been a Director of the Company since March 2003. He
is Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), member of the Twelve National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and former member of the Legislative Council of the
Hong Kong SAR. Dr. Li holds directorships in a number of listed
companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng
Bank Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Transport International Holdings Limited, Wong’s International
(Holdings) Limited, and RoadShow Holdings Limited. Dr. Li was a
Director of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
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Wi me a4 DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES
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ERARRARELZFEKEBRAR(HRBER
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Asset Management Limited ( &7 in 5 A
A ZRELIERITES - tBE = FUURETE
EMEM ETRARBEEERINEEMER
REIRBBEEBHEBRD A (FIBHTEM
(B&)BRAR) -

GBS, OBE, JP, aged 65

has been a Director of the Company since November 2005. Dr.
Cheng is a practicing solicitor and the senior partner of Messrs.
P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council
of Hong Kong. He is the founder chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in K.
Wah International Holdings Limited, China Mobile Limited, Towngas
China Company Limited, Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited
and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, all being public
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of ARA Asset Management Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. His other
directorships in public listed companies in Hong Kong in the last
3 years include Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
Hong Kong Television Network Limited (formerly known as City
Telecom (H.K.) Limited).
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WA S84 MR. STU KWING CHUE, GORDON

GBS, JP, aged 50

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He
is the Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings
Limited and Asia Insurance Company Limited. He also acts as
an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong
Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community,
Mr. Chan also serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China and a
member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He is
also a former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited,
City e-Solutions Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan
was a Director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited and New
Heritage Holdings Limited.

GBS, CBE, JP, aged 69

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He
had been a career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring
from the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary,
Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high
ranking government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic
Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and
eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for Planning,
Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and
two of its subsidiaries, and was an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Television Broadcasts Limited.
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aged 49

was appointed as Senior Vice President of the Company in
November 2013. He was Vice President of the Company from May
2011 to October 2013. Mr. Wang has been the Chief Executive
Officer of China Resources Ng Fung Limited since 2011. He was
previously the Senior Vice President of China Resources Vanguard
Co., Ltd. He joined China Resources National Corporation in 1988.
Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Bachelor’s
degree in Management Science from the University of Science and
Technology of China, as well as a Master’s degree in Engineering
from Tsinghua University. He has extensive experience in strategic
planning and corporate management.

aged 54

was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources
Officer of the Company in January 2014. He was Deputy Chief
Human Resources Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited from August 2010 to December 2013. Prior to joining
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, he was Director of
Corporate Transformation and Transactions at Hewitt Associates,
General Manager at Mercer North China, Chief Solutions Officer
and Director of M&A Consulting at Mercer China. He was also
Principal at Mercer Human Resources Consulting in New York.
Prior to that, Dr. Wang was a Senior Analyst at National Economic
Research Associates (New York) and Consultant at the World
Bank in Washington DC. Dr. Wang holds a PhD in Economics from
Northwestern University in the US and an MS degree from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

aged 58

has been appointed as Vice President of the Company since
November 2010. He was an Executive Director of the Company
from January 2000 to November 2010, and Deputy Managing
Director from March 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Wang is a
Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
China Resources National Corporation. He is also an Executive
Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is
responsible for the entire operation of the Group’s beer division.
Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the People’s
University of China. He has previously worked in the China National
Economic Committee and held key management positions in a
Shenzhen based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined China Resources
National Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1994.
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Risk Identification

he Board believes that risk management is an integral part of

corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
management will facilitate the Group’s business development and
operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite, maintaining an
optimal risk level and more importantly, proactively responding to
risks. It therefore helps protect shareholder value and safeguard
the Group’s reputation. Through putting in place proper risk
management control over key businesses and carrying out regular
reviews and updates, the Group strives to reduce the likelihood
and the effect of risks before they occur, and deal with problems
effectively when they arise. While the Group’s risk management
is the responsibility of every management team member and is
embedded in the daily operation of every business unit, our risk
management process is based on a decentralized model with a
centralized monitoring system. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
a streamlined risk management process to identify, analyze and
mitigate various risks in an efficient and effective manner.

Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis

DT ER AR R R\ B B 5% I B YA
—_—s
Risk Analysis Risk Monitoring &

& Mitigation Performance Evaluation
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¥R EE CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

We identify and assess risks both at the Group and individual
business unit levels, and incorporate risk management into
our business planning. At the end of each year, each business
unit undertakes a review of potential risks which fall within their
respective business and operation area. The business unit then
performs risk reviews including risk mapping and evaluation of
their probability of occurrence and impact. Identified risks are
reported together with the explanation of its nature and proposed
risk management strategies to the Group during the business plan
review session at the beginning of each year. In addition to the
annual exercise, our regular reporting system of each business unit
also facilitates ongoing risk identification and the reporting of risks.

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible
for analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential
impact. Priority will be given to risks with high probability and
serious negative impact. The risk owner then designs appropriate
procedures and actions for risk mitigation and acts accordingly.
Implementation cost is also taken into account when devising
the action plan. During the implementation, we also emphasize
the balance of risks and benefits to ensure long term business
success.

After risk identification, analysis and mitigation, evaluation
reports are submitted to the Group through the regular reporting
mechanism. To prevent the same risks from occurring again,
preventive actions and procedures to improve operational
efficiency are also incorporated into the internal control system. In
addition, our Internal Audit Department undertakes independent
reviews on internal control system, and our management is
responsible for ensuring appropriate actions which are taken to
rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports
within a reasonable period of time.
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s one of the leading consumer goods companies in China,

the Group has always been committed to its mission of
“Better Life Together”. Leveraging the competitive advantages
and extensive network of its businesses — retail, beer, food and
beverage — the Group endeavors to fulfil its corporate social
responsibilities and to strive for sustainable development. In turn,
the Group seeks to incorporate the ideas into the four business
units to maximize its social value and enhance its corporate
reputation. Placing utmost emphasis on communications relating
to corporate social responsibility, we published our Corporate
Social Responsibility Report 2013 during the year under review. We
continuously optimize our corporate social responsibility strategy
and mechanism to respond to stakeholder expectations.

The Group is committed to demonstrating its care for the
community through active participation in community services and
social welfare activities, offering helping hands to those in need in
various ways. We encourage our staff, customers and suppliers
to participate in various social welfare services such as cultural
conservation, poverty relief and disaster relief, and to join our
efforts in promoting community development and giving back to
our society.

dnoJg ay] noqy

slepjoyeieys InQ oL

o
o
=
°
s}
=
(Y
=
[
[
<]
<
[}
=
S
o
>
o
®

1UsWale]S [elouRUl

] 36 7 V4 )

B OB L B

>
e
U
¢

Sg:



FARAEE
About The Group

HERMHRR
To Our Shareholders

B 75 R &

Financial Statement

]
o
c
©
c
=
[
>
<]

(O]
%]

-
©
i
o
Q
=
[<]

o

64

#MAI% 5278 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

..;{.l.

NIBEH

ZTE—MFEXNA AEKEBEDHBEEERSEE
Rainbow Foundation 22817 # [ 4 a5 & 18 3% | &
ST EHEGCEXAEERDAR - BIE
RERKREEE  BHRNAMEREZZE -
AEBBREBRIN  SEIRRBREERFZS
B W ARE-RIREFERFE—F  RE
MEst E—RARBESFENLD - Bt
REBLREZEE -

AN BFIEEGR2EGARER(RE)E
RARIZERBREN [ERFE/NHEIER - B
BEMBIEBEH  BELESH(LNER
B KRS EMERREEGNE ERESF
ER - &iHENENEELETHEGERET
BEER - I ROEEXBEEABEFE/)
HEREERLOEER  YANBERMTER
HEBEMRE  KNAEWEREMHEBMNTE
PERE TR FENANRENES
REBBRESK  REREENZTECERR
HEM  BRAEHZETREWN  LHEMHF
RESZERAEFBRREREHEREA -

%342 E5E CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

.

AEETERBAEEEIRIES N EGHBR IBEST -
Chen Lang, Chairman of the Group led the staff and their families to
participate “Celebration of Life” charity walkathon.

Community Services

In June 2014, the Group became a sponsor of the “Celebration
of Life” charity walkathon, which was organized by Hong Kong
charity group, Rainbow Foundation, to raise money for orphans,
young cancer patients and children from poor, single-parent and
troubled families. Apart from cash donations, the Group rallied
its employees and their family members to participate and walk
around Ma Wan Island in Hong Kong with underprivileged children.
This allowed our staff to not only show their care, but also learn
about the historical sites and culture of Ma Wan, as well as the
importance of cultural conservation.

In addition, the Group continued to actively participate in the
China Resources Hope Town project, an initiative organized by our
parent company, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. It
aims to boost the living standards of local farmers, leveraging the
advantage of the uniqueness and diversity of our businesses.
During the year under review, the Group made
significant progress in improving production and
operations at various Hope Towns. For example,

our food division contributed to the development

of the core farming areas together with chicken
farms in Baise, Guangxi Province, which generated
over 4,000 job opportunities for local farmers.
The Hope Town in Xibaipo, Hebei Province has
commenced operations and hosts the largest local chicken
farm, which has the most advanced standardized facilities,
producing 150,000 eggs per day. It has effectively boosted
the employment and income levels of local farmers.
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The beer division became the only brewery sponsor of
Beijing’s bid for the 2022 Winter Olympics.

During the year under review, the Group’s beer division became
the only brewery sponsor of Beijing’s bid for the 2022 Winter
Olympics. With its strong brand recognition and influence, the
division’s support for the bid will help bring Chinese culture to the
international stage.

The Group continued to support the needs of the elderly. For single
seniors, we actively participated in voluntary activities in various
regions where we have operations. The retail division joined hands
with Hope Worldwide at its 18th “Volunteers for Seniors Day”,
with various “FEEE R CR Vanguard” supermarket stores forming
volunteer teams and delivering “Lucky Bags” to seniors in the

community.

Our continued efforts in a diverse range of community work have
earned us wide recognition. The Group’s “* B &% CR Vanguard”
supermarket chain was presented the “10 Years Plus Caring
Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service, while
“F & CRCare” and “AFFMBE Pacific Coffee” have also been

named a “Caring Company” for many consecutive years.
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The Group responded to the government's call for immediate support in the

%342 E5E CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Education

Youth and children are the bedrock of our society’s development,
and education is one of the key thrusts of our corporate social
responsibility programs. The year 2014 marked the eighth
consecutive year in which the Group’s beverage division organized
the “China Resources C’estbon 100 Libraries Program”. Under the
theme of “1+1, Books for Love”, the program continued to build
libraries in primary and secondary schools in impoverished areas
lacking educational resources. In addition, the Group collaborated
with the media to launch the “100 Reading Lists” program to
encourage the general public to recommend books for collection.
The division held approximately 3,000 books donation activities
and collected approximately 600,000 books. As
at the end of 2014, the division established 132
libraries in 18 provinces
or cities across the

country, enabling over
one million youth and
children to benefit

from the program.

el [ERREEESETE N 1+1 BXE |BEE -
“China Resources C’estbon 100 Libraries Program” has
a theme of “1+1, Books for Love”.

During the year under
review, China experienced
several major natural
disasters. The Group
responded actively to
the government’s call for
immediate support in the
aftermath of disasters by
deploying resources to
the affected areas. Our
beverage division donated
approximately 6,000
boxes of “l&E C’estbon”
purified water throughout
the year. In July 2014,
Super Typhoon Rammasun
hit western Guangdong and Guangxi provinces and the coast of
Hainan Island, causing major destruction. Our retail business quickly
transported drinking water, cooking oil, rice, noodles and other
supplies to meet the basic needs of the disaster victims.
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Cultural Conservation

The Group is committed to cultural conservation to preserve and
raise awareness of ancient Chinese architecture and heritage.
Since 2008, our beer division has partnered with The School of
Architecture at Tsinghua University to organize the “Popularization
and Inheritance — China’s Ancient Buildings Series” program with
a total investment of more than RMB30 million. As at the end of
2014, the program published six sets of 36 books on ancient
architecture to further boost public knowledge of ancient Chinese
architecture. In addition, the Group organized the successful
sixth “SNOW Draft Beer — Photo Competition on Chinese Ancient
Buildings”, which attracted 1.36 million participants who
submitted over 2.38 million photos. The event has become
the largest photo competition in China and built a valuable
record of ancient Chinese buildings. The project has not
only successfully drawn local and global attention to the
conservation of China’s ancient buildings and heritage
preservation, but also popularized ancient Chinese
architecture knowledge by a large extent.

W emEBEREARSRAL  FEARERVAR]
 RATERARENELES -

The beer division organized the sixth “SNOW Draft Beer
- Photo Competition on Chinese Ancient Buildings”,
the largest photo competition in China.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to minimize the impact its business operations
pose to the environment, and implements policies on environmental
management and energy conservation. By organizing and
supporting various environmental protection activities, the Group
promotes awareness of environmental protection among its
customers, suppliers and society. The Group engages participants
from different walks of life with the aim of preserving the Earth’s
precious resources and creating a greener environment.

Energy Conservation and Waste Reduction

During the year under review, the Group’s retail division promoted
a series of measures to reduce energy consumption. For
example, technological upgrades for its central air-conditioning
and lighting systems, as well as the introduction of a cold chain
remote monitoring system, have not only saved energy, but also
improved operational efficiency. In 2014, the beer division invested
approximately RMB27 million in such efforts, with over 30 energy-
conserving and emission-reducing projects underway, and the
division has put together a set of standards for energy conservation
and emissions reduction that are much stricter than the national or
local standards.
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The food division continued to upgrade its production equipment
and technology, which included establishing waste-water
processing facilities at its new rearing sites, refining dust
precipitators and eliminating coal-burning boilers to reduce
waste-water, dust pollution and sulfur dioxide emissions. As for
the beverage division, over 30 large scale projects on energy
conservation and waste reduction were implemented. These moves
led to reduced consumption of water, electricity and coal by nearly
two million tons, 690,000 watts and 60 tons respectively.

Environmental Protection Campaigns

Apart from energy conservation and waste reduction, the Group
continued to promote community environmental protection
activities to raise public awareness. Under the theme of “Beautiful
Life”, the retail division participated in the WWF’s “Earth Hour”
campaign for the sixth consecutive year by turning off one-third of
the lights at all of its stores.

ZEEBUTXBLEE | BEE  ARFRAEIANRRED -

— L T YNk #M- n-‘mﬂ Under the theme of “Beautiful Life”, the retail division promoted various

community environmental protection activities.
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With environmental protection gaining traction, public awareness
has been growing with regard to water pollution and protection.
From September to November in 2014, the beverage division
supported the “Water Fairy Tales” picture drawing campaign
organized by China Top Brands magazine. With open-ended
questions in the fairy tales, the campaign invited children to
draw pictures offering solutions for five scenarios involving river
pollution, red tides, shrinking lakes, domestic water overuse
and deteriorating underground water levels. The event received
hundreds of painting from children in various regions and has
successfully raised awareness of water issues among children and
other members of society.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group has emphasized its people are the most valuable asset
in driving successful business growth. In view of this, the Group
takes an active interest in its employees’ physical and mental
health, and strives to help them achieve a work-life balance.
Through various measures, the Group strives to provide a safe
and harmonious working environment, which includes establishing
multiple communication channels to encourage interaction
between management and staff. In addition, we continue to offer
training and development opportunities to boost the Group’s
competitiveness and productivity.
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In 2014, the retail division’s “CR Vanguard Institute” launched a
three-year management trainee program which has successfully
prepared management trainees for middle manager posts, and
built a solid foundation for future successors to the Group’s senior
management. Meanwhile, the food division has integrated lean
management concepts into the training courses and improved
its employees’ leadership and organizational skills to keep pace
with business development. As for the beer division,
it actively offered training opportunities to more than
7,000 employees at all levels of the workforce.

[Z#HERBKR BT=GCEBZIETH -
“CR Vanguard Institute” launched a three year management
trainee program.

Staff Care

The Group continued to implement measures to strengthen its staff
care. In the third quarter in 2014, the retail division launched the
"Fresh Produce Partnership" program, which features the idea of
surplus earnings sharing. The fresh produce department staff can
share surplus earnings from the division if they are able to meet
their sales goals. This will enable the division to achieve its earnings
target while significantly raising employee income. Meanwhile,
the Group is committed to establishing a sound communication
system to gain a better understanding of the needs and demands
of its employees, and which lets them truly feel the warmth and
care of the division. This, in turn, would raise staff morale and their
sense of belonging. The food division, on the other hand, provides
regular health checks to its staff, increasing support to its front-line
employees and relieving their stress. In addition to creating a friendly
and harmonious working environment and strengthening the bonds
between the staff, the division has organized various recreational
activities and presented
festive gifts to the
employees. Further, all
divisions have set up
their own charity funds
to help staff who are in
need or have illnesses,
building solidarity at the
work place.

AEERETHABREEEE -
BEETIHURE -
The Group has emphasized its

people are the most valuable asset
and takes an active interest in its
employees’ physical and mental
health.
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The food division is fully committed to offering
customers safe, healthy and convenient products.
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FOOD SAFETY AND PRODUCT QUALITY

In response to growing public awareness of food safety and
product quality, the Group requires all its business units to meet
all relevant quality indicators. We also spare no effort in providing
products and services of the highest quality to maintain the
Group’s brand reputation.

The Group’s food division is fully committed to offering customers
safe, healthy and convenient products, by controlling the
production process with standards that comply with 1ISO22000,
ISO9001, Hazard Analysis & Critical Control Points (HACCP)
and Good Agricultural Practices (GAP). The beer division
has established a Raw Material
Procurement Monitoring Group to
ensure product quality and enhance
quality extension management. The
Group manages risk and quality from
the source, and strictly monitors the
entire production process,
from the place of origin to
processing.

Apart from these initiatives,
to address consumer
concerns on food safety,
in March 2014 the retail
division invited SGS, a
renowned international conglomerate inspection organization,
to launch the “You Pick | Check” event in Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province. Local consumers were invited to pick any product at “#
JHEE X CR Vanguard” supermarkets for on-site examination, with a
100% pass rate for the selected products. Furthermore, the annual
“Food Safety Month” was launched at “ZEE% CR Vanguard”
supermarkets nationwide. During the event period, the back-end
operations and origin of products at supermarkets were shown
to the public to highlight every detail of the division’s food safety
measures. Food and health specialists were also invited to answer
customers’ questions on food safety.

i

During the year under review, the retail division won the “Seven
Star Award for Outstanding Contributions to Food Safety & Public
Health - Social Responsibility” co-organized by China Business
News and Ecolab Inc. This is the most prestigious award in China’s
food industry and recognizes the Group’s contributions to food
safety, public health and social responsibility, and also reflects the
society’s affirmation and recognition of the Group’s continuous
efforts in food safety.



¥4 EEE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

REREREER  AREREETEEBYLA
BRENHEEEENNEES - Pl TE
EHEHHHERETEERSNE  LHE
B E A H R EEERKOEMRAE THE
&1 AHEREERIRBKE -

AEENRMEBTHEBCHERERE  H
FARKEBH2EHEEMETERESR - I
REREBSAHE HRELETAEXMEE
EEREMHMZEAE - I RREBE
KHEREBREITRE  BERRLEEHS)ERE
BERTE HRNTENHEHERNKE  HE
ARG ERBEILAE -

N BB Sk 5 BBE
SHHEE - B He s
NAERABEDL
HY A& T8 2 o 18
W BBEL
[B] 45 3 B B TR K
MEEEBRN
B AREE
mERLE - E
—H R [SE
Snow | I f #) &
FREE - R
E¥BRLEME
FREaHE B
kEARFRME
EELXA LIRS
N BAEEBERER
BEREE  TH#T
RAERMBRELE -

&R - ARRF
r SR UGE - B

=z
=
=
=l
N

H &
BmED

paNy
(=)

7

AEBNELEEGMRBFESINERANS
F R _TTRFE_T—VF  AEFHET
K[ P # Chinese Arts & Crafts |54 + &2 A&
EXRTEECERY [BNERTEIEEQRA
Az [2FHERBTER]  SELEERA
TRERRFERT -

To ensure the quality of its products, the Group has established
rigorous internal supply chain management guidelines for all its
business units. For example, the retail division regularly inspects
its suppliers’ production sites, and issues the “CR Vanguard OEM
Certified Factory Certificate” to validate suppliers as a mark of their
service quality.

The Group’s food division continued to strengthen its supply
chain management, with its rice business conducting site visits to
national supply bases. It adopted a system to select rice of superior
quality and eliminate those with inferior quality, establishing
effective quality control at the point of origin to ensure the safety
and reliability of the materials. Furthermore, our beverage division
requires its suppliers to comply with Environmental, Health and
Safety (EHS) management system regulations. Those that do not
meet the standards must show improvement or may otherwise be
terminated.

The Group has always been
committed to pursuing outstanding
management, and has established
a customer-oriented business
philosophy. To improve the quality
of its products, the beer division
improved the bottle recycling
process and production process,
further raising customer satisfaction
of “E1E Snow” beer. As for the food
division, a specialized customer
service hotline has been set up
to increase customer satisfaction
by providing not only professional
advice and services, but also
excellent after-sales services. The
division also continues to improve the quality of products and
services by conducting comprehensive analysis on a regular basis.

The Group’s high-quality products and services continued to be
recognized by the industry. From 2005 to 2014, “f % Chinese
Arts & Crafts" was named the “Service Retailers of the Year” in
the department store category for ten consecutive years in the
annual "Mystery Shopper Program" organized by Hong Kong Retail
Management Association. Its outstanding service and brand image
have won accolades from the community.
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t is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid

corporate governance framework is essential to the successful
growth of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder
value. The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles of
corporate governance emphasising a quality Board, accountability
to all stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual which was revised
on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010 and 21 March 2012,
incorporates almost all the Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and includes
the implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual
can be downloaded from our website and copies are available on
request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, save and
except the following:

In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive directors are not appointed for a fixed term. The Board
does not believe in any arbitrary term of office. The current
arrangement will give the Company sufficient flexibility to organize
the composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group.
Further, the Articles of Association of the Company requires that
one third of the directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire each year and every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
directors to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since
their election or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-
election.

In respect of Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Board did
not have a policy concerning diversity of Board members but the
Board is actively considering the adoption of the relevant policy.

In respect of Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company
has not provided all members of the Board with monthly updates to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties. However, the Company has based on business situation,
provided to the Board from time to time, updated business
information to enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties.
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In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company
did not have formal letters of appointment for directors. However,
the directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company. In addition, the directors are required to refer
to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors”, and,
if applicable, “Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing
their duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company.
Besides, the directors are required to comply with the requirements
under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report
is intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate
governance practices of the Company and their development
throughout the reporting year and to invite our shareholders’ views
thereon.

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s
affairs. The directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance with
their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their
decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the
Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

0. Review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final
dividend and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code, and in this
regard the duties of the Board shall include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;
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(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as referred to
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

° Approval of the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company;

° Review the measures that have been taken by the Company
to comply with the new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622)
which was in force on 3 March 2014; and

° Discuss the direction of the policy concerning diversity of
Board members.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts
of each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. Since November 2002, to enable the shareholders to
appraise the operations and performance of the Group, the Group
has been releasing quarterly financial and operational review.
The financial statements are prepared and presented to enable
a clear and balanced assessment of the financial position of the
Group. Regular management reports on the financial position and
prospects of each business unit of the Group are reviewed by the
Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2014, and up to the date
of this Report, there was the following changes to the membership
of the Board:

Mr. Huang Daoguo retired as Non-Executive Director, and Mr.
Wang Yan appointed as Non-Executive Director on 13 August
2014.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 14 directors,
including four executive directors (which contain the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer),
five non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 51 to 60 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our
website. The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of
the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. Throughout the year of 2014, the Company
complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules by
maintaining the proportion of its independent non-executive
directors to at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme
for its newly appointed directors. Continuing development and
information are provided to the directors to keep them abreast
of the latest developments involving the Group’s businesses and
operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition
of skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company. Appointments are first considered
by the Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for decision.

All directors (including executive and non-executive directors) are
not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any
arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility
to organise the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis. The Articles of Association of the Company require that
one third of the directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire each year. The directors who are required to
retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the
year and those who have been longest in office since their election
or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

During the year of 2014, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. Chen Lang and Mr. Hong Jie held the position of
Chief Executive Officer. The segregation of duties of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Mr. Chen Lang, the Chairman has attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2014. The Chief Financial
Officer and either the chairman or at least one member of the
Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nomination
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BFEREG  BEREXQBHRREEERNE
B BRERBUNEE(EREESRREE
FIRBRBFREG EABRAZERES - SN
BEHNETROR - WEFNETRRNFA
BREFENKE LFRE -
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Committee attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company. Separate
resolution was proposed at the annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including re-election of each retiring
director and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed

procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.

§$ BERLBRERERGH(RHEETR

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year

FARAEE
About The Group

F—R) BEAEENVERE - BEHEE  at approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial
Sy EEedheBRAEMEH U RERE  performance of the Group. Between these regular meetings, the
BEAEB(THIMBUWESHTE) REMEE  Board meets to discuss and consider major issues (whether or not
FEESEHATHNET - BEEE W EHE  required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions when

o EBEFROFVURAZEEEANSZBA
MR e@E B EOSRET RS A HE NEMH
ERXM - FRAFEMER  THEFERG
TREMENS - 1IN EFHHARERS
FERRDEMAREENINBLERESR -

Board decisions are required. With respect to regular meetings of
the Board, directors usually receive at least 14 days prior written
notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting Board
papers no less than 3 days prior to the meeting. With respect to
other meetings called, directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The directors
have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the directors.

EgxeN T —NEHLZHENEH(BIEEM  During the year of 2014, 8 meetings (including meetings by way
RER) BEFEN_ZT-NFHEFEEEEE  of circulation of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The
FFrBELZEeSHMNFBIHR TR attendance of the directors at Board meetings and principal Board

o
[0}
ke)
& ©
]
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>
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°

committee meetings held in 2014 is set out in the table below:

(]
[¢)
[
E #1723 Executive Directors
% BEA%EE  Mr Chenlang 17 44 00 44 23/23 53/53
0] EAEE Mr Hong Jie 0/1 44000 44 23/23 34/53
< BEELE  Mr. LiuHongj 0/1 4400 44 23/23
s WRIELE  Mr. Lai NiHium, Frank 17 4400 44 23/23 53/53 202
[e]
© #2178 Non-Executive Directors
HXREE  Mr. DuWenmin 0/ 3400 44
BEAE M. WeiBin 0/1 2400 44
AREE Mr. Yan Biao 0/ 4400 44
RE%E M. ChenYing 0/1 o4 00 44
TERAED M. Wang Yan!! 0/0 22 00 1/
BEMEED  Mr. Huang Daoguo? 0/1 22 00 22
B35 % Independent Non-Executive Directors
= EAZEAL  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh n 4400 44 4/4 202 202
2 FREET  Dr. i Ka Cheung, Eric 0/ 4400 44 4/4 202 202
2 HEEEL  Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 01 3400 44 3/4 112
% & BEBEL  Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan i 4400 44 3/4 1/2
;ﬁ g BMELE  Mr. SiuKwing Chue, Gordon 17 44000 44 202 202
C
£ —S-mEENHERY

Total number of meetings held in 2014 1 8 4 2 230 53¢ 2
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BT
Notes:
R: 7 H1€ 3% Regular Meeting
S: F5 51 € % Special Meeting

W:  EWERFEZE Written Resolutions

(1) FTEAERZERIFNITES  R-E—HENAT=ZBER -
Mr. Wang Yan appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 13 August 2014.

2 EEBERLERDFRTEF R-_T-WFNAT=A%ER-

Mr. Huang Daoguo retired as Non-Executive Director, with effect from 13 August 2014.

) “E-MEEZRTEEERE  2HBUEMAZERARB -
All of the Executive Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions in 2014.

(@) —E-NFEZBBEEERE  HRTURAERFAET  HBR=THOAAEWARRLABBG -
Thirty-four of the Finance Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions and nineteen of the Finance Committee
resolutions were passed by way of physical meeting in 2014.

RENEREBTAUGRNEALLR  2RES
ELEBSEEXER  FRUBPHEMBREK
B URREEETABEZEEARIAME
ZERATHESSEHER -

ARREREEFREFERI REERRFS -

BANEEZESHESEERENA LR
RIBEEEZERIEERELZEEEN - AR
AR AR NERRERES Z A
F R BRRE -

PRESHRSBH2ESETERR  HAOH
K EEREAF c RARIDHEBEARERK
HEBZzENEEEMCHEEN TES -

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development program for directors.

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Company also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skill.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has sent reading materials to directors on
regulatory updates or information relevant to the Company or its
business.
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ARFICEEZBESINFARIFERTRSR
RIFIIZ428% - BRAFBIIEN T -

$,17# = Executive Directors
BREASCHE Mr. Chen Lang
HEREE Mr. Hong Jie

B ESE Mr. Liu Hongji
RS Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

FE#H 1TESE Non-Executive Directors
MXR%4E  Mr. DuWenmin

B kA Mr. Wei Bin

[ 5 A& Mr. Yan Biao

BRIESE4 Mr. Chen Ying

FTERE Mr. Wang Yan

1 EERRE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development trainings during the year.
Details of which are set out in below table:

SSSS
AN YN

AN N NN
ANANANEN

Bk ITESE Independent Non-Executive Directors

HAESL A Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
R Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
BEEEL  Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
PRE BS54 Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
BMFE%AE Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

AN N NN
AN N NN

R

HAEETGNEMNRKREABAKESIRERA
REWMEE - BEFTROTHIABETEET
e

@ ZEE-EFEENITTRAMENZES
WITARBE THERE TENERES
BREATEZES MBEES BRZE
g REZBEGLFMEES - JIRHRIT
ZE® BHRZET RAZEERHH
ZEERANBE - Vet RAKMNBER
EHEHENEEE TS - FE L#
RARB R - ARER

b) BEERTE -ARREBHNEEERIE
RHEFEATERE  MEFRTERA
MEEEEE X

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are
delegated as follows:

(@) Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions
of the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee which set out,
among other things, the duties, functions and composition of
these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available
on the Company’s website;

(b)  Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board; and
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) BEEEBAE-ETHIREENEEER
MTFEEFEHBRATERE TRALR
ANSEERAERE -

RZE-—NE+ZA=+—H REEEEXK
ERRUABLFNTEE(AIERERLE(E
B) FREEL REBEERBARELEE)
M- TEE(RLERE) REERE
MBEEERNEETINERE - ABNRMAEK -
WHTRBARIELZR  URFHREES
MERMEREAER - REZBENEES
RREFGERIBTIENRTIARM - 58312
FLEEGRAERIEREFNBEEEC N -F
——F=ZA-t+— B A LERBERME
RN EE - AHER -

HE_Z-—MF+-_A=+t—HIFE &S
ZESLAR—RERLBB - REERE

REZBEENTERBERNESSIEL TS

s ZEFERAERINTE=S-

s  WBEEFEWRE RERMES -

R-F-—NE+-_A=+—H HFMHZES
REBREEEIIFNTES (BIRMAELE
(XF)  BEAERLE  FREFLREREE
) - FMEZBEeNBERRMARRERAEE
EREREBABNFHBRLAEABNESS
REEZ  RERFERME LR N EEH
BT URREREENSEERASE
AIEHMTRE - JIRFNERERERTIERRF
HBESEER T ——_F=A=-+—B{EH
EFT - S EERBE P R AR R AL - ARE
B e

EXLREBEEABNGTH  D2REARR
HBE  AEBES  ERTANALAFN
FMEEMETE - EFEREETODZFREEE
BEARRMIELNES ZH -

(c)  Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate
and operating management are delegated to senior
management of the Company within the parameters as
specified by the Board.

As at 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang
Tai Ninh (chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut
Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank. The duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendation after such review
and to assess the suitability and qualification of any proposed
director candidate. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and adoption,
where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee setting out its duties and procedures was
revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and passed a written resolution.
The work of the Nomination Committee included the following
recommendations to the Board:

o The appointment of Mr. Wang Yan as Non-Executive
Director.
o Review the structure, size and composition of the Board.

As at 31 December 2014, the Compensation Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu
Kwing Chue, Gordon (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka
Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses. The duties of the
Compensation Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of remuneration
of directors and senior management, establishing a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on remuneration
and determining the specific remuneration packages for all
directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Compensation Committee setting out its duties and procedures
was revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration of the directors and senior executives is
determined with reference to the performance and responsibilities
of the individual, the performance of the Group, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmarks from comparable
companies. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements based on the performance of the Group and the
individual.
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RBEFEAR FTHEESEAR—XREER

MR —RNEEAZUEE TSR -
o WEARREETMEEETREABNFHA
=

o EHMARBAABEBR: R
o HOEARRBRGINE B BINERT -
HEZZT-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE 1Tk

REFNSREEABZRENFHMNFUT
#[E

3,000,001 - 3,500,000
1,500,001 - 2,000,000
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During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met
once and passed a written resolution on matters including:

. Approval of the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Company;

o Update the status on the Company’s talent management;
and

° Approval of the amendment on Restricted Incentive Award
Scheme of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not directors are
within the following bands:

RZZE—WMF+-_A=+—H B%ZEY
ﬁk;@%@%ﬁi#%ﬂ TES(ZFERFEB L
(XEF)  BEAELEE BREFILHEED
k) HEF—ZNERBEENTEERK
Ao KERFAMNEEER - 2% 8
SWEAK B F AN Q F)FE IR AT AZ 2 A Bt
B FMAMRTEZRZESGNAZHKE N
BRBEUAT  BEP-—AVEEBEEGENE
XER ARAIBZZESNKNBEERE L™
HAMER - BEZZESWREREHEDRY
—E-EF+—F+N\BEF BRAEBgE
MAgsle [BREEEENEEES IEA
[N ]I%?ﬁm%E/EWE'JEF'XIEEEAHTE_&

ERA - R ETARBIMER I EHER
ERZEENRESRECR -F —:ifﬂ
—t—HBELERT j]iJ:%UJ‘" 56 32 Pl e AR AR
AL - AER]
ERZEENRAESEZSERME  BEEREE

BUZBMIAEESRHEEZS  BHAQF
TS E R MBS AR R B S B R AR A AN
NEEZERRF - RBREFE  BEREZESYEA

ROXEH  — T HNFERZBE TR
Ex NIRAE
o BFUBRBMH - T —=FFRIFELTH

“EEEMRE
. TE-FFRNFEEENM

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee comprised four
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung,
Eric (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
and Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan. One of its members has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. No member of this Committee
is a member of the former or existing auditors of the Company.
The membership of the Audit Committee has complied with
the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualification. The existing terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which was revised on 18 November 2010, are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have also
adopted the principles set out in the CG Code for the time being in
force. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee was further
revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, review of the Company’s financial
information and oversight of the Company’s financial report system
and internal control procedures. During the year under review, the
Audit Committee met on four occasions. The work of the Audit
Committee in 2014 included reviews of:

° the external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2013 audit;
o the 2013 annual report and annual results announcement;
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° audit strategy memorandum in respect of the 2014 audit by
the external auditor;

° connected party transactions;

° the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2014 and the related results announcement;

° the 2014 interim report and interim results announcement;

° the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September
2014 and the related results announcement;

o the quarterly reports of internal audit activities;

° the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department; and

° the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor on three occasions.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the external auditor of the Company. The Audit
Committee concludes that the independence of the external
auditor of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit
services performed for the Group. The statement by the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities relating to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 111 to 112. During the
year under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s
external auditor amount to approximately HK$41 million (2013:
approximately HK$33 million); fees related to non-audit services
paid and payable amount to approximately HK$9 million (2013:
approximately HK$6 million).

The interests held by the directors in the Company’s securities
as at 31 December 2014 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report
on pages 86 to 110 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005,
the Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Code of Ethics has been amended, approved and reconfirmed
by the Board of Directors of the Company on 6 April 2006, 4
April 2007, 31 March 2008 and further revised on 31 March
2009 and 18 November 2010, respectively. The prohibitions on
securities dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of
Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include the Group’s
senior management and persons who are privy to price sensitive
information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry with the directors, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and
maintain sound systems in risk management, internal control and
governance to ensure the effective and efficient accomplishment of
corporate goals and objectives, safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the reliability of financial
and corporate reporting. The Board confirms that it is the overall
responsibility of the Board to establish and effectively implement
the internal control system to ensure the smooth operation of
business, safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests
as well as ensure the reliability of financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as the
standards in establishing risk management and control systems
among our Group companies. The Group’s internal control system
includes five key elements, namely the existence of an effective
control environment, risk management, communication and
information system, cost effective control activities and monitoring
mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks
and impact on the respective business unit at least once every
year. The executive management team of each business unit is
accountable for the conduct and performance of each operation
in the business unit within the agreed strategies and similarly the
management of each operation is accountable for its conduct
and performance. Policies and procedures are designed for
safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring transactions are executed in accordance with
management authorisation. Monthly management reports on the
financial results and key operation indicators are reviewed by the
Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings are held with
the executive management team of each business unit to review
the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee
and Chairman of the Board respectively, is responsible for
assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, formulating an impartial opinion on the effectiveness and
efficiency of the systems, and reporting its findings to the Executive
Committee and the Audit Committee. Follow-up audits will be
conducted in due course to ensure that audit recommendations
are being properly implemented. The Internal Audit Department
conducts independent reviews on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an on-going basis.
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Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of work performed by the
internal audit function covers all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once every quarter and the corrective actions
are taken by the relevant business units. The Board conducts
regular reviews of the Group’s internal control system through the
Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the Group’s
assets are safeguarded and there is no significant area of concerns
that may affect shareholders.

In accordance with Section 566 of the new Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“New CQO”), the directors
are required to call a general meeting if the Company has received
requests to do so from members of the Company representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a
right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may
sent be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Board) or in electronic form (by email: ir@cre.com.hk); and must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it. In accordance
with Section 567 of the New CO, the directors must call a meeting
within 21 days after the date on which they become subject to the
requirement under Section 566 of the New CO and such meeting
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the
notice convening the meeting.

Besides, Section 615 of the New CO provides that the Company
must give notice of a resolution if it has received requests that it
do so from (a) the members of the Company representing at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate. Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by
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email: ir@cre.com.hk); (b) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or
persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not
later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting. Section 616 of the New CO provides that the
Company that is required under Section 615 of the New CO to
give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (a) in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

Pursuant to Articles 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors, be appointed a
director at a general meeting unless at least seven days’ previous
notice in writing (to be lodged no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election
and no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting) shall
have been given to the Company of the intention of any member
qualified to vote at the meeting to propose any person other than
a retiring director for election to the office of director with notice
executed by that person of his willingness to be appointed.

Not less than three nor more than twenty-eight days before the
date appointed for holding a general meeting notice shall be given
to all who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting of any person
in respect of whom notice has been duly given to the Company
under Article 112.1 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The aforesaid procedures is available on the website of the
Company.

The Company’s Articles of Association was revised on 29 May
2009 by special resolution in the 2009 Annual General Meeting in
order to ensure compliance with amendments to the Listing Rules,
in particular, relevant CG Code provisions in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.
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The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for
shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

The Company has established a Shareholder’s Communication
Policy and the said policy is available on the website of the
Company.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Investor
Relations Department is responsible for managing investor relations
and will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such
information can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon
written request.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Enterprise, Limited
39th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: ir@cre.com.hk

Tel: 8562-2829 9889

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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he directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014,

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food and beverage
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and property investment. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are shown on pages
191 to 198. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 113
and shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.16 per share for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$0.14 per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 4 June 2015. The final dividend, if approved, is
to be payable in cash, with an option to receive new and fully paid
shares in lieu of cash (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). Together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.11 per share, the total dividend for
2014 will amount to HK$0.27 per share (2013: HK$0.27 per share).

Subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, a circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend
Scheme together with the relevant election form will be sent to
shareholders on or around 12 June 2015. The Scrip Dividend
Scheme is conditional upon the granting by the Listing Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the listing of
and permission to deal in the new shares to be issued under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme. The dividend warrants and the share
certificates for the Scrip Dividend Scheme are expected be sent to
shareholders on or around 10 July 2015.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 26 May 2015 to Friday, 29 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting to be
held on 29 May 2015, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 May 2015 for registration.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company after the
close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 4 June 2015, and the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Thursday, 4
June 2015, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 3 June 2015 for
registration.

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on
pages 199 to 203.

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note
30 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 31 to the financial statements respectively.
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Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$13 million.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman)

Mr. Hong Jie (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Hongji (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Du Wenmin

Mr. Wei Bin

Mr. Yan Biao

Mr. Chen Ying

Mr. Wang Yan (Appointed on 13 August 2014)
Mr. Huang Daoguo (Retired on 13 August 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Lang, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank, Mr. Du
Wenmin, Mr. Wei Bin and Mr. Yan Biao shall retire by rotation and
are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Yan will retire and is eligible for re-election.
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None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out on pages 51 to 60.

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to
the objectives of the Company by the participants (“Scheme”).

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20
August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders,
and expired on 31 January 2012. The Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible participants including any
executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a
discretionary trust established by any employee, executive or non-
executive directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies of
the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder and where a substantial shareholder is a company,
employees of subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.
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Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the exercise
price shall be such price determined by the Board of Directors at
its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
proceeding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share
on the date of grant. The maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Scheme (including options to be granted to the directors,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any
of their respective associates) is equivalent to the maximum limit
permitted under the Listing Rules. The scheme mandate limit under
the Scheme was refreshed and renewed by an ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of further share
options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10%
of the shares in issue as at the said date. As at the date of this
report, there was no outstanding share option granted under the
Scheme. Therefore, no share was available for issue under the
Scheme.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately
after the date of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted
(or granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme during the year
in relation to each of the directors or their respective associates,
employees, and other participants of the Scheme.
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S e RE T 3 (48) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(R)EEHEBREA (a) Directors or their associates
R-ZE—MFE+ - A=+—HKKFEH As at 31 December 2014 and during the year, the following .
B N ESEFEREZTEFE 28 directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for gﬂ
ORI EREL - RIBEZTE - £ shares granted under the Scheme. Share options held by §§
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Employees

Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the
Company are employees of the Group and details of share
options held by them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above.
Summary of share options granted to employees of the
Group (other than directors of the Company) under the

FARAEE
About The Group

Scheme are set out below:

o
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o
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14/01/2004 9.72 245,000 - 95,000 - 150,000 - 25.050
25/05/2004 9.15 78,000 - 28,000 - 50,000 - 22.663
04/10/2004 10.35 1,736,000 - 1,388,000 - 348,000 - 20.796
&3t Total 2,059,000 - 1,511,000 - 548,000 -
B3 Notes:
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Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised
during the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the
Stock Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of options.

The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in
note 2R to the financial statements.

All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date
falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is
HK$1.00.

As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
disclosure is applicable.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a period
of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant and
exercisable within a period of not more than ten years immediately after the
date of grant.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFQ”), which have been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests and short positions which the directors
and chief executive of the Company are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to

T the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained
in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(F)REQAFCRITZERNREBERKRSD (@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying

hEE N ER shares of the Company

B EA 5=} 500,000 0.02
Chen Lang Long position
HAR "R 640,000 0.03
Hong Jie Long position
g "R 111,356 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
MHXE 5=} 100,000 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
& B 5=} 500,000 0.02
Yan Biao Long position
FE 5=} 150,000 0.01
Wang Yan Long position
FRE "R 202,466 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position
BRE R 5=} 50,616 0.01
Bernard Charnwut Chan Long position

B E Notes:

1. EARNEIRGD RAEBROPHTEBEERA 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares

:? mE+=—A=+—H E%T‘Iﬁ%‘i@ﬁﬁ’lﬁ and underlying shares of the Company to the total issued shares of the
DL e Company as at 31 December 2014.
2. ENFBRBEIEEHSESUESHEAZSED 2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity

5 -

as beneficial owner.
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HR B () DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
(Z) AHBEZECRTEERKRIEBBK (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
BHEENER shares of associated corporations
§ AR BTNESHEEEAE IR (EER As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
ﬂég (EHENBEEM))NEEITEBERNE issued ordinary shares and underlying shares covered
%= ERENR REST 2P 9% Rl SRBE IR (0 2 BE IR by options granted under the share option schemes of
Eé hEEREZ  ZSEERELENIE LTI associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO),
= EURWHBRALTETA - such options being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives:
iy H—REREELAE-FHEHREGRA (i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
— A([EEEM B BITEAEIRNE outstanding under the share option schemes of an
EEEEWEREAZI N RITER associated corporation, China Resources Land Limited
et 2 MR (“CR Land”):
2
&5
g S
50
3
@ BRA TR 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
HXR "R 640,000 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
e "R 1,992,000 0.03
o Yan Biao Long position
(8]
g
£ bR IE "R 500,000 0.01
é Chen Ying Long position
3
g M EE Notes:
=
3 1, BHRFS RERE RN RABBR M BEIEE 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
HEMR T —MF+=-A=+—HEETRHE and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued shares of CR Land as
WA - at 31 December 2014.

2. ENFHBERERPEEEEUEREAAZE 2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity
MHE - as beneficial owner.
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EHZ I (4)

() REBEECRITEERRMEER (b)
BRI RS (E)

(i) R—RABABER-EBERRERE
RAmR([EEMR D ETEBER
KRR ZE IR R B B 5t & 15 R AT
ERB R 2 #E s

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of associated corporations (continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Gas Group
Limited (“CR Gas”):

It "R 372,000 0.02
Liu Hongji Long position
BRA I HE 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
"R HE 54,000 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

B3 Notes:

BERMMS RNERRRBRN RERERN BE8EE 1.
ERER_E-—NE+-A=+—HEBTRMHLE
G ER A

—_

2. EXFRBEcEGESHREENEGEAAZSE 2.
[ZESE=I

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued shares of CR Gas as
at 31 December 2014.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity
as beneficial owner.
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EHZ I ()

(Z) REBZECRTEBRRRERR

R ER S (E

(i) R—REBEEEE - EBEENERE
RAR([EHEN D EHTEBEK
KRB EE T E 1 B AT 8l 15 K17

ERB A 2 s

BBE 2% REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of associated corporations (continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (“CR Power”):

HR HE 5,000 0.01
Hong Jie Long position
FIME "R 61,080 0.01
Liu Hongji Long position
BRA TR 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
MR e 480,240 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
I8 HE 570,080 0.01
Yan Biao Long position
TE "R 44,000 0.01
Wang Yan Long position

B 5E Notes:

1, BT BT RNEBEE RN RAAERMAEGE 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares

BHENNR_ZE-—NF+-A=+—HZBEITRH

REWBADL -

2. LEXRBZABERGHSESUAESREAZS

[ZEST=I

and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued shares of CR Power
as at 31 December 2014.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity
as beneficial owner.
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EHZ I (4)

() REBEECRITEERRMEER (b)
BRI RS (E)

(iv) R—RERABER - EBIOBERE
RAm([FEEKE] D ETEBR
N AR R EE OB A ET 8l 1% R 1T
ERB R 2 #E s

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of associated corporations (continued)

(iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”):

It wE 922,000 0.01
Liu Hongji Long position
BRA I HE 40,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
PBRE e 230,000 0.01
Chen Ying Long position

B3 Notes:

BEA MY RNERCERD RERERM 2E8EE 1.
KRR -ZE—ME+-A=+—HEBTRMHLE
G ER A

—_

2. EXFRBEc RGBSR EENEGEAAZS 2
[ZESE=I

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued shares of CR
Cement as at 31 December 2014.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity
as beneficial owner.
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A 78 HLERBE 25 00 JBEOR SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

R-Z—mE+—A=+—08 B EXHHEE As at 31 December 2014, other than the interests and short
HIREZS KRB AIN - M FATRARQFIRRD K& positions as disclosed above, the following persons have interests
MR R A BRE(EE REEEH)EXV  or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
HE-_RE=DHAANATHEXD LML A Company as they fall to be disclosed to the Company under
NEBEFENELCHANERSAR ¢ Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the

o
58
e
K c
“ =
= ‘g register required to be kept by the Company:

Qo

<

(2]
g FEEHE AR China Resources National e 1,232,764,380 50.91
g% (EFEBHBAR]) Corporation (“CRNC”) Long position
i GEID) (Note 1)
% %)
o=
g EBHRMHBRAR China Resources Co., Limited & 1,232,764,380 50.91
(Z A 1) (BaEt) (“CRC”) (Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited [S8=) 1,2832,764,380 50.91
(MisE1) (Note 1) Long position
EH(EE)ERAF China Resources (Holdings) & 1,232,764,380 50.91
(ME#=MEE]) (M) Company Limited (‘CRH”)  Long position
9 (Note 1)
[
g
g #=HEE(AIZ)ER 27 CRH (Enterprise) Limited gE 1,232,764,380 50.91
[e] . iy
G GESD) (Note 1) Long position
(]
IS
g Commonwealth Bank of ~ Commonwealth Bank of HE 170,810,567 7.05
3 Australia (FffzE2) Australia (Note 2) Long position
Genesis Asset Managers, Genesis Asset Managers, HE 144,188,662 5.95
LLP (PH7E3) LLP (Note 3) Long position
B3 Notes:
1, EREEAIZE)ERAR(RBEALRIEEBRA 1. CRH (Enterprise) Limited (formerly known as Globe Fame Investments
= AAEHEEN2ENBRARINESREAZS Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, held the shares in the capacity
5 BEERGD - F % E ACRC Bluesky Limited#y of beneficial owner. CRH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky
g 24K BAT - MCRC Bluesky Limited & B % Limited, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC, which is in
g MHZAMBAR > MEARNDAUEEBRAF turn held as to 100% by CRNC. So, CRH, CRC Bluesky Limited, CRC and
#o FHE100% 5 o Eitt - EHEE - CRC Bluesky CRNC are deemed to have corporate interest in the shares.
% —
53 Limited ~ ZE MMM REBA R RIWKR AR RMD E
= BT -
£
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YA 7R FL o 2 ) SRR ()

FeE - ()

2. BIECEHFRBAEGED) EXVBE-_RE=S
BRERAAAABEEOENBER BT A
Commonwealth Bank of Australia A T it J5 =, #
BHEEBESN © ZER D BCommonwealth Bank of
Australia B # s AT H1100% 1€ 5 2 A E#55 -

Colonial First State Investments Limited

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

2. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, other than the following corporation which
was held by Commonwealth Bank of Australia in the manner described
below, these shares were held by corporations controlled directly or
indirectly as to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

50%

3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLPIAE & 4538 & (7 45
AR -

7 IR I R 2 i AT AT

REBEETERMS  EHEEABEHEAR
AR I%CEITRN A FHEIERARRE
—BRABRRZEFD(THEERIBBEMER
AREFAEAMER) NR_FT-—NF+-A
=t—B AERRERETLAEEZERAE
HEREK166.0ET  ZEHABBEN_-F
—hFE-AEZZE-NF+—ARER -

R 1 i 2 Bl - 2

AKRBR - E—=F=A-+—BHHEM—ER
FIMEEEEN TRl - ZATEIEABRIBBPE_F
—ZF=ZA=-+—H - RELTRAUFI7E -
FRHI 1T S E T8I T —EHBERETEIA S
AAFH—ERIES - REMEEBTEEE
FEAEBHAEERENER  IREZE LD
WAEERBHEREEEREFREIMES + I
REINALAFNEHEEEZRFSRHEERE

BRI -

ARBERIER B RBEEIKL —RET
MAREREERBEETERARCEZEIR
XEEA o REBRFIEREE - ZXEARER
ARRTHHENRESRARTHBERD
RAANEZBERPANBRAEEECTBE
Btz mxBBEBTEARRERHEETRN
#5% ° RIFZAT & - AR T RN BB BIREZ
AEHERXTEARERSEREEROEN
FEERNKE - EEEBARARBEZE K
T FH R -

3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP held the shares in the capacity of
investment manager.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain
as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the issued shares of
the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at
31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of the facilities subject
to such obligation were HK$16.6 billion. Such facilities will expire
from January 2015 to November 2019.

RESTRICTED INCENTIVE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted incentive award scheme on 21
March 2013 which was subsequently amended with retrospective
effect from 21 March 2013. The restricted incentive award scheme
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.
The purpose of the restricted incentive award scheme is to:
recognise and motivate the contribution of the Group’s employees;
provide incentives and help the Group in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees; and provide them
with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term business
objectives of the Company.

A trust has been set up under the restricted incentive award
scheme and BOCI Prudential Trustee Limited has been appointed
as the trustee. Pursuant to the restricted incentive award scheme,
the trustee may purchase shares from the public market out of
cash contributed by the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which the trustee may purchase during the term
of the scheme out of the funds contributed by the Group is 5%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company from time
to time. According to the scheme, the Company can utilise the
proceeds generated from the disposal of the shares purchased and
held by the trustee for awards made under the scheme. Grantees of
any award under the scheme do not have any right to the shares.
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BRIEESSARFRULRE  BRHIEER
SR B MR IR B RS =4F -

FRN - ARQA X EF A 120,000,000
TUEERD  MITAETRZERECSH
H 5,662,000 H - XFEARFACLLEE
8,730,000k f& 1 - E—_Z—MWWFE+ = A
=+—B ZRARBZAERNEIPES
15,784,000 i 15 & 35 & 498 #59,000,0007T °

FAAEBRAEALETETRS %5
RZRFBEETRAUBK [FERERS] - 1t
RpTRBERASTRUNEES [FERS ]
WERMBREMNE=TERARR U
RZET ETRUNEVIAZREEFR - BHEZ
SR8 ST AR B 14A 71 IR EY B SRR TE BV HF
BRER S ZFHIBHRR T X

RZE——FXNAZ+N\B  EBWE
(HEETH)ARAR([EE]) (KRRAIMN
—REEMBERR) EBARBIERKER
EREEE] TRETERE  AE%A
EBHEBUNNEOGEREERES
BRH - BiEZHE BEHR-_T—=
FrA—ARAEBEEXNFABSY
770,0007 - ERERRBEANGZAEM
MELE=EFERMNELEDNEREE - IR
BEREMKE(EAEBEEBEMREHA
PEMBREX ARG E)HNRE - 256
EAM=F —T-——FtA—BEL
e

#FEEHE REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Unless otherwise sooner terminated as determined by the Board,
the restricted incentive award scheme will be effective for an initial
term of three years from the date of its adoption.

During the year, the Company has paid to the trustee
HK$120,000,000 for purchase of the shares and 5,662,000
shares were purchased by the trustee with such sum. The
trustee has disposed 8,730,000 shares during the year. As at 31
December 2014, the trustee held 15,784,000 shares and cash of
approximately HK$59,000,000 on trust under the scheme.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. These transactions are
also regarded as “Related Party Transactions” under applicable
accounting principles, which are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements and with respect to which the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those continuing connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting requirements under
Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

On 28 June 2012, China Resources Logistics (Yuen Fat
Wharf & Godown) Limited (“Yuen Fat”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, renewed facilities management
agreements with CRH, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of management services by Yuen
Fat on the port premises and facilities developed on a site
owned by CRH in Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat
had paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$0.77 million from 1 July
2012 in consideration for the right to keep, as the service
fee payable by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all
cargo handling fees, service charges and other payments
collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from independent
third parties. The agreement was for a term of 3 years
commencing on 1 July 2012.
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RZE—ZFAZ+N\H BHH
#H £ B 1 2 & M B Q& Dragon Rider
Development Limited([DRDL)&ZT 7 &
[ B 1R 1o B EIEDRDLIA SLBE
BH—EEE - RIEZ M - BEHR-Z
——H+ A—H#EADRDLE A B A
#2,200,0007T - ERBEERBEAH B
BB E = BRI MRS ERE
R H ik B (e ADRDLREE B A 15 Al E
BYNHREE)NRE - 2O BEOF

HiE PR EEERENTEHMER o bt
“ﬁ BipakEEERBREBENE
BEBESE -

REBE-Z—NF+=-A=+—HBLHF
Fvﬂ;ﬂ%@&DRDLLQHI‘:ﬁ%iHME
ﬁ%%ﬁm,\%/ #184,327,0007T * M E 3
AmEHEENMDRDLE M8y A BHIA K
EH£35,640,0007T °

//

On 28 June 2012, Yuen Fat renewed godown management
agreement with Dragon Rider Development Limited (“DRDL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, for the management,
by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned by DRDL in Kowloon.
Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had paid DRDL a monthly
fee of HK$2.2 million from 1 July 2012 in consideration for
the right to keep, as the service fee payable by DRDL to
Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all license fees and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from
independent third parties. This agreement has the same term
as the above facilities management agreement. The above
facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement are vital to the operation of Yuen Fat.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$184,327,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$35,640,000.
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(T tEAHBASEREA) BAEBNT
A B (T fE A A ASEMEA)FRFTE
MAEHER  ¥HFRE(HRPIE)%
ERX S A —RRRATSIETET - XHWIE
BEREMENETVARK T ABYE=
B BRAFABRAGTEOEMIERE o 1t
SN FERETESEATERERARD
ME  HEBEXSB T EEAE8EE
TEBB-TFNEERE - HMBES
EREATERERRNINOYENER
MEEREBTEBBE=F - AREHE
B ARNNE AP EZERRE - £ EmRA
T FEHEBKAARRBIMEEAL - E
BRI T RETNR B AN EEER
BSMENRBDEBFTFAELERIA
BB ES ©

REBEE-ZFT-—NOEF+_A=+—HIEF
Ev$%gmm$ﬂE@&ﬁWE Algk
BMEATNOEE  EEBREMMARE
& Hi#EB%109,503,0007T  MEMEE
B BB 8 A R kB B A B A SR B 2 A
WiEe  BEEBRAEMAHEERS LES
#1,144,0007T °
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On 21 December 2012, a framework agreement was entered
into by the Company and CRH with a term commencing
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 pursuant to
which the Group may lease various premises from CRH
and its subsidiaries or associates. According to framework
agreement, CRH and its subsidiaries or associates may also
lease various premises from the Group. It was agreed, inter
alia, that any tenancy agreements to be entered into by CRH
and its subsidiaries or associates (no matter as landlord or
tenant) and a member of the Group (no matter as landlord
or tenant) should be on normal commercial terms. Each
transaction should be either conducted at market price or
at such other prices as the parties may agree fairly and
reasonably in the circumstances as if they were independent
third party. In addition, each transaction to be entered into
will be documented in a separate written agreement with
a duration not exceeding twenty years for premises mainly
used for retail or its incidental purposes. For premises not
used for retail or its incidental purposes, the duration of the
written agreement should not exceed three years. As CRH
is the intermediate holding company of the Company, CRH
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement will enable the Group to secure a supply of the
premises for its business as well as enable the Group to
better utilise its existing resources to generate revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
amount of the rent, management fees and other related
charges payable by the Group to CRH and its subsidiaries or
associates was HK$109,503,000 and the aggregate amount
of the rent, management fees and other related charges
payable by CRH and its subsidiaries or associates to the
Group was HK$1,144,000.
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RZE—=F+=-A+=H ARAIEMH
EEE-_Z—RNFt+-_A=Z+—RHIL=F
A RNEEF S AESR (R AR B R E R
ARAMBREZENBARESHEARA
A([Ea®D REMNBAR([ESHES
B)  ETaREr - HERHEAEEHE
THMAZE TEMTREEVENTH
oo RIBERGR  ERESESRMA
EETMAE A RIREEEREE  Bg
FIEERIFEHT BB = FHNERRERT
—NEEHRBEFTE —REAEEKR - ME
BB ATHER  KEAEEMS TBER
BUE=EFREHER - EAERES
EAETHNTE/EH B EkRARRE
Bt RERHERBALSENBFEE
BRE - MEREERNEE -2 —XF
T A=t+—HAL=FFFMRHENE
B RBHFE LR AE 100,000,000
T e AREBBARARA RN RKIER
BEE - FEEMARAT - EHEARKAER
RANBEBALT MESKEEAAZER
BNBEBEA -

REBEE-FT-NF+ZA=+—-HILF
B EaREEBEROERLESR
16,995,0007T °

On 13 December 2013, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new contracts
for the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s
offices, retail outlets and investment properties under the
framework terms with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC, and its subsidiaries
(“Uconia Group”) for the three years ending 31 December
2016. According to the framework terms, each provision of
decoration services by the Uconia Group to members of the
Group would be documented in a separate written agreement
with duration not exceeding three years and each contract
of decoration services would be entered into on normal
commercial terms and the prices would be either at market
prices or at prices no less favorable to the Group than those
available from independent third parties. The granting of
contracts to Uconia Group for the design, decoration and
furnishing of the retail outlets, supermarkets and offices are
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group.
The annual caps for the decoration services by the Uconia
Group for each of the three years ending 31 December
2016 is HK$100,000,000. As CRNC is the ultimate holding
company of the Company, CRNC is a connected person of
the Company and Uconia Group is an associate of CRNC
under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
amount charged by the Uconia Group totaled
HK$16,995,000.
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On 21 December 2012, a framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) was entered into by the Company and #E &
# B AF (China Resources Construction Corp.) (“CR
Construction”) with a term commencing from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2015. It was agreed, inter alia,
that any construction, incidental design and construction
management services to be provided by CR Construction
and its subsidiaries (“CR Construction Group”) or its
associates to a member of Group should be on normal
commercial terms. Each transaction should be either
conducted at market price or at such other prices as the
parties may agree fairly and reasonably in the circumstances
as if they were independent third party. As CR Construction is
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn is the
ultimate holding company of the Company, CR Construction
is an associate of a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under
the framework agreement will enable the Group to have a
sizeable construction service provider.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
charges of provision of construction, incidental design
and construction management services provided by CR
Construction Group and its associates to the Group totaled
HK$40,529,000.

On 20 December 2013, the Company issued an
announcement in connection with, among others, (i) the
intra-group lending arrangement with members of the group
of CRC, CRH and their respective subsidiary companies
(“Framework Loan Agreements 2013”); (i) the provision of
general banking services including deposits services by
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”, a
subsidiary of CRC) and (iii) financial services and products
by China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CR Trust”, a
subsidiary of CRC) ((ii) and (iii) collectively the “Strategic
Cooperation Agreements 2013”). By virtue of CRC being
the controlling shareholder of CRH, which in turn holds
a controlling interest in the Company, CRC and CRH are
connected persons to the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules. In addition CRC holds more than 50% of the
registered capital of CR Bank and CR Trust respectively, CR
Bank and CR Trust are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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China Resources

Leasing Co., Ltd.
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China Resources
Medical Equipment
Leasing Gompany
Limited

CRH (Land) Limited

Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Framework Loan Agreements 2013 and Strategic
Cooperation Agreements 2013 (continued)

The Framework Loan Agreements 2013 was each for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

The annual lending cap for the Group on any single day
for the term of the Framework Loan Agreements 2013 is
HK$3,000,000,000. Such maximum daily amount is applicable
for each day during the relevant year, and such maximum daily
amount is calculated on an individual basis as outstanding
at the end of each day during the relevant year without
aggregating with the daily amount incurred on the days before.

Information on all the above-mentioned lending made by the
Group during the year ended or remained outstanding as at
31 December 2014 were as follows:

- AEE 700000000  12/12/2013-  5.04% -
RMB 12/06/2014

- AEE 700000000 12/06/2014-  5.04% -
RVB 12/12/2014

- AEE 1000000000  0212/2013-  5.04% -
RMB 02/06/2014

- AEE 800,000,000  14/08/2014-  5.04% AR 800,000,000
RMB 14/02/2015 RVB

- AEE 200000000  16/10/2013-  5.04% -
RVB 16/04/2014

- AEE 200000000  11/11/2013-  5.04% -
RVB 11/05/2014

EHRG AEE 200000000 0512/2014-  5.05% AR 200,000,000

CRC RMB 05/06/2015 RVB

EREE BB 200000000  00/01/2014-  2.03% -

CRH HKS 09/04/2014
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1 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
for beer business

*2 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
for beverage business

*3 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
for food business

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of interest received by the Group under the Framework Loan
Agreements 2013 totaled HK$100,137,000.

The Framework Loan Agreements 2013 constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and are subject to annual review by the independent
non-executive directors and the auditors of the Company.

The Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 was each for
a term of two years commencing from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2015.

CR Bank provides deposit and other commercial banking
services on normal commercial terms which apply to other
customers of CR Bank. Any deposit made with CR Bank
under the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 will bear
the same interest and be on the same terms and conditions
as would apply to a similar deposit made by any other
customers of CR Bank, which rates are presently determined
by the People’s Bank of China.

CR Trust provides financial services including, but not limited
to, cash management, asset management, custodian trust
loan services, equity cooperation, shares nominee services,
account receivable factoring services, buying and resale
services consulting services and other trust services to the
Group. These services will be provided on normal commercial
terms and will be charged at a rate no less favourable
as would apply to similar services provided to any other
customers of CR Trust.
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The maximum daily deposit cap, inclusive of interest payable
rounded to the nearest million, to be placed by the Group
with CR Bank for the term of the Strategic Cooperation
Agreements 2013 is HK$3,000,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the maximum
daily aggregate amount of outstanding deposits placed by
the Group with CR Bank totaled HK$2,890,621,000, and
the aggregate interest income arising from such deposits
was HK$22,558,000, which in aggregate represents
approximately 14% of the total cash and bank balances of the
Group as at 31 December 2014.

The maximum daily cap of financial services and products to
be provided by each of CR Bank and CR Trust respectively to
the Group (excluding deposit services and financial services
provided by CR Bank and CR Trust where only the fees
and commissions paid by the Group are used to calculate
the relevant percentage ratios) for the term of the Strategic
Cooperation Agreements 2013 are both HK$3,000,000,000.

The aggregate annual amount of fees and commissions
paid by the Group for the financial services provided by CR
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2014 did not exceed
0.1% of the percentage ratios, other than the profits ratio,
of the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group did not use any financial services and products
provided by CR Trust. These arrangements constituted de
minimis transactions under the Listing Rules.
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On 21 March 2013, a supply framework agreement (“Supply
Framework Agreement”) was entered into by # HIEE
FEHPE)BR AT (formerly known as China Resources
C’estbon Food & Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (“CR
Beverage China”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, with China Resources Packaging Materials
Co., Ltd (“ CR Packaging”) and Zhuhai China Resources
Packaging Materials Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai CR Packaging”),
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of CRH, with a term
commencing from 21 March 2013 to 31 December 2015
pursuant to which CR Packaging and Zhuhai CR Packaging
agreed to supply from time to time the packaging materials
that are required for the production of beverage containers
and bottles to CR Beverage China. The transactions shall be
conducted on normal commercial terms which are no less
favourable than those terms regarding packaging materials
of similar specifications and quality provided or quoted by
independent third party suppliers to CR Beverage China. It
is estimated that the maximum amount of purchases to be
made by CR Beverage China under the Supply Framework
Agreement will not exceed RMB1,070,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,334,720,000), RMB1,600,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,008,310,000)
and RMB2,300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,869,000,000) respectively for the three years ending
31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015. As CR Packaging
and Zhuhai CR Packaging are both indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CRH which in turn is the intermediate holding
company of the Company, CR Packaging and Zhuhai CR
Packaging are both associates of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
amount of purchases made by CR Beverage China under
the Supply Framework Agreement was RMB840,005,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,059,752,000).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has provided a letter to the
directors of the Company and confirmed that, for the year ended 31
December 2014, the above continuing connected transactions:

(@)  had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b) involving the provision of services by the Group had been
entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(¢)  had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(d)  had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014,

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates as at 31 December 2014 are set out on pages 191 to
198.
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Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above under “Restricted Incentive Award
Scheme”, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the Group’s total value of
purchases and total turnover.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May
2014, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed as the
auditor of the Company.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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To the shareholders of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to
198, which comprise the consolidated and company’s balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated profit
and loss account, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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HE-T—NF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative
expenses

Finance costs

Share of net results of associates

Share of net results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

6 168,864 146,413
(126,419) (109,040)
42,445 37,373
7 3,469 2,647
(34,904) (27,566)
(8,579) (7,131)
8 (526) (304)
14 27
(78) -
1,841 5,046
13 (1,550) (1,894)
291 3,152
(161) 1,908
452 1,244
291 3,152
15
HK$(0.07) HK$0.79
HK$(0.07) HK$0.79
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mEZMEWEImK CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_T—NF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

o
% A EE R Profit for the year 291 3,152
5 HitvzmEkE (EA) : Other comprehensive income/
. § (expenses):
< ErUESEEERE2EE Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
HHNETS 2 ERER Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations (110) 1,435
B AIEREQNREEARE Fair value adjustment on available for
sale investments 144 21
EHHRFAE Reclassification adjustments:
—AHENEREMEL 2 - release of valuation reserve upon
) HERE disposal of available for sale
. é investments (163) -
;% g —AREHRBAR,HE QT - release of exchange differences
%@ mMEE 7 EXR=ZR upon disposal of subsidiaries/
& 3 associates (6) (13)
2 A ERERA R BEFERS Income tax relating to fair value
BIFT 1S AL adjustment on available for
sale investments 1) -
(136) 1,443
R TAELEZEHZER Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
VI EGH AR Surplus on revaluation of properties 69 1,881
® ) S ABRARN TSR Income tax relating to surplus on
:2; revaluation of properties (22) (150)
w 8 47 1,731
gﬁ g rEFEHMEE(ER) Other comprehensive (expenses)/
- % Wz (BRBLE) income for the year, net of tax (89) 3,174
S REEZEKEARE Total comprehensive income
for the year 202 6,326
DECR Attributable to:
RARRRE Shareholders of the Company (253) 4,615
FEHE IR R Non-controlling interests 455 1,711
202 6,326
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AEEEBMER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-Z—MNF+_—H=+—H At 31 December 2014

FRBEE
EEEE
—REME

—FIEBAHERED

Tt

—HHWR - HaE R

B
i
HipELEE
NN o
REBELEZ R
AERE
FaIS R
EEHBAEE

REBEE
Al

B 5 N A YRR

RLREFRIA
EHEMIRITEETT
RE RIRITHER

RBAE

B 5 MEfb RN IR

ISR
FEfI TR

RBEEFE
HEERRBAEE

FRBER
RHER
EEHIARE
HisFFREAE

MRA R
EEEN
E4i

RAFRRAESERE

FEIEBI R R S
ks

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties
— Interests in leasehold land held
for own use under operating
leases
— Other property, plant and
equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Available for sale investments
Prepayments
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term loans
Taxation payable

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long term loans

Deferred taxation liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BREA Chen Lang
& & Director

B aE

Notes

16

24
25

26
27A

27B
28
29

30
31

5L Lai Ni Hium, Frank
% & Director

—E—-mF

2014
BEEHET
HK$ million

21,105

10,653

56,302
22,854
510
368
1,014
33
1,015
2,274

116,128

27,690
16,555
157
187
20,647

65,236

(76,260)
(9,025)
(1,069)

(86,354)
(21,118)
95,010

(19,872)
(2,245)
(3,270)

(25,387)
69,623

15,740
33,007

48,747
20,876

69,623

—T—=F

2013
BERETT
HK$ million

15,952

8,492

44,673
19,428
562
388

142
876
1,540

92,053

25,021
16,428
251
336
21,200

63,236

(69,178
(3,357
(1,155

(73,690
(10,454
81,599

59,611

2,403
41,670

44,073
15,5638

59,611
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ZEHAIZEER 2" CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

B E AR

BALANCE SHEET

R=_Z—MF+= A =+—H At 31 December 2014

FRBEE
BEE&EE
—WEYE
—Hib¥x - #ER
&
NCIEUNCIPA 5o

RBEE

B 5 REMEWKRIA
AR EI IR

Re LRITHETF

RBAE
B5 REMEMNKIEA

RBEEFE
HEERRBEE

FRBEE
NN S
EEHBAE

&N - 1]
[EEN
G

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties
— Other property, plant and
equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Amount due to subsidiaries
Deferred taxation liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

BREA Chen Lang

% Z Director

16

16
18

25

26

26
28

30
31

B4 Lai Ni Hium, Frank
ZE % Director

BEAER BALANCE SHEET

66 66
7 8
28,595 26,797
28,668 26,871
553 1,398
= 4
5,081 5,446
5,634 6,848
(1,981) (6,722)
(1,981) (6,722)
3,653 126
32,321 26,997
(10,879) (9,069)
(1) 1)
(10,880) (9,070)
21,441 17,927
15,740 2,403
5,701 15,524
21,441 17,927




FEHLMER CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HEZT—WF+=A=+—HI%FE For the year ended 31 December 2014

—E—NF —E—=F
2014 2013
P 5 BEEEBT BEBEETT
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
RETHZHERE Cash flows from operating
activities
KRS 2R Cash generated from operations 32A 6,389 12,827
D ESFIER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (178) (211)
2 B R TS Chinese Mainland income tax paid (2,024) (1,909)
REBEBNEN Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 6 31
RIEBEBFBAMETERH Chinese Mainland income tax
refunded 71 42
RETERZEHESRANFE Net cash from operating activities 4,264 10,780
REFTHZHENRE Cash flows from investing
activities
HEBTEEEMBSHIE Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets 366 394
HEAEREMSRIE Proceeds from disposal of
available for sale investments 238 -
EHEEENE HE Proceeds from formation of joint
B B~ 5] BF 15 A 2 venture/disposal of partial
FTi§ kI8 interest in subsidiaries 3,547 4
HERE QR TS IRIE Proceeds from disposal of
associates - 5
HEMB AR, %5 Disposal of subsidiaries/business
(R E2RE R (net of cash and cash equivalent
ReEE) disposed of) 32B 5 98
B U & R B AR B, Dividends received from
associates 29 36
BEWIE FTH A ERER S Dividends received from unlisted
available for sale investments 7 2
BUF B Interest received 714 527
EXBEHEY Receipt of government grants 515 490
Wl fg 7 &R a) S E B Repayment of loan from fellow
NRIER subsidiaries - 2,466
W EEF—EIER AR ER Repayment of loan from a holding
company 1,640 -
BERT—HEERAF Loan to a holding company - (1,867)
BERT—ETARER Loan to a fellow subsidiary
iy NG| (253) -
BEERTEEZENE® Deposits paid for purchase of
fixed assets (730) (655)
BAETEE Purchase of fixed assets (8,002) (6,440)
BAEMELEE Purchase of other intangible
assets (1) (96)
YNNG Acquisition of associates = 13)
GNP S Acquisition of subsidiaries/
CRiBR W BB FTIS 2 business (net of cash and
RekReFE) cash equivalents acquired) 32C (340) (4,847)
AT LARTF E U BT S A A Settlement of consideration
< FERTFIA payable for acquisition of
subsidiaries in prior year (672) -
EERRRITE T2 EE) Changes in pledged bank deposits 149 55
REFHEAZFRE Net cash used in investing activities (2,788) (9,841)
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FEE LR ER CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

maBleiii gk

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-_T—NF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Q
% BEITHHERE Cash flows from financing
é E activities
& § EfRE Dividends paid (276) (673)
< =EeLiIEYNGIE S et Dividends paid to non-controlling
fEER 2 Bz B shareholders of subsidiaries (100) (124)
BAF & Interest paid (441) (334)
BITL W ATIS IEF R Net proceeds from issue of
ordinary shares 18 18
BRITREMEEMSHIEA Proceeds from bank and
other borrowings 12,695 9,405
FEEBIR R R IRA Contribution from non-controlling
” interest - 1,620
E’ BERITEHEMEER Repayment of bank and
52 other borrowings (13,679) (4,720)
Eg EREMHT B A RS Purchase of additional interests in
= 5 subsidiaries ) (650)
o i B R 1 2R T B AR 1 Purchase of shares under
restricted incentive award
scheme (120) (451)
BmEETH(FER) EE2 Net cash (used in)/from financing
] FES activities (1,912) 3,991
BHERBRSEE Net (decrease)/increase in cash
CRi4) /#hn and cash equivalents (436) 4,930
R fERF{RE 7 & Effect of foreign exchange rate
§ changes (117) 265
N g R—A—BZzH&k Cash and cash equivalents at
i & HeEE 1 January 21,200 16,005
ﬂj *fé’ R+=—A=+—H2Z Cash and cash equivalents at
% BHeRBESEE 31 December 20,647 21,200
o

BeRBSEEEBR DN Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents

e MIBITHET Cash and bank balances 20,647 21,200
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Ao IBC SRR 2 2 B ok

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T—NF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

HRoE-EE-A-A At 1 January 2014 2,408 12,092 1,048 1n 4,564 (451) 22,545 4073 15,538 59,611
Nsh EEZE Exchange ifferences on ~
tranglating forelgn operations - - - - (102 - - (102 @®) (110) g
TERENAEESEE Farvaeadustment on s
avallable for sale investments = = 14 = = - - 14 2 143 % =
Rt ERELT Release of exchange diferences g g
e ExZE upon dlisposal of subsiciaries = s 5 - ) . . ] . o o
AHETERE Release of valuation reserve upon e

A dlisposal of avalable or

sale investments - - (163) - - - - (163) - (163)
NEERRS Surplus on revaluation of
properties - - 3 - - - - 3B 9 Iy
REERH Prot for the year - - - - - - 6) (6 I 01 .
TEERENE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 16 - (108) - (161) (253) 455 202
RAEEARA Shares issued at premium 14 5 - = - - - 19 : 18
HESHHBATEE  Disposalof paril inerestin S
(HE=17) subsidiaries (Note 36) - - - - (373) - 5,498 5,125 5000 10125 S
WERBA T E Acquision of subsidaries or g ;;
HELER purchase of addfiond nerest © m
i subsiares - - - - - - 1 1 @ ] g ¥
ENELT Disposal of subsiries - - - - - - - - (t3) (t3) 8
BEGLERSI Purchase or sale o shares under ®
REHIORG resticted incentive award scheme - - - - - 58 - 58 - 58
BEFEE0AGABRRG  Transfer upon aboltion of par
AEBER valug under the new Hong Kong
Companies Oralnance 12997 (12997 - - - - - - - -
ke Dividends - - - - - - B /1 RO (7]
RNRREMEAZRG  Sharesissuedinlieu of scrip
dvidend 326 - - - - - - 326 - 326
13,337 (12,992) 16 - (481) 5 4,736 4,674 5,338 10,012
RE-mE At 31 December 2014
t2R=1-H 15,740 - 1,864 1n 4,083 (393) 27,281 48747 20876 69,623
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Aok IR SROBE 2 2 ) o

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_T—NF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

R-5-=5-A-A At 31 January 2013 2,401 12,976 9 172 3,609 - 21,485 40,742 13,042 53,784
Bgh EREE Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations - - - - 968 - - 968 467 1435
TERADAEESE  Fairvalue acjustment on
avalaole for sale investments - - 2 - - - - 21 - 21
BHENHEAR Release of exchange differences
[ A upon disposal of subsidiaries - - - - 19 - - (19 _ (13
RLENBAR Release of valuation reserve upon
figti (hEkE disposal of subsidiares - - ] - - - 3 - B, B}
EEA Surplus on revaluation of
properties - - 1,781 - - - - 1,731 - 1,731
KRR Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,908 1,908 1,244 3,152
TEERANE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 1,749 - 955 - 1,911 4,615 1,11 6,326
RREEARA SharesIssued at premium 2 16 - - - - - 18 - 18
SEEHRRESZA  Controution from non-controling
interest - - - - - - - - 1,520 1,520
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsiciaries o
WELTER purchase of additional
Interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - (178) (178) (459) 637)
HEHBLARE Disposal of subsidiaries or
WBLAERR) decrease I shareholdings
0f subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (182) (152)
EERAIRE:E Purchase of shares under
lbu restrcted incentive
award scheme - - - - - (451) - (451) - (451)
ke Dividends - - - - - - 673) 673) (124) (797)
2 16 1,749 - 955 (451) 1,060 3,331 2,496 5821
3 At 31 December 2013
T2F=1-H 2403 12,992 1,848 172 4,564 (451) 22,545 44,013 15,038 59,611
fizF: R-ZT——&F  AEBHEERBERZ240%4  Note: In 2011, the Group disposed of its 40% interest in beverage business for
R EBYABERETZEENRE - REREW a net cash consideration of approximately HK$3.2 billion. Pursuant to the
% AR AR ERAEER R A RNEN shareholders agreement, the non-controlling interest shall have the right
BAFRE+=ZBFUTS AR EEREELI0% to cause the Group to purchase all the 40% equity interest at fair market
fEo value upon the eighth anniversary or the thirteenth anniversary of the date

of the agreement.



B R E M NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARRT—RARBAEMKL 2 ETHER
RAE] HEOREEBAXSMBERRT
(TBEXF ) £ - EERRZRERAF]
ARPBERMK T EEREAR([H
BER]) - ARAEMPEERETELE
HEE R M UE TIB R F A o

AEEETERETE B RREARE
¥ c ARl EEEBRIREZEREY
¥RE -HFEMBRR 8ECERE
BNR)ZEBTIHNEI91EEFE198H

BE-_T-HNF+=-A=+—BLLFEHN
HBHRETIREBTELARSARANEEH -
BRI XM E—E RSt BERSRIERIN
MIEMETIRIBBEXSEH R -

BEoN - SRE MRS BIEH AR E S LW
RARBBARGORENEARES
18 o

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liabilities and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company to be China Resources National Corporation
(“CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese Mainland.
The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is disclosed in the Annual Report.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food
and beverage businesses. The principal activities of the
Company are investment holding and property investment.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are shown on pages 191 to 198.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as
specified in the principal accounting policies as set out in
note 2, the financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BRELER ) 2 ¥ RASIERTER - BF] R
2l NREER - AEBERMA T THIRYF
RAEHERTERA « {EFT M2 kg -

S5HER TRHEERERARE
F325 (7]) prkiis::
SEHERIE365 FEREERTE L
(f&37) QIR Ek
SR F305% EHESITETA
(f&37) MEEMEH
FBREENE10% - REER
MRS R
F125R R G ER
F275R(E7])
HHREEA B2
REE1R

SIREAMF MEERTER - BRI RBEY
AEBROE S AR R AT ST HEE
BRMBRRALREBRERNTE  WHA
TR AEM BT HRFREE -

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations on Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are effective or available
for early adoption for the financial year beginning 1 January
2014. In the current year, the Group has adopted the
following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations.

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
(Amendments) Financial Liabilities

HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
(Amendments) Non-financial Assets

HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
(Amendments) of Hedge Accounting

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities
and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS Levies

Interpretation 21

The adoption of the new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations has had no material effect on the results
or financial positions of the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustments
are required.



B R E M NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREBEW RIZATSRAZE EBME R RE
REFT M AE AT BRI S B ET

ERREIERLAC D)

SEAERE16% R
SHTERI8E
(&:7)

SEERIE165 &
SEERIE4R

({&5T)
SEHERR27H
CHD)

G AERIE 195
2011)(1&3T)
B RS RI(1ER])

BRI (15T
B R R (153])
BT IR 2RI 95
B RS RIS 1057

REFTERIE 285
(&57)

PBRELERFE10% -

B R 42
F125 ReFT LA
F28% (157])
MBmEEAEIR
(1831)
BB mEERE 145
B mEERIE15%

TR E

BB EME
BEESL 0P

REAEMED

AR B IR s

AERAEE
BTHXK
HUBRELER 2 FE
P (2010-2012)
BB EERNZER
B (2011-2013)
HIMBRELR 2 FE
B (2012-2014)
EMIA
REFEABEKEE
TEZANEELE
KA
REER : ERKE

ABRZ BISMER

Yo 'E% ®me
EES

ﬁtﬂEUE

REEPANNKE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and amendments that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
(Amendments)
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
(Amendments)
HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendments)
HKFRSs
(Amendments)
HKFRSs
(Amendments)
HKFRSs
(Amendments)
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(Amendments)
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
(Amendments)
HKFRS 11
(Amendments)
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments

Sale and Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has not early applied the new standards and
amendments that have been issued by the HKICPA but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced
an assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amendments but is not yet in a position to determine whether
these new standards and amendments would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
come into operation as from the Company s first financial
year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance. The group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application of Part
9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and only the presentation and the disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements will be
affected.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include
the financial statements of the Company and of all its direct
and indirect subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s
interests in associates and joint ventures on the basis set
out in note 2C and 2D below. The results of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures acquired or disposed of during
the year are included from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All
material intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on consolidation.



B R E M NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For
decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether
the disposals would result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the share of net assets
disposed of was recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not involve
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss. When control of
subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or other
circumstance, the Group derecognises all assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests at their carrying amount. Any
retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at
its fair value at the date the control is lost, with the gain or
loss arising recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the group has control. The group controls an entity
when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases. In the Company’s balance
sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a
joint venture, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and
assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in
associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate. In the consolidated balance sheet,
interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of net
assets of the associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate, which
forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an
associate, represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities.
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A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the group
contractually agreed to share control of the arrangement and
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The results
and assets and liabilities of joint venture are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in joint ventures are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the joint ventures, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that
joint venture, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture. In the consolidated
balance sheet, interests in joint ventures are stated at the
Group’s share of net assets of the joint ventures plus goodwiill
arising on acquisitions. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an joint venture, which forms part of the carrying amount of
an investment in an joint venture, represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to 1
January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January 2010
represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the previously held
equity interest in the acquiree over the net fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and is not reversed in a
subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001
continues to be recognised as a deduction from equity and
is not recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
when the Group disposes of all or part of the business to
which that goodwill relates or when a cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition arising on
an acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Gain
on bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
on or after 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed over the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the previously held equity
interest in the acquiree. Discount on acquisition or gain on
bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”
and “available-for-sale investments” dependent on the
purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial liabilities
are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss” and “financial liabilities other than financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (other financial liabilities)”.
Details of classifications and measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and have two sub-
categories: financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.
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(b)

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market which are initially measured
at fair value. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes
significant financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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(c) Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity
securities, that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be measured
reliably. These available for sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment losses. Apart from this,
available for sale investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity
and recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the
equity investment is impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with the operations of the
investment.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Available for sale investments (continued)

For those investments carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity investment
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not
reverse in subsequent periods. For those investments
carried at fair value, any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such equity investments is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
valuation reserve.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
the profit and loss account in the period in which they
arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in the profit
and loss account.
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(a)

(b)

Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings which are held for long term rental and/or for
capital appreciation. Such properties are carried in the
balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in fair value
of investment properties are recognised directly in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or administrative purposes,
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes all construction expenditure,
professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and
other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred
to the appropriate category of fixed assets when
available for use.
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(c)

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties
and construction in progress are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write
off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight line method. The
residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements 3 1o 10 years or over the

unexpired term of lease,
whichever is shorter

- Vessels 5to 15 years
- Cold storage facilities 10 years
- Plant and machinery 5to 25 years
- Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years
- Motor vehicles 310 8 years
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(d) Leased assets

(M

(i

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases
that transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases and
are accounted for as if purchased whereby an
amount equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed
assets and as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided in accordance with the
Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the
lessor are treated as consisting of capital and
interest elements. The interest element is charged
to the profit and loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating
leases (net of any benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease)
is recognised in the profit and loss account
on a straight line basis over the periods of the
respective leases except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment
property.
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(e)

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess
whether there is any indication that fixed asset other
than investment properties are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss
is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in the
profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount. Such
reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the profit
and loss account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of fixed asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the profit and loss account.
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On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired
separately and from business combinations are recognised
at cost and at fair value respectively. After initial recognition,
other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at
cost and are amortised on the straight line method over their
useful lives with amortisation commences when the asset is
available for use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible
assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names
Exploitation rights

10 to 20 years
17 to 20 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment
exists, an impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss
account to reduce the assets to its recoverable amount.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements, with
limited exceptions. Deferred taxation assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties, the presumption that the carrying
amount of the investment properties will be recovered
through sales is not rebutted.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which
is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to management
estimates based on prevailing market conditions.

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables
and packing materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and
merchandise for resale are stated at the lower of cost (include
those costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished
goods. Purchase rebates are deducted in determining the
cost of purchase) and net realisable value or amortised into
expense based upon periods of usage.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the
case of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-
out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the related costs
of marketing, selling and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments (including put options issued
by the Group over non-controlling interests in subsidiary
companies that may be settled by exchange of a variable
amount of cash for a fixed number of shares of the subsidiary
companies) are recognised at fair value at each balance
sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as
effective hedging instruments. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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(a)

(b)

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when
hedges are made to hedge against exposure to
changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments
and hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognised in the profit and loss account in the periods in
which fair value changes arise.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when
hedges are made to hedge against exposure to
variability in cash flows that are attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially
recognised in equity and transferred to the profit and
loss account when the hedged item affects the profit
and loss account. The ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or a non-financial liability, the associated
gains or losses are removed from equity and included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or
liability.
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Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or
are classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are
taken directly to the profit and loss account.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the profit and loss account over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and
loss account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is amortised to the consolidated
profit and loss account over the guarantee period.



B R E M NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EERAZEAEEAR  YNELFE
ZBRHERME - EERSRKE - R
EEVALB - RBRIERZIET EER
HEEREMERHEZEE 2 RAR#
REXR  ERZEEEZRNKAE  BEE
EREERR LEARAERERGIHE
Rk e

RTHHREERERA R R ERE S M
MERRRLTER - RAERNE A RS
SHACARTI B

ERIVER SEER M BRER - A&
ERZEEBUINEMER (INE )T
ZRZTERZ AR EXRAMATER
BEREREEXMEIZQERR L
EH¥)IIER - RBEFER - UINEREN
ZERHEERBEEAZEXREHNHRE - LA
SNEREBEMIRARBEIIRZIFESIRR
REEAABEER EXENHRE -
RIGRAFT BMAINE RER 2 FFEHKIR
BEASHNE -

ReEEBHE MERRRAMELZ
EAZENEREZR 2 HMERSERE
B EBRARERNBIINEL FER
BE—#r 2 E¥ BB MELE ZERLZHK
Sh o EIERT » ZRFELEZERHEGEY
BHmEHERA/EMEE WS - RREIF
EXBEEAMEEEL B ERERSE
b2 EY s o

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis
and charged to the profit and loss account in the year
incurred, except for costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of that assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities
and debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on a
monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in
the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

The Group has granted share options to certain employees
and other participants, for their services rendered, to
subscribe for shares of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s share option scheme. The fair value of services
received is determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based
compensation reserve).
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The fair values of investment properties are determined
annually by independent valuer on market value for existing
use basis or calculated on the net rental income and allowing
for reversionary income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given
to assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date and appropriate
capitalisation rates of the net rental income. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and
transactions entered into by the Group.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2E. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts
have been determined either based on value-in-use calculations
or the cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details
of the key assumptions are disclosed in Note 17.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, bank balances and derivative financial
instruments entered into.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to
trade and other receivables as its customer bases are widely
spread across diverse industries and geographical locations.
For its retail businesses and some transactions in its beer and
beverage businesses, sales of products are made in cash.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that open account
customers are financially viable and with an appropriate
credit history. To minimise its credit risk exposure, credit
evaluations are performed for the determination and approval
of credit limits granted and other monitoring procedures are
implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on aging
and recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving
derivative financial instruments, the Group has procedures
and policies in place to ensure they are made to
counterparties with good credit rating.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company
as set out in note 35, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk as at
31 December 2014.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of adequate committed credit facilities
to fund capital, prospective investment opportunities, debt
servicing obligations and dividend payments. Management
also closely monitors the Group’s rolling forecast and actual
cash flows and maturity profiles of financial liabilities.
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2014
Fixed rate borrowings
Bank loans

Variable rate borrowings
Bank loans

2013
Variable rate borrowings
Bank loans

Other than short term loans, long term loans and derivative
financial instruments, all other financial liabilities of the
Group are non-interest bearing. The following table details
the outstanding contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date of the Group’s borrowings and derivative financial
instruments, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. For derivate instruments settled on a net
basis, undiscounted net cash inflow/(outflow) is presented.
Whereas they require gross settlement, the undiscounted
gross inflow/(outflow) is presented.

BiTHRER

BEREAE

R-22% W-ZRf Total
—ER 2B 28 BBEE  contractual EHE
Within1 ~ Between1  Between2 Over  undiscounted Carrying
year and2years and5 years 5years cash flow amount

AEEEr A%EEr  A¥PEn  A%EEn  A¥EER  A%BEER
HKSmilion ~ HK$milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$ milion ~ HKS milion  HKS$ million

(315) - - - (315) (310)
(0,248) (5458  (14577) (159) (20442  (28587)
(0,563) (458  (14577) (159) (29757 (28897)

(3,691) (9,273 (10,286)

=)

(23,159) (22,708)
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long
term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and
floating interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. To cover
interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a
preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review regularly.
To avoid undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into
interest rate swaps to mitigate current and future corporate
profitability from interest rate volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2014 would decrease/increase
by HK$289 million (2013: decrease/increase by HK$227
million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the
analysis is used for reference purpose and should not be
considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong
Kong and have their local currencies as their functional
currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 99% (2013: 99%) of the Group’s sales
are demoninated in the group entity’s respective functional
currencies, whilst approximately 99% (2013: 99%) of costs
are denominated in the group entity’s respective functional
currencies.
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The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

—E—-mEF ===
2014 2013
BE i=Fi BE ats
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BEEHET BY¥EEBERT BEeERXT BYEEER
HK$ million HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
476 1 2,207
999 5,810 1,184 5,874
1 - 74 _

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against
the Renminbi. Under the linked exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar will be immaterial and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at year end for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where
the relevant foreign currency strengthens 5% against Hong
Kong dollars. For a 5% weakening of the relevant foreign
currency against Hong Kong dollars, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and other equity.
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B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEEBRR(BR)NEE
Effect on profit/ Effect on other
(loss) after tax components of equity
—E-mE —ZZT—=F ZZE-NFE =—T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
BEEHERT #BEKaEr BYEEEBR BYEER
HK$ million HK$ milion HK$ million  HK$ million

HESHMARBINTE

24 110 - -

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the
analysis is used for reference purpose and should not be
considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 27, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raise of bank borrowings or
the redemption of existing debt.

—E-mEF ==

2014 2013

BEEHET BERETT

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEAERATHIEB >  Turnover comprises revenue from:

WA

HEE® Sales of goods 156,876 136,777

TR R E AU A Rendering of services and others 11,084 8,922

el A Rental income 904 714

168,864 146,413
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

LEE D EAEBRRSEERRTHZA i . X
HRIFEF T — B o the internal reporting for resource allocation and assessment
- of performance.
RER
AR
g R R& @' Investments Faf &t
Retail' Beer' Food  Beverage' and Others Elimination Total
BYEEErT BYEER EYPEn AMEEn  BYEER  EYEEn  A¥EER
HK$ million  HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million  HKS million
BE-E2-mf For the year ended
TZB=1+-HIEE 31 December 2014
EXH TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 109,382 34,376 15,295 9,811 - - 168,864
ES ki Inter-segment sales? 118 106 1,191 80 - (1,495) -
A% Total 109,500 34,482 16,486 9,891 - (1,495) 168,864
AERE Segment result? (1,020) 2,200 181 503 - 1,864
FEHENAT Unallocated corporate
B expenses (211)
MEMA Interest income 714
BB Finance costs (526)
BE AR Profit before taxation 1,841
HE Taxation (1,550)
REEER Profit for the year 291
RZB-mE As at 31 December 2014
+ZR=+-H
gE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 102,966 54,186 12,961 3,423 - 173,536
EARELE Deferred taxation assets 2,274
ARERE Taxation recoverable 157
REHEHLA Unallocated corporate
BHEE assets 5,397
BABEAR Consolidated total assets 181,364
af LIABILITIES
PEEE Segment liabilities 56,667 29,587 2,741 3,357 - 92,352
FERHA Taxation payable 1,069
EEHEEE Deferred taxation
liabilities 2,245
RENBHAT Unallocated corporate
BIaE liabilities 16,075
GRERAR Consolidated total
liabilities 111,741
EftEH OTHER INFORMATION
REEREE Additions to non-current
assets’ 23,372 3,079 458 787 3 27,699
TERER Depreciation and
amortisation 2,299 2,153 223 170 2 4,847
PR ERE Impairment loss recognised® 439 63 15 45 - 562
RENEERAS Valuation gain on
Investment properties 610 - - - - 610
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Bz-%--F For the year ended
TZAZ+-HILEE 31 December 2013
i TURNOVER
HoMEE External sales
FHREEE Inter-segment sales?
At Total
AEEE Segment result®
ﬂii‘“ YR AT Unallocated corporate
BT expenses
fakn Interest income
BRI Finance costs
B AR Profit before taxation
HE Taxation
REERT Profit for the year
R-8-z% As at 31 December 2013
_1ZR=t-
ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets
i UR%E%F Deferred taxation assets
MREHE Taxation recoverable
ﬁii“‘ YN AT Unallocated corporate
BHEE assets
DREENE Consolidated total assets
& LIABILITIES
HEER Segment liabilities
ENTE Taxation payable
ERREEE Deferred taxation liabilities
REHBHAA Unallocated corporate
a3sk liabiliies
BRERAR Consolidated total
liabilities
EftEH OTHER INFORMATION
REFRIEE Additions to non-current
assets*
RERES Depreciation and
amortisation
FETHERE Impairment loss
recognized
RENMEEHRS Valuation gain on
Investment properties
BiEE -
1. sk B B A K E B KK FEIE G A R
o AR THERFEIIBEEEI18EZEE

BRAARBEAE -

: ey
2. EBUHETEEROTEEENE

TE

\ Retai’
BEHEL
HK$ million

96,072
102

95,174
1,973

78,652

43,694

6,051
1,753
112
280

3 DEEEERBRTFIEWA - FHRARB
IEH\J%?‘F‘N

4. AREINDEELRECEE  BERH
1 BIAE -

5. {ERHETesco Bl EHEABIZH — 317 -

AEENTEXBER ¢ it 7 & ERE
BRMBE  AEMBAE TREMATRR

=R EH

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
Y37

i R # Investments Faf= At

Beer' Food  Beverage' and Others  Elimination Total

AEEET A¥EET BYEEn  A¥EER  ABEER  EEEER
HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HKS million ~ HKS milion  HKS million

32,835 11,267 7,239 - - 146,413
159 802 66 - (1,129) -

32,994 12,069 7,306 - (1,129) 146,413
2,581 208 224 - 4,986

(170)
534
(304)

5,046
(1,894)

3,162

56,052 9,777 4,342 - 147,823
1,640
251

5,675
155,289

31,367 2,396 2,870 - 80,327
1,166
1,831

12,365

96,678

9,343 1,283 724 1 17,402
1,834 201 100 1 3,889
109 60 - - 281
- - - - 280

Notes:

1. These segments have significant non-controlling interest to the
Group, details are set out on the principal subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates on pages 191 to 198.

2. Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates.

3. Segment result represents earnings before interest income, finance
costs and taxation.

4. Additions to non-current assets included fixed assets, goodwill and
other intangible assets.

5, As part of the integration process with Tesco’s China operations,

the Group’s retail segment had made provision on assets
impairment during the year for the closure of certain less efficient
stores and stores with poor prospects.
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B it HbE X
) Chinese Other i
Hong Kong Mainland Countries Total
Mt =R BEBETT BERET BEBET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BLE—F-—MmF Turnover for the
+=ZB=+-H year ended
I FENEESE 31 December 2014 9,510 159,193 161 168,864
R-E—NEF As at 31 December 2014
tT=A=+-—-8H
IFREEE Non-current assets
(FaE) (Note) 16,514 97,306 1 113,821
BE—Z2—-=%+-A Turnover for the
=t-HLEFEEW year ended
E 31 December 2013 8,100 138,192 121 146,413
R-ZE—=% As at 31 December 2013
+=-A=+-8
FRBEE Non-current assets
(BfE) (Note) 15,637 74,733 1 90,371
Mizk : ETMBEETREANERERELEHBEE Note: Non-current assets excluded available for sale investments and
B deferred taxation assets.
—2-mEF —F—=
2014 2013
BEEEBR BERETT
HK$ million HK$ million
Httg ABHETHIEE : Other income includes the following:
REAFELEMAIERE Dividends from unlisted available for

HI AR B sale investments 7 2
FEMKA Interest income 714 534
WEYEEHER Valuation gain on investment properties 610 280
HEMB AR, %5 Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/

P15 4 A business 12 1
HEBENRIFTERA Profit on disposal of associates - 1
HEREXERSET Profit on disposal of available for

sale investments 147 -
HEBEEEMSEFR Profit on disposal of fixed assets = 174

B R BT B Government grants recognised 336 345

dnoJg ay] noqy
e AV

B CH b % 5

slepjoyeieys InQ oL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I\, BAB AR 8. FINANCE COSTS

HARAFRNEBHEEZ Interests on bank loans and other loans
RITER LA EFHE wholly repayable within five years 433 329

BE S (BIEE R W& Financing charges (including exchange
EE) gain or loss) 114 )
547 327

B AERBEERATAZ Less: Amount capitalized in cost of
B 758 AN FRIE* qualifying assets* (21) (23)
526 304
* RER - —RRAEZE INHEF 198 R F =R * During the year, the weighted average capitalization rate on funds
BEBE1.64% ° borrowed generally is 1.64% per annum.

Ju. AAE P Vi A 9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

AEERNOHBRTERIE :  Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

1ZE AN & Auditors’ remuneration
—AREE - current year 39 33
— AR E D5t — underprovision in prior year 2 -
41 33
BIRK(BEEFHE) Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 19,396 16,468
e Depreciation
—BBEE — Owned assets 4,795 3,853
BRI EEE Impairment loss recognised on
(BIEEHEEMAR (included in cost of sales,
HERDHERAK selling and distribution expenses or
— B RITHERN) general and administrative expenses)
—BExEE — fixed assets 524 88
—HthE\BREE — other intangible assets - 2
-7E — stocks 38 183
— B A A - associate = 8
Ebfmfp & Amortisation of other intangible
(BRE—RKE assets (included in general and
ITEREBRN) administrative expenses) 52 36
TH REFE S EERLEBRA  Operating leases charges on land and
(FsE—) buildings (Note 1) 6,135 4,715
BEEEmRKA Cost of goods sold 126,042 108,656
WEFTA : And after crediting:
WA ERE Gross rental income 904 714
S AR Less: Related out-goings (70) (63)
He WA FRE Net rental income 834 651
HiaE : Note:
- ERIAESERIsIEAT(—F—= 1. Including contingent rent of HK$189 million (2013: HK$151 million).
& BBISTERTL) « ATMRZKA Conting%nt rent%or certain progerties Wa?s cge?ercrsnined$bf/ a certoai)n

HER@RRE TR LRE - percentage of turnover of the leases.
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+. EFEMWE 10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

e Fees 1.51 1.50
HEARE & KIERL Basic salaries and allowances 10.97 11.04
NESHR Provident fund contributions 0.46 0.42
TE4T Bonus 6.92 7.36

19.86 20.32

slepjoyeieys InQ oL
o G L) % 0E

FBA Chen Lang 0.08 2.56 0.16 - 2.80 4,63
AR Hong Jie 0.08 2.21 0.15 1.7 4.21 3.26
e Liu Hongji 0.08 2.33 0.07 319 5.67 558 s
Pk Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.08 3.81 0.08 2.02 5.99 5.72
HXR Du Wenmin = - - - - _
Eis Wei Bin - - - - = - o
1] Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.07 %
RE Chen Ying 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08 s N
Iz Wang Yan 0.03 - - - 0.03 - o ﬁﬁ
BAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19 % o
SR Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19 5
gEg Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19 3
RER Bernard Charnwut Chan 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
= Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
Bl Huang Daoguo 0.05 - - - 0.05 0.08
A&t Total 1.51 10.97 0.46 6.92 19.86 -
—F-=F 2013 1.50 11.04 0.42 7.36 - 20.32
U A2 EMFEZICEEE - BARIAL 1 The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results,
THERREFAETSHAETEE ° individual performance and comparable market statistics during
both years.
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AR KA ST = 11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FARN GRS HFEERRE = (=2 —=: The five highest paid employees during the year included
=f)EE FBHEHREXHFET - H three (2013: three) directors, details of whose remunerations
BB (CE—=F M) R HEEM are set out in note 10 above. The details of the remunerations
BEXNZMesFFBwT paid to the other two (2013: two) highest paid employees are
as follows:

FARAEE
About The Group

HAH S K Basic salaries and allowances 4.33 4.01
NESHK Provident fund contributions 0.21 0.22
TEAT Bonus 6.29 4.31
10.83 8.54
IR (ZZE—=F : M) &e N F The emoluments of this two (2013: two) highest paid
TEItEE: individuals were within the following band:

RO RE
To Our Shareholders

3,500,001-4,000,000 3,500,001-4,000,000 -
D 4,500,001-5,000,000 4,500,001-5,000,000
6,000,001-6,500,001 6,000,001-6,500,001 1 -
+ B AES 12. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND
[0}
O
5 B HE A Hong Kong
;fn(%; REBLZEZERELALEREEREFE The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
ZK ° FAMFURRETE] - xS Bz EERANE schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees.
g BEEESHERE VTHEVEEZESE The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
s B oMHENREBEEEEAEF S ZIETA of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
© ML EtE - MBEBE TEREZE 2 (EME amount of contributions is based on a specified percentage
U4 2R I A AR R AR S [ 2 R 3R o of the basic salary of employees and any forfeited

contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers
are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

=

Q

£

2

a AEEEBE N NES 2 HE Group contributions to staff

© SRR -ErEagiil provident fund, charged to

§ consolidated profit and loss

= account 44 45

i A B 2R IR R Un-utilised forfeited contributions = -
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T B AR (5])

Z HERi

AEEETEABNESHBERALE R
7 BB R E R AREN 8
K& o AEBAMZ B ME TERE
BOLLOEFR - FRENES - AEEE
A Bl ME— B ERE R EHRR -

A Eeh B AR Bl R4S B
KPR AR A K Z B M 2,006 B & T
“T—=%: B¥18156BET) °

+= Bl

12. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND (continued)

B Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local government in the Chinese
Mainland. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss
account in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the
Chinese Mainland amounted to approximately HK$2,096
million (2013: HK$1,815 million).

13. TAXATION

AEERE Current taxation

B Hong Kong 176 175
AR A D, Chinese Mainland 1,847 2,200
2,023 2,375

IEFERIE Deferred taxation
e Hong Kong (9) 5
AR A b Chinese Mainland (464) (486)
(473) (481)
1,550 1,894

ERFETIIREANEE 2 [t R R
FIRTEE16.5%( —F— =4 : 16.5%) 5t
ﬁ °

TEALHERRZAERIRIEE AR
WBEDIZ 5 ERTUR N A - BN
IR R B AR ERBR R E

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based
on the estimated assessable profits in accordance with the
relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese
Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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+=BiIHE (4) 13. TAXATION (continued)
AEBERBBRFEIERN 2 FHIEE BIRRER The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
KAABERFERMETE 2R the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic
E3-p N rates applicable to the country concerned as follows:

FARAEE
About The Group

B B A (B FE RS Profit before taxation (excluding share of
BE N NAIREERE net results of associates and
ZEETFE) joint ventures) 1,905 5,019
NEREZREBRE Tax calculated at the domestic rates
E B applicable in the country concerned 386 1,166
0 IR 2 A Income not subject to taxation (174) (108)
i é Al kR 2 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation
E % purposes 145 294
% 5 FRERIABWER ZFHE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
e 8 losses (129) (219)
e RAEHERZBA Tax loss not recognised 1,280 798
EFDL(Z) BB ZHE Under/(over) provision on taxation in
previous year 45 (29)
SHEFIA B EA G R IE (ME) Income earning companies exempted
B from taxation (note) (13) (18)
AOBAEZ FEIATER Withholding tax on undistributed profits 10 10
BIA Taxation charge 1,550 1,894
% B Note:
& g AEBRGEDE AL ENHBAT I ZE TR Cf—:‘rf(ain of the Gr'oup’s supsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are
ﬁnﬁ (CD) R e M THISEE - YR OBEEE RS g eligible for certalp tax hol.ldays Qr concessions and were exempted and
# o PR ETEE - reduced from Chinese Mainland income taxes for the year.
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+19. B S 14. DIVIDENDS

—ET-NENRIREFERR S 2014 interim dividend paid of HK$0.11

dnoJg ay] noqy
i 3 N7 V4 Bl

R mAREE0.117T (2013: HK$0.13) per ordinary share
—T =% : B¥0.137) 265 313

—EFERER B R HIRR . 2014 proposed final dividend of HK$0.16
R R ER0.167T (2013: HK$0.14) per ordinary share

ZE—=% : #%0.147T) 387 337
652 650
EARARRRZZE—AF=A=+HETH At the meeting held on 20 March 2015, the directors 5
gL FEHRURASHEARRARSE proposed final dividend of HK$0.16 (2013: HK$0.14) per 2
REBBRBEEOIGTT(ZE—=F : B ordinary share in cash form, with an option to receive new 0¥
0.1470) » SURBUARATIFHA ME HEK and fully paid shares of the Company in lieu of cash. This %g
MREBES - MERETDRAQARE proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s s
TESELREANEBRREGE - Z number of ordinary shares as at the date of the board 3
ERBVENTBERERNERLSEE - AN meeting, is not recognised as a liability in these financial
2 B S BT R AR R BRI AR S AR statements. The total dividends paid by the Company,
HEAE_Z=FENRBRER-ZT including the final dividend for the year 2013 and the interim
—FEENFHRE - BEABE602H dividend for the year 2014, amounting to HK$602 million —
BL(ZE—=F : B¥673EHET) ° (2013: HK$673 million) are reflected in the current year
financial statements.
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+H. R 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

FRERREERFIIEET  The calculation of the basic and diluted
YIEIRETE ¢ earnings per share is based on the
following data:

FARAEE
About The Group

&R Earnings
B EGRERR#EERTF  Profit attributable to shareholders of
B A BV A% B E A S5 A1) the Company for the purposes of
calculating basic and diluted earnings
per share (161) 1,908
o
[0}
°
%2
@
2
'§ %)
&3 KHEE Number of shares
) PG EGREAR BT Weighted average number of ordinary
MR N T shares for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 2,409,546,529 2,402,658,243
RIS 2 B S Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
B -2 shares:
— BERS A - Share options 707,108 1,927,606
AUt E SRS TR Weighted average number of ordinary
M AR N I shares for the purpose of calculating
§ diluted earnings per share 2,410,253,637 2,404,585,849
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TN T

KR

e
R-3-=%-F-
WENHBAA/ £HREA

HEMBAR/ £BEET
A

HE

ENNE

Bfha

EizR
AE-=E+-A=-0R
“T-mE-R-A
WEHBAA/ £HREA

HENBLE/ 2Rk
SRR EREEA
(ME=17)
7E
L&
L
BiiE
EiEE
A-E-ME+-F=1-B
ZHAERGE
R-B-=%-F-A
HEHBRE/ EREEL
KEEHE
HE%D
BRIZREER
Epr
ErzE
R-E-=£+-B=1-BR
“3-RE-f-8
HENERF/ £REEL
KERNE
HEED
BEAZRERE
HAE
EiER
AE-MET-AZ1-H

FEIE
W-F-mF+-A=1-H
RoE-ZE+-B=1-H

BRI BE
A

B-F-IEERME

16. FIXED ASSETS

The Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2013
Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
business
Relating to disposal of subsidlaries/business
Adaltions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014

Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
busingss

Relating to disposal of subsiolaries/business

Relating to business injected by
non-controling interest (Note 36)

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Adjustment on valuation

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2013
Relating to disposal of subsidlaries/business
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications
Exchange ifference

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014
Relating to disposal of subsidlaries/business
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Reclassffications
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

Net book values

At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013
Representing assets stated:

At cost
At 2014 professional valuation

1273 7289 17,543 3,416 53,059 73,083
% 873 1,107 1743 2850 3753
) ) ) k] 64 (1%
1 %9 17 7,688 8125 9,105
(1) 0 ) (1020 (1007) (1,063

2965 (1228 1,680 (3,705 (1,82 )
20 1,615 265 - 266 2161
% 37 %9 2011 3210 353

15,952 9726 2,104 13,350 65,474 91,152
- 5 87 108 195 23
- @2 (1) @ (13 (15)

4014 2503 2423 6377 880 15,317
13 33 i 7901 B3 8678
- %) {4 (616 (2660 126%)
517 i) 2751 29%0) (179 879
610 - G - 69 679
i (19 %) 89) (119) (139

21,105 1847 27,780 52,119 089 11281
- 973 317 12,862 15,989 16,962

- (3) (2) (3) (5) o
- 206 637 3010 3647 3853
- () (15 (780 (7% (1%
- - % 50 8 8
- ) %) (19 () (1)
- 8 u 1484 1,905 2012
- 1,28 4196 16,605 20801 2,03
- - (4 (1) 9] (3
- 27 817 3707 45 47%
- (1) ) 2109 2130) 2140)
- - 13 511 524 524
- 1299 (111 % 8 879
- @ (12 24) (36) (39
- 1,194 4878 18,719 2,507 24,781
21,105 10,653 2,002 33,400 56,302 8,060
16952 8492 17928 2,745 g 60,117
- 1,847 27,780 52,119 79,809 91,746
21,105 - - - - 21,105
21,105 1,847 27,780 52,119 089 11281
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o W ()

16. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

%
# o
s
O The Company
RASEE Cost or valuation
B R-E-=%-F—-H At 1 January 2013 66 2 27 29 95
NE Additions - - 2 2 2
&R Written back on disposals - - ) () ()
RZF-=% At 31 December 2013 and
¢ tZA=t-AR 1 January 2014
w0 ~Z-m5-A-A 66 2 2 26 92
e FE Addiions - - 2 2 2
e c? HERE Written back on disposals - @ 1) 3 3
"3 R-F-mE At 31 December 2014
s +Zf=+-A 66 - 25 % o
ZHERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
R-E-=%F—-F—H At 1 January 2013 - 1 20 21 21
TEERE Charge for the year - - 9 0 9
HERD Written back on disposals - - () () ()
@ R=F-=% At 31 December 2013
é +ZA=+-Ak and 1 January 2014
;ﬂE’n % “T-mFE-A-A - 1 17 18 18
® 9 AEEHE Charge for the year - - 2 2 2
b § HEED Written back on disposals - (1) (1) @ 2
§ RZF-1F At 31 December 2014
TZA=1-H - - 18 18 18
REFE Net book values
RZE-mEF At 31 December 2014
TZA=+-F 66 - 7 7 73
WZT—=F At 31 December 2013
TZA=1+-H 66 1 7 8 74
= EMAAR BE: Representing assets stated:
g IR At cost - - 2% 25 25
:% B-_T-NEEERE At 2014 professional valuation 66 - - - 66
g 66 - 25 25 91
£
('
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oo Wl ()

16. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

YRR 2 REERE: Carrying amounts of the property interests
comprise:
rEH The Group
BB Hong Kong
IRREARNIEE 2 ME Properties held on long lease 10,605 10,289
B HRNEE 2 ME Properties held on medium term
lease 3,897 3,823
IR RN IEE 2 E Properties held on short lease - 12
B g Chinese Mainland
BRREZNOFEE ZME Properties held on long lease 71 96
BRPERAFE 2 W Properties held on medium term
lease 38,973 26,536
BREBRABE 2 ME Properties held on short lease 1,114 1,616
54,660 42,372
P NN The Company
B8 Hong Kong
IR AR AIEF 2 Properties held on medium term
lease 66 66
R E A it Chinese Mainland
R R XIEE 2 Properties held on medium term
lease - 1
66 67

PO ZE-ME+TRA=+—RZEREWMWE A

CHBYEEGEMBERTERAR
{EHE1E o HENEE ARG - (GERD
KRB B FRA R ATIS L BOAERERT
e MR BEAAIRAZ WS EARE
RER(EFERNHABE)NT3.75% %2
9.0%(ZZF—=%: 25%%9.0%) °

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December
2014 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent
professional valuer. The valuation is determined on an
existing use basis. The valuers have relied on the income
capitalization approach and cross-referenced to the direct
comparison method. The income capitalization rates (the
unobservable input) in the range of 3.75% to 9.0% (2013:
2.5% to 9.0%) were used in the income capitalization
approach.
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oo 1l E ()

L HpBEEEEXrEZeERAERTRE  #HER -
B HEMEREE  Hma -

R R E

REHRE &K

16. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Other
plant

fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress,
and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels,

cold storage facilities, furniture and equipment and motor
vehicles.
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The Group
Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2013

Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/business
Relating to disposal of subsidlaries/business
Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014
Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/business
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business
Relating to business injected by
non-controlling interest (Note 36)
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1 January 2013

Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

Net book values

At 31 December 2014
At 31 December 2013

Representing assets stated:

At cost
At 2014 professional valuation

* BERERME S THERSBEA1,7488 8 *

JT °©

453 21,255 6,576 4,050 36,416
o74 1319 - 150 1,743
2 1) (1) () (13)
4431 898 1577 782 7,688
) (490) (189) (333) 1,020
6,067) 2119 17 126 (3,705)
104 1,781 219 137 2,041
3,067 26,875 8,299 4,909 43350
- 105 - 3 108

- ) - (1) 2
3603 1226 1193 455 6,377
4704 743 1,906 548 7.921
138) (619) (048) () (2,616)
(4,485) 534 440 581 2,930)
13 (88) ) @) (89)
6,884 28,675 10,884 5776 52,119
- 8272 2,703 1,887 12,862

- () - (1) ()

- 1,609 706 695 3,010

- (369) (136) (275) (780)

- 4 2 4 50

- (31) ) 15 (18)

- 1290 87 107 1,484

- 10,813 3,360 2432 16,605

- - - (1) 1)

- 1979 110 623 3,707

- (536) (908) (665) 2,109)
90 58 263 100 511
- (261) 109 182 30

1 (29) - 4 (24)

91 12,004 3,929 2,675 18719
6,793 16,551 6,955 3101 33,400
3,267 16,062 4,939 2477 26,745
6,884 28,575 10,884 5776 52,119
6,884 28,575 10,884 5776 52,119

Including interests in leasehold land of HK$1,748 million for
uncompleted properties.
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=& Retail
] Beer
B Food
£ Beverage

CGUz A el & BB Ty {E (B BT B A E
o SR E R ARAREERERBZ
FAFHPBBEEMEL 2B RSRE -
EURAFHrsReRERAREERES)
MxtE - MAARSRENRETERT
PRINE—_(ZE—=F: A2 /\&H)
INBA#TRE -

11,718 8,782
10,444 9,965
663 652
29 29

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on a value in use calculation. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 9.2% (2013: 8.5%) per annum. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the nominal growth
rates stated below.
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T4 r R 17. GOODWILL
g
rEE The Group Sg
FRANE Cost =%
R-—ZT—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 14,965 oF
JE R Exchange difference 328 S
GNP S Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 4,248 U
HEKBAR, ¥ Disposal of subsidiaries/business (96)
RE—=F+_A=+—H8K At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014
—ZE-MNFE—-H—H 19,445 e
ERZER Exchange difference (22)
N GET =N 3S Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 518
SRR IR BUE A TSRS A Relating to business injected by
(FtzE=+7%) non-controlling Interest (Note 36) 2,930 5
RZF—MFE+=A=1t—H At 31 December 2014 22,871 S§
RERERE Accumulated impairment losses %g
R-B—=F+-A=+—H" At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 g;iﬁ
—T-NE—A—HBR-ZT—NE and 31 December 2014 3
+=—A=+—H 17 Z
BRTEE Carrying values
RZZE—E+-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2014 22,854
RZE—=F+=-RA=+—H At 31 December 2013 19,428
MEERAE EZREEELEEN The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash
(TCGUI) " W ASERETHEER generating units (“CGU”), each of which represent an
MBEAREENEMBZEEETRE - UK operating entity within the operating segments identified by o)
REEBSEZHOERE the Group for the purpose of segment reporting. A segment g
level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below: & ';";
Om
g
§
®

g
&
#
I




FARAEE
About The Group

BRI BRR

To Our Shareholders

e
o

S|

Corporate Governance

-
f=
[
£
o

-
«©

S

(7]

)
)
c
o

=

i

164 ZEHAIZEER 2" CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

B # R4 i NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U 285 it B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+L () 17. GOODWILL (continued)
FERBEELAZTERE : Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

THE Retail 8% 8%
iz Beer 8% 8%
B Food 8% 8%
4 Beverage 8% 8%
) B 8 A R 2 b g 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

PN/ The Company

FELTARR - A E Unlisted shares, at cost 14,932 14,932

JE U B &8 A R RRIA Amounts due from subsidiaries 13,663 11,865
RIE—NE+-_A=1t—HZIFEWEB Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014
NAFBEREHREIO1BEEE198H ° are set out on pages 191 to 198.
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. HoA S T 3 19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

KEE The Group
AR Cost
W-Z—=F—A—H At 1 January 2013 513 82 595
NE Additions 96 - 96
WK B AR, ¥% Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 200 - 200
ERERE Exchange difference 19 2 21
RIT—=F At 31 December 2013
TZA=+-HK and 1 January 2014
—E—NF—-A—H 828 84 912 5
NE Additions 1 - 1 O
WK B AR, £5% Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 1 - 1 o2
ERER Exchange difference @) - @) g §
RZE—mF At 31 December 2014 g*’*
+-A=+-8 826 84 910 3
REtEHELRE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
WZE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 291 9 300
REEHEH Charge for the year 31 5 36 R
DR REER Impairment loss recognised 2 - 2
ERERE Exchange difference 12 - 12
NZT—=fF At 31 December 2013 o
+ZA=+—-8Bk and 1 January 2014 2
—E-mE—f—A 336 14 350 5 b
T Charge for the year 47 5 52 ‘5 ﬁﬁ
ERZER Exchange difference @) - @) 52'; B
RZZ—NE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 381 19 400 §
REFE Net book values °
RZZE—mEF At 31 December 2014
+=ZA=+—H 445 65 510
RIT—=F At 31 December 2013
+-A=+—-H 492 70 562
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T iR o vl Z R AR

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEH The Group
L Unlisted
BLHEEFE Share of net assets 216 236
[k Goodwill 152 152
368 388
NR-ZE—NE+-_A=+—"HZITERKRZE Particulars of the principal associate at 31 December 2014
NEFHBEHENE191BEEE198H o are set out on pages 191 to 198.
ATETE AANEERE AR 2 BAMKEE The summarised financial information in respect of the
ko Group’s associates is set out below:

BERE
BRAE

GESE
Ao E A A R R E
s

AR
REERIEHS AT
KRR

Total assets 1,928 2,256
Total liabilities (1,332) (1,693)
Net assets 596 563
Group’s share of net assets of associates 216 236
Revenue 2,351 3,038
Profit for the year 50 65

Group’s share of profits of
associates for the year 14 27
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S MR EASEZRELR 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

NEBE The Group
JELT Unlisted
JEIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,014 -
RZE-—MNE+-A=1+—B2FELE Particulars of the principal joint ventures at 31 December
EFBETIENEI9TEEE198E - 2014 are set out on pages 191 to 198.
ATRTEHARNEBEECEZBMNOPEE The summarised financial information in respect of the
o Group’s joint ventures are set out below:

BERE Total assets 2,659 -
BEEE Total liabilities (631) —
BEFE Net assets 2,028 -
AEBRELEEDE Group’s share of net assets of

BEFE joint ventures 1,014 -
& Revenue 177 -
AN i A Profit for the year (156) -
AEBRELEEDE Group’s share of losses of

REEBE joint venture for the year (78) -
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S ERE 22. AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

FARAEE
About The Group

rEH The Group
FREAH FTARD 0 A (EE  Listed equity shares in Chinese
Mainland, at fair value 25 128
BHBIE LT Unlisted equity shares in Hong Kong 7 11
AR A HE 3 TR AR (D Unlisted equity shares in Chinese
Mainland 1 3
8 14
83 142
” DT - Analysed as:
g R Non-current 33 142
.-
E% THREREN AR BEELRXBTISSRE The fair values of investment in listed equity shares are
‘g‘g MAEE © determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.
o
°©
JEFTREMIER NN & &EE B 2 mES The investments in unlisted equity shares are measured at
£ -BHREBARBEMETEHERK W costs less impairment at each balance sheet date. As the
A SEMETEEAREE - range of parameters for estimating the reasonable fair values
is so significant, their fair values cannot be ascertained
reliably.
1= FEAT R IE 23. PREPAYMENTS
3
C
g
3
#
o
s
/5]
© rEE The Group
TEfHE Prepaid rent 285 221
BEERTEEZR &HE Deposit payment for purchase of fixed
assets 730 655

1,015 876
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24. STOCKS

The Group
Properties held for sale 1,294 63
Raw materials 1,886 1,707
Consumables and packing materials 7,504 7,438
Work-in-progress 602 692
Finished goods 1,569 1,487
Merchandise for resale 14,835 13,634
27,690 25,021
RIE 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 2,351 2,308 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (115) (63) - -
2,236 2,245 - -
Value-added tax recoverable 5,677 5,051 - -
Prepayments 3,249 2,432 1 1
Deposits paid 877 1,332 - 3
Other receivables 3,162 2,658 68 24
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 484 1,370
Amount due from a holding
company 1,038 2,689 - -
Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 261 - - -
Amounts due from associates 23 21 - -
Amounts due from
joint ventures 32 - - -
16,555 16,428 553 1,398
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AEE-—RETEPUATZEER

() BEIN: Rk
(2) =tEATRBRIR

R -—EZERARREBREREEE
1,014B 8T » WHRA/EERR - ZFEF
£5.04 %5 B KA B WS B RN /NEA
MEE -

fEY B R R EEHE R R KIABERIAE
K254BETT ° WWRAESEEIR - RFR
K5.06% T B RARB WS B ENNEA
MEEMNFR -

REZBREKE SRR Rk D a0
-

28.

B # R4 i NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group normally trades with its customers under the
following credit terms:

(@)  cash upon delivery; and
(b)  open credit from 30 to 90 days

Amount due from a holding company include an amount
of HK$1,014 million which is unsecured, bear interest at
5.04% per annum and repayable within six months from the
reporting date.

Amount due from fellow subsidiaries include an amount
of HK$254 million which is unsecured, bear interest at
5.05% per annum and repayable within six months from the
reporting date.

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date:

REE The Group
0 - 30K 0 - 30 days
31 - 60X 31 - 60 days
61 - 90K 61 — 90 days
> 90K > 90 days

AEBERARNRNEEBNE 5 R EME
WHIR AR BEREAREERS °

841 1,205
400 341
220 126
775 573
2,236 2,245

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
other receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to
the corresponding carrying amount.
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“1h. & 5 B H At E WOk T (4 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
BREHEZSE Movement in the provision for doubtful debts

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

Rn—H—H At 1 January 63 39

BEERZIRERE Impairment losses recognised 48 25

RAEAW O T2 &5 Amounts written off as uncollectible (10) (5)

WP B A R Acquisition of subsidiaries 13 3

EHZER Exchange difference 1 1

R+ZA=+—H At 31 December 115 63
180 A 1B AR OB (B BR FX A BR iR Aging of past due but not impaired

slepjoyeieys InQ oL
o G L) % 0E

#HE 2 30H Less than 30 days past due 154 165
#8§31-60H 31 - 60 days past due 229 187
#1H#361-90H 61 — 90 days past due 54 55 —
#HROOA LA £ Over 90 days past due 182 119
619 526
HAREH - REREMNEREE - FRT Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
FERNEDE - SRR a08% © to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent N

history of default. s

o

80UBUIBAOY) 81810dI0D)

it
3
o
3
©),
)
(7]
=
I
—
o
3
o
E)
=




About The Group

RO RE
To Our Shareholders

e
oo

S|

Corporate Governance

-
f=
[
£
o

-
«©

S

(2}

)
)
c
o

=

i

172

ZEHAIZEER 2" CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

U 285 it B

B # R4 i NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“Hn B 5 B A A REA R OE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e & SRR Trade payables 26,893 25,822 - -
B IE Receipt in advance 17,679 16,580 - -
EIRE M Accruals 12,893 10,544 23 30
Bl e Deposit received 7,758 6,900 = -
HAb R Other payables 11,018 9,212 - 1
RPN A 75008 Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 1,958 6,691

A PRSVNCIESE] Amounts due to fellow
i B A R F0E subsidiaries 16 116 - -
JE (T H & R AR Amounts due to associates 3 4 = -
76,260 69,178 1,981 6,722

REGENEMNE SRR ZE®R DTN
T

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
balance sheet date:

AEH The Group
0 - 30K 0 - 30 days
31 - 60K 31 - 60 days
61 - 90K 61 - 90 days
> 90K > 90 days

AEEBRARRNEEBNE S R EME
NFBRAABERAKREERS °

KRAREREBH ZEMNBRARIKIER
HEREES7T40BE T - WERAER
0 5 32 4 K RHIBORI1.55% 5 & °

16,557 17,919
4,227 3,787
1,671 1,406
4,438 2,710

26,893 25,822

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
other payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the
corresponding carrying amount.

The Company’s non-current portion of amount due to
subsidiaries include an advance of HK$8,740 million which
is unsecured and bears interest at HIBOR plus 1.55% per
annum.
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IALD TR: s 27A.SHORT TERM LOANS

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

NEBE The Group
REIE FREIHAER D Current portion of long term loans
— IEIRRITE R - secured bank loans - 38
- BIRIIRITE R - unsecured bank loans 7,472 2,701
- REARLE A HHE — of long term obligations under
finance lease 2 -
RERITRAMER K Short term bank and other loans
BRI and trust receipts
- - secured 34 34
— IR AR - unsecured 1,517 584 y
9,025 3,357 0
0%
SHL RIS 27B.LONG TERM LOANS B3
2
&
(2]

rEE The Group
ARAFRNEEZ Secured bank loans repayable
EIRRITER within 5 years - 38
ARTFEAREEZ Unsecured bank loans repayable g
BERRITER within 5 years 27,342 22,044 8
BERAFTFATBHEEL Unsecured bank loans not & ;;
EIEFIRITER wholly repayable within 5 years 2 3 g ”;E
ARAFREEREZ Obligations under finance <
Bh & A KR leases repayable within 5 years 2 - %
27,346 22,085
PR mE) & &2 BN ERED Current portion included in
current liabilities (7,474) (2,739)
19,872 19,346
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SHE R K ()

27B.LONG TERM LOANS (continued)
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0.90%%8.52% (=T —=%F : ®F0.77%
£0.18%) T & -

s
=
5
S
% B AEE The Group
2 REFBEZIEANERERMHEIZLL  The non-current portion of long term
TEEERER liabilities are repayable as follows:
RITEN Bank Loans
—FUEERFER After 1 year, but within 2 years 6,895 12,443
MFANEERFR After 2 years, but within 5 years 12,975 6,900
HF% After 5 years 2 3
19,872 19,346
2
%{%) REBRHEANDRALCEREEES The aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities
- g BE2TIABIT - RZTE—WFE+=A available to the Group is HK$27.11 billion. As at 31 December
§<§ =+—H EFBEFREREE266.1ET ° 2014, a sum of HK$26.61 billion has been drawn down.
3
& RIBEARNEE AR AT AEE 2 BEPRT Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured
EXZHHGER  ERERREATEER bank loans repayable within five years, CRH, a holding
BARNRNARZRDIBEFRREZRGD company, is required to remain as a beneficial owner of at
HEFEEEARARE—HFARKEZHH least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or remain
7 (THAEEXBEBENBEARMEREA as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly
ERAER) ° through its subsidiaries) of the Company.
AKEFEUBE  ZAARBEBENZ The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong
§ FEMER - BEXRHBIEHIBOR -~ fmERIT Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates
g EZEFE([LIBOR]) EHEARIIBITIRE linked to HIBOR, London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”)
;ﬂuﬂ :5; 2 HBGRH RE o and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China
fjj %) respectively.
3
8 REBZEERZERENXRETERH The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate

borrowings range from mainly 0.90% to 8.52% (2013: from
0.77% t0 9.18%) per annum.
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“t+A }E}Ef}ﬁlﬁ 28. DEFERRED TAXATION
FRELEHBEENABZESHWOT The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities
recognised during the year is as follows:

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

15E The Group
EREHEEE Deferred taxation assets e
®-A-A At 1 January 79 86 1,461 906 1,540 992
thAkaR Oredlted/(Charged) to
2R/ (%) consolidated proft and .
loss account 121 (10) 453 519 574 509 g
AEb2ERENR Charged to other -CJ) §
comprehensive income = - (1) - 1) - 5%
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 1 - 1 % E
FERRTARHR Relating to business injected g
gAME=1R) by non-controling interest @
(Note 36) 65 - 99 - 164 -
EXEE Exchange rate adjustment = 3 ®) % B) a8
RtZA=t-A At 31 December 265 79 2,009 1,461 2,274 1,540
B IBEEUBBOBRENEE T 7% Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses
ARERREFERE LR - AHIEERE carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
EEMER R_E—NE+_B=1+— tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At S
B AEEABRRAZIHEEBEREER 31 December 2014, the Group has unrecognised tax losses 8
15,302 BB T (=T —=4F : B¥7,208 of HK$15,302 million (2013: HK$7,203 million) which is %;@
BEIL) MAKERERTASEAZ uncertain as to whether it can be utilised to set off against g ”;f
SHIFEARKA BRI A L - 58 future taxable income. Out of this amount, the unrecognised E
BHERAEFRNEMZ AR REER tax loss of HK$14,342 million (2013: HK$6,909 million) will %
BEBI143402BBT(ZE—=F : B expire within 5 years.
6,909E&7T) °
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SN IEEAGIE (4]) 28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
NWTABEEGEEEEBERTPERZEL The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised in
MIBEEEKBO RNFERNZEEH) the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during

the year are as follows:

FARAEE
About The Group

REE The Group
R-ZE—=F At 1 January 2013
—A—H 99 659 741 1,499
§ BiEABER Charged to consolidated
S k profit and loss account 9 9 10 28
e e KEH B AR Acaquisition of subsidiaries - 157 - 157
e o) HEMBEAR Disposal of subsidiaries @) (14) - (18)
" 3 BE M2 E K E Charged to other
e Mk comprehensive income 150 - - 150
EXRE Exchange rate adjustment 11 4 - 15
R-T—=F At 31 December 2013 and
+ZA=+-Bk 1 January 2014
B “Z-NF—-A—H 265 816 751 1,831
BGABERINR/ Charged/(credited) to
GPN) consolidated profit
and loss account 115 (24) 10 101
9 hG-1N=INe| Acquisition of subsidiaries - 16 - 16
S FEERIRFEA Relating to business injected
- g EBHEA by non-controlling interest
w3 (HFE=175) (Note 36) 280 - - 280
ﬂj g BEMZEYNE Charged to other
S e comprehensive income 21 - - 21
S EXHE Exchange rate adjustment (1) ) - (4)
RZZ—MF At 31 December 2014
+ZA=+-H 680 804 761 2,245
RBHEARKFBEIVER - HRAGH Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
~RETBEHBARE-_TTNF—HA—AH dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
RERIAFIEE MR R Bk - EIE subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
RIEUAARDEFEEAETERNERE has been provided for undistributed profits to the extent that
= RIS & LRRVETEME - declaration of dividends are anticipated in the foreseeable
£ future.
g
(]
Z RATZEEBIB B ERIE T REFI The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relate to the
§ K B A& ERIRTEIATE - accelerated tax depreciation of its land and building and
s other assets.
('
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S HoAt IR B A A 29. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
RZZE—WME+_A=+—H  HM3ExK At 31 December 2014, other non-current liabilities included
HEEBEDERASIELTW S BT/ E) government grants of HK$865 million (2013: HK$718 million)

B8 EBEIIL(ZE—=F : B¥718H recognized as deferred revenue and consideration payable z

Bt RRERE QR 2 EMAZIE - BT for acquisition of subsidiaries. The government grants mainly 2 -

BN E B AhIE A RN B TS SRS represent subsidies granted by PRC governmental authorities gﬁ

EHE T FEEL o towards the purchases of leasehold land. g’
=t AR 30. SHARE CAPITAL

slepjoyeieys InQ oL
o G L) % 0E

JEE (MIsE—) Authorised (Note 1)
BREEEE1T Ordinary shares of
-5l HK$1 each - - 3,000 3,000
BT MR R Issued and fully paid
n—A—H At 1 January 2,403 2,403 2,401 2,401
1T AR Exercise of share options 2 14 2 2
BT S Issue of scrip
f& 15 dividend shares 16 326 - _
REEREERE Transfer of share premium
RN RE upon abolition of
(M=) par value (Note 2) - 12,997 - - o
R+=—RA=+—R At 31 December 2,421 15,740 2,403 2,403 g
2R
oM
B Notes: g m
s
— RIEN BB R AEBIE622F  [VEERA ] 1 Under Chapter 622 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, §
2B WRER - the concept of “authorised share capital” had been abolished. 5
- B EBDAMEHIE622F £ RAR (BN = 2 The Company's shares have no par value from the commencement
T-ME=[=H)  ARRZERHBED date of Chapter 622 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(= (i.e. 3 March 2014).
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ZAT BN —TE_F-HA=T—RHZEXR
RetEMfE HRNR_"FTOFENA
T TRERRBBEBRERES  AE
RZE—Z—F—A=+—HBEW - ARF
EEgnMAER2RERLBERE %
FRER2AEECRAKE ZEMAITH
FRTES(REEZZET2AL) AKX
SEZIMAREE WITEFAIFRTES
IR BEER2EEE ARBEZE
AITHAR - BB EXER EXBMH
NEfMER (REZHEBEZ EAL)
ARRBZBITBRABREERR - AEE
ZBERE  ARAZEE  REBTERA
BERFEBRROBEA  EERRWER
K (fnE EEZRREAR)E ERREME
NEER -

FERE —ARANES 2 300 T RN K RNIR B
BERRRRUFE ZHRARET  LEE
Rz BT FRITE

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company operates a share options scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication
to the objectives of the Company by the participants
(“Scheme”).

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently
amended on 20 August 2004 by an ordinary resolution
passed by shareholders, and expired on 31 January 2012.
The Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible participants including any executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed
as such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust
established by any employee, executive or non-executive
directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated
companies of the Group, associates of director, chief
executive and substantial shareholder of the Company, and
employees of substantial shareholder and where a substantial
shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of a
substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over
a period of time up to a maximum of four years after the
acceptance of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10
years immediately after the date of grant.
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=t OB (4) 30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
BRI T 2R B 2 A B E 15 24t Details of the movement of the share options granted under
N the Scheme are summarised as follows:

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

Zitd
The Scheme 5
14/01/2004 9.72 245,000 - 95,000 - 150,000 - - O
25/05/2004 9.15 368,000 - 318,000 - 50,000 - - o =
04/10/2004 10.35 1,736,000 - 1,388,000 - 348,000 - - g gf
2,349,000 - 1,801,000 - 548,000 - % A
ARELTR @
Exercisable at the
end of the year -
METEAEE(ESR)
Weighted average .
exercise price (HKS) 10.10 - 10.11 - 10.07 -
BREREASNAT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Zitd
The Scheme
&= Directors 290,000 - 290,000 - - - ;;
[EEEmployees 2,059,000 - 1,511,000 - 548,000 - le

7
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=t AR (%) 30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

FARAEE
About The Group

B it
The Scheme
14/04/2008 6.29 4,000 - 4,000 - - - -
08/10/2003 8.90 2,000 - 2,000 - - - -
0 14/01/2004 9.72 639,000 - 394,000 - - 245,000 -
” % 20/04/2004 9.89 390,000 - 390,000 - - - -
% g 25/05/2004 9.1 402,000 - 34,000 - - 368,000 -
% & 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - 200,000 - - - -
e cS) 04/10/2004 10.35 2,566,000 - 830,000 - - 1,736,000 -
2 4,203,000 - 1,854,000 - - 2,349,000
AIRERTHR
Exercisable at the
end of the year 2,349,000
METHREGEST)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK9) 10.06 - 10.00 - - 10.10
Q BRESEADTOT : Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
g #itH
12 % The Scheme
5:; i?, EZDirectors 490,000 - 200,000 - - 290,000
b § [E&Employees 3,713,000 - 1,654,000 - - 2,059,000
5
© Bzt Note:
1. FRETEERERTERR ZNETH 1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
REABM2NIBT(ZTE—=4F : B share options exercised during the year was HK$21.35 (2013:
26.227T) ° HK$26.22).
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=t 31. RESERVES
NEE The Group
REBHEEHEBIENEII19BEESE Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
120BEH S REHREREEER o consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 119 to
120.

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

-
LA The Company =
RZT-ZF-F-R8 AT Jaary 2013 12976 72 - 2,631 15,779 0%
BRmEE Shares issued at premium 16 - - - 16 3 g
KERRT Profit for the year - - - 853 853 S =
BRI R Purchase of shares under s

SHEIM R restricted incentive
award scheme - - (451) - (451)
Be Dividends - - - 673) 673)
RZF-=% At 31 December 2013 and s
TZA=+-BR 1 January 2014
“T-WE-f-AH 12,992 172 (451) 2,811 15,524
BIRDEE Shares issued at premium 5 - - - 5
REFEN Profit for the year - - - 3,713 3,713 g
BB HERSIILEE  Purchase or sale of shares under i N
SHEIMRG restricted incentive S
award scheme - - 58 - 58 % ”;‘f
RETEELEG  Transfer upon abolition of 3
BEREHEES par value under the 3
25 new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (12,997) - - - (12,997)
RE Dividends - - - (602) (602)
RZE-mF At 31 December 2014
+-A=+-H - 172 (393) 5,922 5,701

KRARAHDRFREZEEEBE Reserves of the Company available for distribution to

5860 B T(ZB—=4 : B2 7498 the shareholders amounted to HK$5,860 million (2013:

L) ° HK$2,749 million).
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

S B AR

B KERHcRERE

A Cash flows from operating activities

R A5 B ) Profit before taxation 1,841 5,046
T Adjustments for:
FE(REE AR EE T Share of net results of
associates (14) (27)
BIEEETEEE T Share of net results of joint
ventures 78 -
HEMB AR, EIEAHE Profit on disposal of
i ) subsidiaries/business (12) (1)
HERE QR TS5 Profit on disposal of
associates - (1)
HEAEREMSEF Profit on disposal of available
for sale investments (147) -
FELEMAEREREMA Dividend income from
unlisted available for sale
investments (7) 2)
B W Exchange gain (71) (181)
FEHA Interest income (714) (534)
FEXH Interest expenses 433 306
HEBTEEFEE, Net loss/(profit) on disposal of
O A fixed assets 96 (174)
BEERETEERE Impairment loss recognised on
18 fixed assets 524 88
EERHEMEREE Impairment loss recognised on
REEE other intangible assets = 2
BEERAZFERERE Impairment loss recognised on
stocks 38 183
BERER B E NEIRE Impairment loss recognised on
[gi] associates = 8
E Depreciation 4,795 3,853
E T & B Amortisation of other intangible
assets 52 36
KEYXEH A% Valuation gain on investment
properties (610) (280)
B #E SR 4 B Government grants recognised (336) (345)
BEESEEA LR Operating cash inflows before
WERA working capital changes 5,946 7,977
EEeke Prepayment for rental deposit (64) 77
HtFE 2 #8) Changes in other stocks 479 (3,242)
E 5 R H M EYRIE Changes in trade and other
=) receivables 2,011 (2,210)
B 5 REMERNFIE Changes in trade and other
L) payables (1,983) 10,225
WEBZHE Cash generated from operations 6,389 12,827




%R 2014 ANNUAL REPORT 183
B ¥ 3R &5 M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b 285 e o B ik

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A B E R () 32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

Z HEHBLAR %% B Disposal of subsidiaries/business

dnoJg ay] noqy
] 36 7 VA )

HEEEFE : Net assets disposed of:
BEEE Fixed assets 10 184
B Goodwill - 96
AERE Available for sales investments = 7
BrE Stocks 1 12
B 5 REMERFIR Trade and other receivables 14 53
We NIRITETF Cash and bank balances - 218 _
B 5 REA B FHIE Trade and other payables (13) (65) 5
FERT 18 Tax payable - @) -CU‘) -
EEMIBEEE Deferred taxation liabilities - (18) §§
12 484 % E
FEVEHIAR M Non-controlling interests (13) (156) §
EEEL Reserve released (6) (13)
HEMB AR ¥% Profit on disposal of
Fri5 i F| subsidiaries/business 12 1
5 316 —
ATFIAAZA Satisfied by:
HEERE Cash consideration 5 316
HEWBAREBHME Analysis of the net inflow of o
ZEERRASEERA cash and cash equivalents 2
FBESN in respect of disposal of § N
subsidiaries/business ch) ﬁi
BRIRSKRE Cash considerations received 5 316 g% B
HERS RRITHETF Cash and bank balances 8
disposed of - (218) 3
5 98
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

S BEABE B EME ()

A WEHEXR XK

C Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

REBEFASEEERAE

The assets acquired and

liabilities recognised at the
dates of acquisition:

EEEE Fixed assets 253 3,753
EftnmpaE Other intangible assets 1 200
EEREE Deferred taxation assets - 1
"E Stocks 14 383
B 5 REMERFIE Trade and other receivables - 967
e MRITER Cash and bank balances - 492
B 5 R EAD BB Trade and other payables (124) (2,327)
REER Short term loans - (219)
eI Tax payable - (1)
RHEIER Long term loans - (68)
HEiIEREAEE Other non-current liabilities - (6)
FEEFIB G Deferred taxation liabilities (16) (157)
128 3,018
FEPE AR SR A Non-controlling interests (6) (13)
BB E £ 2 R Goodwill on acquisition 518 4,248
640 7,253
LATRF A AT Discharged by:
RBe Cash 340 5,339
FERR(E Balance of consideration
payable 300 1,914
640 7,253
WEHBAR, (K2R eR Analysis of the net outflow of
REEERYFEIN cash and cash equivalents
in respect of acquisition
of subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
ENREEsRE Cash consideration paid (340) (5,339)
WEMBERE RRITER Cash and bank balances
acquired - 492
(340) (4,847)

AEBR T —=FRESHEH 2 EH
HE - DHREEER o WKz g4
ERAF W EERALKBEE SR
B HEREL 2020HETT -

In 2013, the group acquired Kingway Brewery’s business
in relation to beer production, distribution and sales. The
accounting of the acquisition completed during the year,
goodwill arising from the acquisition amounting to HK$4,292
million in total was recognised.
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22 EARIE

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

REE B EARTERZ
BAFLEMT ¢

EENEMRERE
(BfaE)
BROEBERKRELD

B

BEBERATEE ARNRERLBEE16,7998 8
T(ZT—=4 : BK9,0258ET) °

ST SRR RE
FEARREA

Capital commitments
outstanding at the
balance sheet date
are as follows:

Contracted but not

provided for (Note) 16,935 11,048 - -

Authorised but not
contracted for 4,423 3,150 - -
21,358 14,198 - -

Note:

Including contractual commitments for the acquisition of fixed assets of
HK$16,799 million (2013: HK$9,925 million).

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

A As lessee

REER - REBETA
A EENER
T EAfR S A 2 B
EEEFOREE -

-E—FNR
-EXE-_FEFDF
(BREEMF)

-hFZI&

At the balance sheet
date, the total future
minimum lease
payments under non-
cancellable operating
leases are payable as

follows:
— Within one year 6,273 4,540 - 4
- In the second
to fifth year
inclusive 29,051 15,154 - -
— After five years 21,115 29,484 - -
56,439 49,178 - 4

BEHERBEASERAE TTEMD
AEMELNz2EE - BHZTER =
“HEZHEEFHEE - BETEEMTH
BXHERS D UARTEM T RERE
HEINHERAENEE (URSER
B)FE - DAEDIREEREE S
o

Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the
Group for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases
are negotiated for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to
20 years. The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets
are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or
a sales level based rental of the relevant rental outlets. The
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at the
above commitments.
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SN, 2 A RS (5 34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
Z fEBEBA B Aslessor
Q
3
o
“ 9
}i =
23
2
REER - BIETA] At the balance sheet
FHEERNTR date, the total future
a0 BRR AR ER 7 A% minimum lease
(R EHIEEEE - payments under non-
cancellable operating
” leases are receivable
g as follows:
%2
=g
i - E—ER — Within one year 1,660 1,325 1 1
j;-‘g -EEFEERF — In the second to fifth
?, (BRIEEEMT) year inclusive 3,105 2,355 = -
- -RFZIE - After five years 703 642 - _
5,468 4,322 1 1
—— WEMEREEEH AT T EHAER These properties and retail outlets have committed tenants
NF1ZE20%F - for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 20 years.
St SR AR 35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
8
g
B %
o §
"
g
g
3

REER - ARQFAT  Atthe balance sheet

P A RIHRMHIRTT KA date, there were
MEFRERMEEZ contingent liabilities
HABE in respect of
guarantees for banks
loans provided to
subsidiaries - - 17,121 12,953
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RER - NEE—TEXRFELBHETEE

B2 FRRIASTSE#EMAR /T AR
KZO%Z%EH&@T‘TTeSCO PLC ([Tescol)
WFAaE e BRERBRSABEIZETR
51)\Tescoﬁé‘EPl%§% TEXEBREH
F%%%i‘k( FEAFER]) o AR ST
EHEEZEETEXEB([HBHLEE]D)
%:q—,ﬂ/\ém%#ff MU A ATER

C AEEERSEREB0%HIER

RELRE RS  FFHEHRREERESE
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ\\ﬁfﬂ“ ERBARBEZAED %

MRS NS% (R HEEERE) - R
Eﬁﬁqf‘&ﬁi%iﬂ?ﬁkrzﬁkﬁé% ﬁﬂiﬁ%
R FE o RE LB R AR, FEIEHIR
REEERAEBMURATFHEBEERA
20%#Ewm ©

BREBEA04E T AEE HATescon
THEEEET  EEZRASENRENZE
HTEEE RTescolt BRI AFEK 2TE
SRR EEE  c ASHEAErEMEL
MR ABE2ET - DREERASHAE
B ZEETEEB T AEEMESER
HRME - BT —OF R MK E R
BENTAESELEE  AEEAECEM
EENBERESNFEEERSELA
o ARTFEURBETEEBE12(ET
REMEERBEABE2ET

During the year, a subsidiary of the Group principally engaged
in multi-category retailing business issued 20% of its total
share capital on a fully diluted basis to a subsidiary of Tesco
PLC (“Tesco”) for a total consideration of cash amounting
to HK$4.3 billion and injection of the retail business and
real estate properties business operated by Tesco in PRC
(“Injected Business”). This transaction constitutes a partial
disposal of the Group’s multi-category retailing business
(“Partial Disposal”) and upon completion of the formation of
joint venture in May 2014 (the “Formation of Joint Venture”),
the Group owns 80% interest in the joint venture.

Pursuant to the investment agreement, the non-controlling
interest shall have the right to subscribe for additional shares
in the joint venture, so that the total interest in the joint
venture held by the non-controlling interest will increase by
5% (on a fully diluted basis) upon the earlier of the listing of
the joint venture or the fifth anniversary of completion. The
non-controlling interests shall have the right to cause the
Group to purchase all the 20% equity interest at fair market
value if certain events were to occur.

The total consideration of HK$10.4 billion was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiation between the Group and Tesco, after
taking into accounts the estimated relative business values of
the multi-category retailing business operated by the Group
and the Injected Business operated by Tesco. Goodwill
arising from the Formation of Joint Venture amounting to
HK$2.9 billion was attributable to the synergies expected to
be arisen from the combination of the Group’s multi-category
retailing business and the Injected Business. There are
adjustments to the goodwill and net asset values acquired
related to the Formation of Joint Venture as compared with
amounts disclosed in the 2014 interim financial information,
which was previously determined on a provisional basis. The
adjustments are mainly related to the fixed assets of HK$1.2
billion and other assets and liabilities of approximately
HK$0.2 billion.
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REREWZ  AKER_FT—MNE+—
RUReREBEATERITRE T ERFi
EMHESE R EFIERN50 % R ([ K1z
Bl At GEFHENEAEDLER
BREBZMEARE -

HREAAE %A R KWE BB
BlEERA BT :

BEEEE
REELEZHER
HipEE
RERRITER
(BHRERRERE)
fENIRE B

=

B HIRN
BUWRIA
HibBE

BSFEER

IAEXBE_ZE-—OFRAA-TNABHA
AHERRNEERREAEK10,9818
Bt - A SZAEBE AR B RIREN
EAH B RS E IR B0 A E T °

B R =M= NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Upon the completion of the Partial Disposal, non-controlling
interests amounting to HK$5.0 billion was recognised. The
difference between the non-controlling interest recognised
and the fair value of the total consideration received, and
after considering the release of exchange reserve and the
deduction of transaction costs incurred, amounting to
HK$5.5 billion was recognised directly in equity.

Pursuant to the investment agreement, the Group acquired
the remaining 50% equity interest in several real estate
properties joint ventures at a cash consideration of HK$1.7
billion in December 2014 (the “Subsequent Acquisition”).
Accordingly, those real estate properties joint ventures are
now accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.

Identifiable assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
Formation of Joint Venture and the Subsequent Acquisition
are as follows:

BEEET
HK$ million
Fixed assets 15,317
Interest in joint ventures 1,429
Other assets 6,229
Cash and bank balances, including
cash consideration received 5,291
Cash consideration receivable 1,000
Borrowings (7,177)
Trade payable (3,469)
Receipt in advance (1,925)
Other liabilities (7,499)
Net assets value acquired 9,196

The turnover contributed by the Injected Business to the
consolidated profit and loss account since 28 May 2014 was
HK$10,981 million. The Injected Business also contributed
loss of HK$906 million to the Group’s loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company over the same period.
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St ERBEAR S

E

AREEEKE AR (BRARRZBE
ADETZRZERGEEKRE R
WBAARMEPRE - BRAPBHRE ST
BEZRZRAERI  REBET TR

HEABERS °

[ TR AEAE @
BRAIERZHEAR

/NS

B TH QAR 2 RS
BRAIEBZHEAR

/NS

T3 2 A
— R AR
FARKEZFIBA

T8I R IR AR
SAREE HEAT

/NS

BEEH R
BRAIERZHEAR

/N

R BIA AICRALS,
—BRRAT
BRaEE B AR

PTIA TS TS
—RHER AT
BAREEZHBAT

RIBEHE IR ek MR b6 E 12 s

EITRS

[ T 2 RIER AR 75 &
—EHER AR
BRAKEZHBAR

AT RAIXNAE
—EHER AR
BRAKEZHBAR

AEERWSERRITRNDERQANE
R BRASRBITERICEFRTE

REBEB2ABL(ZE—=F

1,668E&7T) °

ks

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

Purchase of goods from
Fellow subsidiaries 1,100 885
Associates 112 88

Receipt of services from
Fellow subsidiaries 79 42
Associates 20 20

Sales of goods to
A holding company 1 15
Fellow subsidiaries 13 14

Rendering of services to
Fellow subsidiaries 13 3
Associates 9 9

Operating lease payment to
Fellow subsidiaries 110 96
Associates - 2

Interest received from

A holding company 98 91
A fellow subsidiary 25 47
Interest paid to
A holding company 4 -
A fellow subsidiary 2 -
Transaction under godown
management agreement and
facilities management
Receipt of service fee from
A holding company 98 87
Fellow subsidiaries 86 77
Payment of monthly fee to
A holding company 9 9
Fellow subsidiaries 27 27

Cash and bank balances or pledged bank deposits included
deposits of HK$252 million (2013: HK$1,668 million) made by
the Group to China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FiR BRI E TR BB BRI E R
SRARNRERHER HET EHRAE
14AZ R FEE K ©

HEEAMPEABBEREFHER X
5./ &R

AEEAGRTEEBRAR(ZAAH
FREBFZEGDET —EARAAREEZ
KB - REFEREAREERAEEKE
NEEITZRZHN - AKBE T E B X
@2 rh b B U B s R R SR
LERETRBER EFRAR KEHR
BARIEEI  ZEERBYEENELX
SRGETAREE 2 M MG EBR - 8%
FERBETZRZ (BREEE M AR
RIRTTER KRB 2 TR A B) hIRA &
B REBBIEFY - ARERR  BHE
PR ESCFiit 2 BB R BB Fefn R AT
BRERK -

FTEEBABZHM

XNTFHREERAUZSFHESINER
EEABZMEFROT

B # R4 i NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(continued)

The above transactions also constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and with respect to
which the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in Chinese Mainland

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies
under CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government.
Apart from the transactions with CRNC group and the
associates of the Group, it also conducts businesses with
entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the
PRC government in the ordinary course of business. The
directors are of the opinion that those entities other than the
CRNC group do not have the power to govern or participate
in the financial and operating policies of the Group. The
transactions including sales and purchases of goods and
services and bank deposits and corresponding interest
income, with these entities are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business. The Group believes that
it has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate
and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions as
summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration paid for key management personnel other than
directors or the five highest paid employees are as follows:

HAF @ KoL Basis salaries and allowances 3.75 -
NESHR Providend fund contribution 0.23 -
TE4L Bonus 1.22 -

5.20 -

= b B s ety

F1I3HEF18EMH oW EHRECE
ExeN T AF=-A-tHit#E-

38. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements set out on pages 113 to 198 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2015.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

R=_Z—NF+ = A =+—H At 31 December 2014

(-)
U]

&
Retail

REBERE L

Incorporated in Hong Kong

RE(ER)ERAT
Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K.) Limited

ZEEX(BR)ARDA

China Resources Vanguard
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

ZEME(BR)ERDA

CRE Properties (Hong Kong) Limited

CRE Property (Nan Fung Centre)
Limited

CRE Property (Argyle Centre) Limited

CRE Property (Silvercord) Limited

CRE Property (Star House) Limited

CRE Property (Hennessy) Limited

REBRZBREMAYL

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

Gain Land Limited

5,000,0001% % &%
5,000,000 ordinary shares

90,000,001 Z &R
90,000,001 ordinary shares

2 RERR
2 ordinary shares

2 BB

2 ordinary shares

2 RERR
2 ordinary shares

2 BB

2 ordinary shares

2 RERR
2 ordinary shares

2 BB

2 ordinary shares

TREREEIZT ERR
7 ordinary shares of US$1 each

100.0

80.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

80.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

80.0

TEXH

Retail business

ATER  REBRRERHE

Supermarket operations,
investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise

RERRRNRER
Investment holding and
property management

VES¥

Property investment

VESIE

Property investment

VESE

Property investment

VESIE

Property investment

VESE

Property investment

RERR

Investment holding

slepjoyeieys InQ oL dnoun sy 1noqy

80UBUIBAOY) 81810dI0D)

it
3
o
3
©),
)
(7]
=
I
—
o
3
o
E)
=

1] 3 7 V4 )

B G ) 2 0

R S0

7

(=)
7

g
&
#
I




About The Group

BRI BRR

To Our Shareholders

e
o

S|

Corporate Governance

-
f=
[
£
o

-
«©

S

(2}

)
)
c
o

=

i

192

ZEHAIZEER 2" CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

FENBAT AELEREKZ AT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

EEMEAF - B E LR AT

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

(-)
(1

**

**x

**

*x

2E(H)

Retail (continued)

REBRBERAL

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

MIEEEERATAERAR

TEAEERERAGRAA

EERBTHERAT

THERERRMARAH

HREMARAT

Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd.

THENHERRAT

THEEHEARAT

REERBFLERTARAR

o

REZEERLEETARAT

REEFEF LERTRRARAA

ARERBMBRAT

ZEEFARDA

China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd.

7%:206,200,0007
HKD226,200,000

AK90,000,0007
RMB30,000,000

AEH40,000,0007T
RMB40,000,000

AR197,360,4007C
RMB197,360,400

AR 782,820,007
RMB782,820,000

AR 6,000,000
RMB6,000,000

AEH10,000,00070
RMB 10,000,000

AR %120,000,0007T
RMB 120,000,000

AKEH560,000,00070
RMB 60,000,000

AEH10,000,0007T
RMB 10,000,000

AR#5,000,0007
RMB 5,000,000

AR #3,376,600,0007
RMB 3,376,600,000

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

68.0

68.0

442

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

85.0

85.0

65.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

BHEH

Supermarket operations

BmEH

Supermarket operations

BHEH

Supermarket operations

BmEH

Supermarket operations

BHEH

Supermarket operations

ATERRRER
Supermarket operations and
investment holding

BEBRRER
Supermarket operations and
investment holding

IS

Supermarket operations
BNER
Supermarket operations

(23}

Delivery services

BERRRER
Supermarket operations and
investment holding

B EH

Supermarket operations
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

() EEE
(1) Retail (continued)

R EREERRY ()

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)

FIERREERTARAT
China Resources Cikelong (Zhejiang)
Supermarket Co., Ltd.

EREREERET (M) ERAA
China Resources Vanguard

(Guangzhou) Superstore Co., Ltd.
EHEFLEET (RS BRAA
China Resources Vanguard

(Zhuhai) Superstore Co., Ltd.
EREFLERT N BRAA
China Resources Vanguard

(Zhejiang) Superstore Co. Ltd.

HEEBNRERAR

LERCERETEHARAA

LETEEERYTLERAA

RERAR(TE)RERRAR

BB SBRHEREERAT

' HRBLEHBLERRAR

AR %124,000,0007T
RMB 124,000,000

AR50,000,00070
RMB 50,000,000

AK#30,000,00070
RMB 30,000,000

AR %128,000,0007T
RMB 128,000,000

AR5,000,0007
RMB 5,000,000

AEH10,000,00070
RMB 10,000,000

AR10,000,00070
RMB 10,000,000

AR #205,655,6007C
RMB 205,655,600

220,000,000% 7
1S$220,000,000

150,000,000%7T
US$150,000,000

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

40.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

50.0

EES)

Supermarket operations

BmEH

Supermarket operations

BmEH

Supermarket operations

EES)

Supermarket operations

(B33

Delivery services
BER
Supermarket operations

BmEH

Supermarket operations

Investment holding

REBRRNEER
Investment holding and
property management

FHERE

Property development
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

(=)
@

*x

**x

**

**

**

*x

**

L

Beer

REREREL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

EARREHERAA
CRE Beverage Trading Limited

REBEZEHREMA L

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

EESRMRERAA
China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited

ReERBERR L
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

ERERBE(R))EREALF
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd

ERZRR(ER)BR

i3
&
=
e=li]

ERERER(EE)ERAA
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Suining) Co., Ltd.

ERSERE(EH)ERLA
China Resources Snowflake Brewery
(Jilin) Co., Ltd.

ZESTRE(SIL)ARAT

FESTRE(TE)ARAT

ERSTRE(RE)BRAA
China Resources Snow Brewery
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.

EESTRE(RR)ARAT

2 [RERER

2 ordinary shares

42,800 4005 EREEIX T2 EER
42,800,400 ordinary shares of US$1 each

ARH124,143 8537
RMB 124,143,853

AE#245,792,501 7
RMB245,792,501

AR 94,000,000
RMB 94,000,000

31,200,000% T
1S$31,200,000

AR 141,000,007
RMB 141,000,000

12,982,0555 70
1S$12,982,255

32,797 869% T
US$32,797,869

AR45,000,00070
RMB 45,000,000

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

459

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

90.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

8

Financing

Investment holding

HEM HEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HEMHHEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HEEBER

Distribution of beer products

HENHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHBREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

(=)
@

5 (%)

Beer (continued)

R EREERRY ()

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)

FESRRE(RRN)ERAT

ZESTRE(ZRT)ARAA

China Resources Snow Breweries

(Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd.

ERSRRE(IH)ARAT

China Resources Snow Breweries

(Jiangsu) Co., Limited

EESTRE(AR)ERAA

China Resources Snow Breweries

(Xingan) Co., Ltd.

FESRRB(TL)ERAT

FESRRB(EN)ERAT

ARH 69,440,000
RMB 69,440,000

25,800,005
15$25,800,000

114,000,000
US$114,000,000

AR 161,000,0007C
RMB 161,000,000

20,103,388% T
15$20,103,388

14,000,000% 7T
UUS$14,000,000

36,500,000% 70
US$36,500,000

AR 21,000,000
RMB 21,000,000

AR 34,000,000
RMB 34,000,000

AR 77,680,000
RMB 77,680,000

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

45.9

51.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

90.0

100.0

HENHHREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHBEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHBEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HEMHBREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

slepjoyeieys InQ oL dnoun sy 1noqy

80UBUIBAOY) 81810dI0D)

it
3
o
3
©),
)
(7]
=
I
—
o
3
o
E)
=

1] 3 7 V4 )

B G ) 2 0

R S0

7

(=)
7

g
&
#
I




196 = MAI%X AR AT CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

(7)  BE(E)

¥] Beer (continued)

FARAEE
About The Group

R B R R ()

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)

t EEEREECENR)ARAR AR#110,000,0007T 51.0 - 1000 BENHHERER
RMB 110,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
— of beer products
v BESREE(SMERAT 24,000,000570 510 - 1000 HENAHEEER
US$24,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
<4
[0)
9 AT = = = )35 F ALk = O
Ko v BEEREE(RR)ERAT AR %150,000,0007T 510 - 1000 HENABEEER
2 S China Resources Snow Breweries RMB150,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
§ ) (Datong) Co., Ltd. of beer products
=3
° " EREREE(®R)ARLA AR 65,000,0007 510 - 1000 RENSEEEER
RMB 65,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
(S
D 3 Food
REEZME L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
(0]
(&)
§ ZENZERAA 1,046,258,0008 & 100.0 - 1000 ERLERRELR
fT o China Resources Ng Fung Limited 1,046,258,000 ordinary shares Abattoir operation and
gr:; 8 investment holding
[0
H
S TETARAA TREBR 100.0 - 1000 2ERE RERERRERR
(‘53 Ng Fung Hong Limited 1 ordinary shares Distribution of livestock and
acting as a food agent and
investment holding
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

(=)
)

m)
“

R (H)

Food (continued)

R EAERRT

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

FERRNERR(RIERAA
(B RRRE(RIARAA)

M RERIRAAERAT
(Sichuan Ng Fung Li Hong Food
Co., Ltd)

BnE(hE)REARAA

EERSRE(RE)ARAA
(R - 2R ELHRI)
BRRA)

mlimsRARAERAE

#R

Beverage

R E R A T

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

ERRERH(PE)ERDA

EFRRAH (A ARAA
China Resources Food & Beverage
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

AR 543,000,007
RMB543,000,000

AKH60,000,0007C
RMB 60,000,000

AR 700,000,007
RMB 700,000,000

AR 500,000,007
RMB500,000,000

AE#100,705,2107
RMB100,705,210

AR50,000,00070
RMB50,000,000

700,000% 7
US§700,000

70.0 - 70.0
56.0 - 55.0
100.0 - 100.0
100.0 - 100.0
24.8 - 24.8
60.0 - 100.0
60.0 - 100.0

HEEE  BNE  MERE
Distribution of livestock abattoir
operation, livestock raising,
trading of fresh meats and

property investment

BmE 5
Trading of foodstuffs

ERaRRREBRTES
RERMAMREERY
B

Investment in food and
food relating industry and
providing consulting services

HERRARMRRGTIARE
Rl

Consultation on international
food technologies and food
market

RERRINIRAE
Food processing and
distribution of meat

HENHHEE
Manufacturing and distribution
of beverage

RENDBIHK
Manufacturing and distribution
of purified water
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE

(F) BRERHf

(5) Investments and Others

FARAEE
About The Group

REREREL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

EREEHB(ER)ARAT 2 REBR 100.0 100.0 - BB
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) Limited 2 ordinary shares Financing
REEREEMAY
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited 3RERAEIET BBR 100.0 100.0 - BB
(2}
g 3 ordinary shares of US$1 each Financing
3
®
&3 HEE
w® Notes:
3
e

—. EBERR ZEIIIFMAMBAR  cECERMERAFBEEEERAENIR W ERERIIHASEREREEASTAZE N 2
BRATE - AECERBEDRFE -

1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be of excessive
length and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates which materially affect
the results or assets of the Group.

BRBETRAEN  BRRZETBEXAEBRR IR MM AEMDE

D ||

Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.
= aEPEREMRZZ AT HEXEBANESAZIETEET ©
S 3. For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.
C
£
@ A - NC]|
i 8 A Associates
* o * AALE¥
S . .
S Joint Venture
g " SNALE
o > Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

40
o
b
=

Financial Statement
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EEY EME

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

R=_Z—NF+ = A =+—H At 31 December 2014

>
FERENE g z
2 -
Properties held for investment 3 ﬁ
g’

) S
Hong Kong
I AL — 5 B RIHER 12625 100% 7,216 ] &4
WEASR - T - 48 - 4EF S - 518 AR - BERHE C Long
RE R REFREER ZETHRAHE
DEEENIMERESR Certain parts or
L8R A ZUE 6885 T £ 655 shares of and in
Argyle Centre, Phase | Sections A, Band H —
Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F, of Kowloon Inland 8
1 to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and Lot No. 1262 ‘CU‘, §
Part of External Walls and the Signboard of Portion A of g 3
Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street South and 3 E
Argyle Street and Scavenging lane, gf
688 Nathan Road, 65 Argyle Street
Mongkok, Kowloon
meHL FEMR 100% 7,075 B/ R
S K57 E B AL 25852 C/CP Medium
A034-A041 ~ AD44 ~ A128 ETHE
A4201 + A4301 + A4502 Jx A4602 Efi - Sundry shares of
B 1 E3BBEETSR) and in Tsuen Wan o
R 3 EBHBRREERRARKEH =M Town Lot No. 258 3
MAEEEIINK264 - 2085 £ R
Nan Fung Centre Q iﬁ
Lorry Parking Space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement 3 o
Units A034-A041, AD44, A128, A4201, A4301, g
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with @
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
EXAT NEBR 100% 3,889 # R
i FOASE - 1A R —IBAR - CH 105RABLZ c Long -
NERDBHTEAESHR AFHH B
Star House Part of and in g =@
Shop 9A - 10A on G/F & Shop A-C on 1/F Section A of § z
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon Kowloon Marine % o

Lot No. 10 3
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FEYEME SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

EEY M

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

o
o
§ BERENE(E)
;Zt E Properties held for investment (continued)
®2
< BB ()
Hong Kong (continued)
ZEBAL MHERB34TH 2 100% 8,982 ] =H
15 - 1857 20A  20BK20C3H &fir - ETEHEHE c Long
BMEARAAR)BEARBAR) - Certain parts or
1232 ERIERAET A shares of and in
EEMBEETNE1 - 31K REH2 - 85 Inland Lot No. 8347
” Lok Sing Centre
g Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
*& % Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
E g Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)
- s the whole of 1/F to 3/F
o and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
AL JLEEAIER 106565 2 100% 7,849 %/ B =8
1 T 38554 AT BREMNE C/CP Long
112305 48 RO 415048 Certain parts or
1E13, 14, 15, 16 R 175R &EfiL shares of and in
8 NERDEEREI0N, Kowloon Inland
5 Silvercord Lot No. 10656
fz g Shop No. 38 on the G/F,
§‘;§ cg Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F
“ § Tower 1 and Car Parking Spaces
g Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
© 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
RRERRE B ERS462%: 100% 14,782 1/€ el
T 5111 - 138 - 1522022 B (REXRA) BTEG I/CP Medium

-
f=
[
£
o

-
«©

S

(2}

)
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Rt ™ -23% B -

NERDEBEME16%

Chung Dah Godown Building

Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor
115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

The Remaining portion
of New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 5462
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EEY EME

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

BERENE(E)

Properties held for investment (continued)
B ()

Hong Kong (continued)

ERRO

1BI101FE 28 RIBEETA

6IEER

-4 ERBER

Bf7P1-P103 * L1-L15 * L17-143

R ERRRESST,

Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Godown on 6/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-143,
88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

EHE

NEEHE233-230%:

JD Mall, 233-239 Nathan Road,
Jordan, Kowloon

HEFAE

T E4E
BAELHE5E488-4905%
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

LELHF450
KR B 9375
Lot No. 937 in
Demarcation
District No. 450

TLEEMIER 140257 CE &
BTED - NER
08419932 19945
Section C and the
Remaining portion of
Kowloon Inland Lot No.
1402, Kowloon Inland
Lot Nos. 1993 and 1994

3655
ABIRE R
CRzETHH
Certain parts or
shares of and in
Sub-section 1 of
Sections A and C of
Marine Lot No. 365

100%

89%

100%

31,234

9,599

3,125

/F
cP

P

Medium

P

Medium
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ESLIE 3R

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

8
o BERENE(E)
}i s Properties held for investment (continued)
"3
< PRI
Chinese Mainland
BRETIMMERRBREENEE TER 80% 59,447 & R
P R R 19657 N/A C Medium
e —§ ZEAER—EZEBNEHMR
HTmRYBREDHRT05 EN e 80% 28,058 ] )
” “EN\E N/A C Medium
3
=2 FHEAETERERSRHoH T 80%  559% 5 o
i —ZNE N/A C  Medium
® P
=)
° BELE OB % E2 TEA 80% 17498 B i
N/A C Medium
BREBMNTRTETRILAEI1165 A 80% 9,896 7 e
N/A C Medium
BELBESTELRRRAE55 TiER 80% 28,023 ] )i
N/A C Medium
3
8 BELAEHEH TREAME11%: TiEF 80% 31,370 ] o
@ 8 N/A C  Medium
& IS
48 LRSS TR E B 1208 TR 80% 16041 R
£ N/A C Medium
O
AXEREEHEERAILKETER6H TiER 80% 19,572 ] I
N/A C Medium
EELEIETIERENEAE1R TiEfA 80% 18,203 ] )i
N/A C Medium
EREBIMEREEREEED TER 80% 33,315 ] i HE
N/A C Medium
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

g
BERENE () ot
Properties held for investment (continued) 3 ;
O
S
PRI () 5
Chinese Mainland (continued)
BRERMNMEILESLEEH - KiB306% TER 80% 15,210 ] ]
N/A C Medium
BREEMAMEHEERKIR TiEm 80% 15,763 % el
N/A C Medium
N . 3
EEELEMARE LSRR TiEF 80% 23,742 ] ] O
N/A C Medium o2
B3
B - [EREEES 2 285 W PWAE T:T% azﬁ
Note: C: Commercial CP: Car Park O: Office I: Industrial =
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FiIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REXE
-
PSR A8 i A

EREART
SR
GE
R

RERERMEX

EEEE
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i
EHRE

W H0E
FIERIES &

REBEE (AR

e
EER
A
G

M s
FEIR IR B A RS
RHER
PTHES®BMIT A

HitRHEE

EERIAAE
BEMER

Consolidated results
Turnover

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Basic earnings per share

Dividend per share
Interim
Final

Consolidated balance
sheet

Fixed assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Long term investments

Prepayments

Deferred taxation assets

Net current assets/
(liabilities)

Employment of capital

Share capital
Reserves

Shareholders’ funds

Non-controlling interests

Long term loans

Derivative financial
instruments

Other non-current
liabilities

Deferred taxation liabilities

Capital employed

AEGHERBEE FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

87,138 110,164 126,236 146,413 168,864
5,863 3,013 3,945 1,908 (161)
HK$2.45  HK$1.25  HK$1.64  HK$0.79  HK$(0.07)
HK$0.14  HK$0.15  HK$0.15  HK$0.13  HK$0.11
HK$0.38  HK$0.32  HK$0.15  HK$0.14  HK$0.16
HK$0.52  HK$0.47  HK$0.30  HKS$0.27  HK$0.27
41,443 50,240 56,971 69,117 88,060
9,654 10,755 14,948 19,428 22,854
219 310 295 562 510
399 463 517 530 1,415
311 305 2,258 876 1,015
556 762 992 1,540 2,274
(678) (2,383) 6,677)  (10,454)  (21,118)
51,904 60,452 69,304 81,599 95,010
2,398 2,399 2,401 2,403 15,740
29,725 35,440 38,341 41,670 33,007
32,123 37,839 40,742 44,073 48,747
10,475 12,633 13,042 15,538 20,876
8,158 8,442 13,352 19,346 19,872
14 - - - -

347 532 669 811 3,270
787 1,006 1,499 1,831 2,245
51,904 60,452 69,304 81,599 95,010
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4. BEZBOMLREEEFEETHEME -
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PHEEZ10% °
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DEBEZ220% °

7. REMAEERRBEARZRFSEMDE
ZBEMEE  WBARNRERFCOHAM
BITHR M 2 — IR HE -

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general
meeting, the full version of which is set out in the circular to be
dispatched to shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
will be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 29 May 2015 at 3:30 p.m.
for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and
the Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

2. To declare a final dividend.

8. (1)  To re-elect Mr. Chen Lang as Director;
(2)  Tore-elect Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank as Director;
(8) To re-elect Mr. Du Wenmin as Director;
(4)  To re-elect Mr. Wei Bin as Director;
(6) To re-elect Mr. Yan Biao as Director;
(6) To re-elect Mr. Wang Yan as Director; and
(7)  To fix the fees for all Directors.
4, To re-appoint Auditor and authorise the Directors to fix their

remuneration.

B To grant a general mandate to the Directors to buy back
shares not exceeding 10% of the issued shares.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue
additional shares not exceeding 20% of the issued shares.

7. To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item 6
hereof by the addition thereto of the number of shares bought
back under item 5 hereof.

dnoJg ay] noqy

slepjoyeieys InQ oL

9OUBUJIBA0Y) 81el0dio)

i 35 7 V4

B CH b % 5

HEET



ERAKE
About The Group

BMEMHRR
To Our Shareholders

g
fn

<

Corporate Governance

BREA

Chen Lang

AR Hong Jie

Liu Hongji

Lai Ni Hium, Frank

MR DuWenmin
ZiE  WeiBin
BB  Yan Biao
BRE  Chen Ying
F£Z  Wang Yan
201593 H20H

20 March 2015

2015%F6 A1H
1 June 2015

WEAREERFBFRGINE
BREZIRFEH G

201545 H26 H 2201545 H29H
(EEMABEEAN)

To determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the annual general
meeting:

26 May 2015 to 29 May 2015 (both
days inclusive)

BAE
FIFE
MRE
RE R

T

ARE X CORPORATE INFORMATION

Houang Tai Ninh

Li Ka Cheung, Eric
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
Bernard Charnwut Chan
Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

Lai Ni Hium, Frank

EOBE R RN E S

PricewaterhouseCoopers

8 {15 8 8269 A B 308
39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

MR E B EZ
20156 H4H

To ascertain the members’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend:

4 June 2015

REARLE Z #ER) -

201597 A10H s A&
On or about 10 July 2015

EEEEGFRAR

B

ERRNBR1835%

&M 2218

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
PO Box 358516

Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516

USA

EEMEE X F T 00291

18 : 291 HK

FEBEAL 0 0291.HK

ADRSE © CRHKY

CUSIP: 16940R109

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00291
Bloomberg: 291 HK

Reuters: 0291.HK

ADR symbol: CRHKY

CUSIP: 16940R109

FIE : ir@cre.com.hk
Email: ir@cre.com.hk
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